
 
 
 

 
 

 
CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Mayor/Commissioner – Ed Wolf – Seat 1 
Commissioner/Mayor Pro-Tem Pamala Harrison-Bivins – Seat 2 

Robby Strickland – Seat 3
Don C. Clark – Seat 4 
Julian Green – Seat 5 

Bill Ed Cannon – City Manager 
 

Monday, February 25, 2013 
7:00 PM 

City Hall Commission Chamber 
PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND PAGERS 

Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk’s Department, ADA 
Coordinator, at 352-330-1330, Ext. 102, forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. 

F.S.S. 286.0105A - If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, 
they will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 

made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
The City of Wildwood DOES NOT provide this verbatim record. 

City Hall Commission Chamber - 100 N. Main Street, Wildwood, FL 34785 

 

AGENDA 

 
 THE MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER BY THE MAYOR 
 INVOCATION 
 FLAG SALUTE 
 

1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
a. PUBLIC HEARING – 2

ND
 FINAL READING of Ordinance 02013-05; An Ordinance repealing Article V of 

Chapter 19 of the City of Wildwood’s Code of Ordinances in its entirety and adopting a new Article V, 
Chapter 19 pertaining to sewer use (Attachments) 
 
 

2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
a. Special Presentations 

1. Presentation (verbal) by James Gollahon, of Gollahon Financial Services, Inc. on a Proposed Debt 
Service Refunding for both General Fund and Enterprise Fund with Financial Advisor Services 
Agreement with Gollahon Financial Services and Bond Attorney Agreement Services with Akerman 
Senterfitt (Board Option - Attachments) 

 
b. City Manager 

1.  
 

c. City Attorney 
1. Request to schedule a closed door meeting (calendars attached) 
 

d. City Clerk 
1.  

 
e. Commission Members 

1.  
 

 
 

* Quasi Judicial Hearing 
 



P a g e  | 2 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
February 25, 2013 

 

f. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 
1.  

 
g. Notes and Reports 

1. FYI – Budget Analysis Report – January 2013 (Attachments) 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 
a. MINUTES 

1. Minutes of Regular Meeting held on February 11, 2013 (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
  

b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 
1. Ordinance No. O2013-06 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing 2.67± acres of property owned by 

Hughes Brothers, LLC located just north of the intersection of CR 213/Walker Road and SR 44. The 
property to be annexed is a portion of Parcel G07=133 and is intended to be utilized as an office for 
a construction company (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
2. Ordinance No. O2013-07 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing an approximate 1-acre piece of 

property located along CR 466 east of CR 209 owned by Gary Williams. The property to be annexed 
is a portion of Parcel D18=038 and is intended to be utilized for service and sales of lawn mowers 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
3. Ordinance No. O2013-08 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing the north 100’ of Parcel D30=003, 

Villages of Legacy Park Subdivision, located along CR 222 west of US 301, omitted from the original 
annexation because it would have created an enclave (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 

1. None 
 

d. APPOINTMENTS  
1. None  

 
e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. Request for a Partial Release of Easement from the City of Wildwood to 301/466, LLC to correct a 
title defect caused by an incorrect legal description set forth in the “Easement” recorded in OR Book 
1719, page 621, public records, Sumter County, Florida to the extent that such Easement may 
encumber the real property (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
f. FINANCIAL 

1. Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
2. Request approval of Utility Technicians, Inc. proposal to make necessary repairs to Lift Stations No. 5 

and 36 in the amount of $9,676.00. (Attachments - Staff recommends approval) 
 
3. Request approval to purchase one year of support from Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc. for the meter 

reading equipment and software in the amount of $3,792.00. (Attachments - Staff Recommends 
Approval) 

 
4. Request to approve payment of Interstate Electric Services of Central Florida, Inc. invoice number 

13-101 in the amount of $29,682.06 for emergency electrical repairs on January 23, 2013 at the CR 
501 Water Plant (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

1. SP 1210-02 Alliance Coach Site Plan - Alliance Coach, Inc. seeks Site Plan approval for the 
construction of a Detail Center (2,500 sq. ft.), Office (1,200 sq. ft.), and Employee Pavilion (600 sq. 



P a g e  | 3 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
February 25, 2013 

 

ft.) as well as an additional eight (8) acres of impervious area in the Business Park 44 Industrial Park. 
The P&Z Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation on Feb. 5, 2013 subject to 
approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

 
2. SP 1212-03 Kangaroo Express Store #1433 Site Plan – The Pantry, Inc. seeks Site Plan approval for 

construction of a 3,813 sq. ft. Kangaroo Express convenience store/gas station with twelve fueling 
positions (six pumps) and associated improvements on Parcel D20=013 at the NE corner of C-472 & 
US 301.  The P&Z Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation on Feb. 5, 2013 
subject to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction and that the 
lighting plan be revised to mitigate off-site impacts  (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
3. Greg A. Beliveau, with LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc. is requesting a one year extension of the 

Quadventure Planned Development on behalf of his client, Quadventure LLC, per his attached letter 
dated January 29, 2013 due to adverse real estate market conditions (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

 
4. Request to rescind the Nov. 13, 2006 moratorium on installation of irrigation meters (Attachments - 

Staff recommends approval) 
 

4. ADJOURN 
 
IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 

 

a. March 4, 2013 – (Monday) - SPECIAL CALLED CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MEETING to discuss 
the Champagne Farms Well Site – 6:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 

 
b. March 8, 2013 – (Friday) – Gourmet Food Truck Night – 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM – City Hall Front 

Courtyard, Oxford & Wonders Streets 
 
c. March 11, 2013  – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
 
d. March 16, 2013 – (Saturday) – Wildwood Rotary’s Ides of March…Madness 5k run/walk – 8:00 AM – 

Starts & ends at City Hall 
 
e. March 23, 2013 – (Saturday) – Opening Ceremonies for Wildwood Dixie Youth – 10:00 AM – 

Millennium Park Ball Fields 
 
f. March 25, 2013  – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
 
g. March 30, 2013 – (Saturday) – 4

th
 Annual Easter Eggstravaganza – 9:00 AM – Millennium Park 

Baseball Fields 
 
h. April 5 & 6, 2013 – (Friday & Saturday) – Relay for Life – Starts at 6:00 PM April 5

th
 – Ends at 12:00 

Noon on April 6
th

 – Wildwood Community Center 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Feb. 25, 2013 
 

Subject: City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 19 Article V. 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of Ordinance O2013-05. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Chapter 19, Article V, Sewer Use of the City Code of Ordinances regulates Industrial Waste. The 
code was originally adopted in 1959 and has undergone numerous revision and additions over the 
last 50+ years. 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

The presently codified version of Article V, Sewer Use does not meet the requirements of 
the Florida Administrative Code (FAC). The Utility Department, Wastewater staff has 
been working with the Florida Department of Environment Protection and the City 
Attorney to update the City code to be in compliance with FAC.  

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The FDEP requires the City code to be in compliance with FAC. 
 LEGAL REVIEW: 

Utility Department staff has worked with the City Attorney in preparing this attached 
amendment to Chapter 19, Article V, Sewer Use.  

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the attached Ordinance No. O2013-05 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 

ALTERNATIVES: Is required to be in compliance with the FAC. 
 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of Ordinance O2013-05 
 Copy of new Article V, Sewer Use 

 Copy of document comparing existing Sewer Use Ordinance to proposed Sewer Use 
Ordinance. 

 

1. a. 
Page 1 of 102



-1-

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-05

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA,
REPEALING ARTICLE V OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE CITY OF
WILDWOOD’S CODE OF ORDINANCES IN ITS ENTIRETY
AND ADOPTING A NEW ARTICLE V, CHAPTER 19;
PERTAINING TO SEWER USE; PERTAINING TO
DEFINITIONS; PERTAINING TO ABBREVIATIONS;
PERTAINING TO DIRECTOR; PERTAINING TO PURPOSE
AND POLICY; PERTAINING TO USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS;
PERTAINING TO PRIVATE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL;
PERTAINING TO SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS;
PERTAINING TO DAMAGE; PERTAINING TO POWERS AND
AUTHORITY OF INSPECTORS; PERTAINING TO
AUTHORITY TO DISCONNECT SERVICE; PERTAINING TO
LEGAL REMEDIES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, The City wishes to amend Article V, Chapter 19 of the Code of
Ordinances in order to be in compliance with requirements of the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City Commission
of Wildwood, Florida, as follows:

SECTION 1. Article V, Chapter 19 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is
hereby repealed in its entirety.  This includes Divisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of Article V
of Chapter 19 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances and those portions codified into
Article V included in Sections 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2, 4, 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 5.8, 5.9,
5.10, 5.11, 5.12, 7, 8.1, 8.3, 8.4, 8.5, 8.6, 8.7, 8.8, 10.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.1, 12.2, 12.3, 12.4,
12.5, 12.6, 12.7, Ordinance number 188, which became effective August 24, 1987;
Ordinance number 210, which became effective January 8, 1996; Section 1, Ordinance
249, which became effective January 25, 1993; Section 1, Ordinance number 273, which
became effective January 23, 1995; Section 1, Ordinance number 279, which became
effective August 28, 1995; Sections 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 and
21, Ordinance number 324, which became effective August 10, 1998; Ordinance number
339, which became effective April 26, 1999; and Section 1, Ordinance number 373, which
became effective December 11, 2000.

SECTION 2.  Article V, Chapter 19 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances
attached hereto, is adopted in its entirety.

SECTION 3.  The remainder of Chapter 19 remains in full force and effect.

SECTION 4.   All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and the
same are hereby repealed. 

1. a. 
Page 2 of 102

plaw
Text Box
PUBLIC HEARING - 2ND FINAL READINGORDINANCE NO. O2013-05



-2-

SECTION 5.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall
in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance. 

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its
final adoption by the City Commission.

PASSED AND ORDAINED this ____ day of_______________, 2013, by the City
Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida.

SEAL CITY COMMISSION
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

ATTEST:______________________ ____________________________
    Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor

First Reading: _________________
Second Reading: _________________

Approved as to form:

_______________________________
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney
C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\AAA-LISA DO CS\COW -LAP\ord\2013\O2013.05

1. a. 
Page 3 of 102



 

1 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

Wildwood, Florida, Code of 
Ordinances >> - CODE OF 

ORDINANCES >> Chapter 19 
- UTILITIES >> ARTICLE V. - 

SEWER USE >> DIVISION 1. - 

GENERALLY >> ARTICLE 
V. SEWER USE 

 
DIVISION  1.  

 
GENERAL Sec. 19-181.  Definitions. 

 
 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

Sec. 19-181. - Definitions. 

Sec. 19-182. - Abbreviations. 

Sec. 19-182.1. - Director. 

Sec. 19-183. - Purpose and policy. 

Sec. 19-184. - Use of public sewers required. 

Sec. 19-185. - Private wastewater disposal. 

Sec. 19-186. - Building sewers and connections. 

Sec. 19-187. - Malicious damage. 

Sec. 19-188. - Powers and authority of inspectors. 

Sec. 19-189. - Authority to disconnect service. 

Sec. 19-190. - Legal remedy. 

Secs. 19-191—19-205. - Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 19-181. - Definitions.  

Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the following terms and 
phrases, as used in this article, shall have the meanings hereinafter designated.  
The singular shall include the plural where indicated by the context.  

 
Act or the Act means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the 
Clean Water Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.).  

 
Approval authority means the director in an NPDES state with an approved 

state pre-treatment program and the administrator of the EPA in a non-NPDES 
state or NPDES state without an approved state pretreatment program.  

 

Style Definition: Normal: No widow/orphan
control

Formatted: Left:  1.19", Right:  0.81", Top: 
0.53", Bottom:  0.75", Header distance from
edge:  0", Footer distance from edge:  0.56"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold, Font color:
Auto

Formatted: Space Before:  0.1 pt, After:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single, Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33))

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 9 pt, Bold,
Font color: Gray-80%

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(52,52,52)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.41", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(52,52,52)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.57", First
line:  0", Right:  -0.01", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.15", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 42 of 102



 

2 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

Authorized representativeor Duly Authorized Representative of industrial user may 

be:the User.   

(1) 
A principal executive officer of at least the level of vice-president, if the industrial user If the 
User is a corporation.: 

(a) The president, secretary, treasurer, or a vice-president of the 
corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person 
who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation; 
or 

(b) The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating 
facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management decisions 
that govern the operation of the regulated facility including having the explicit 
or implicit duty of making major capital investment recommendations, and 
initiate and direct other comprehensive measures to assure long-term 
environmental compliance with environmental laws and regulations; can 
ensure that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather 
complete and accurate information for individual wastewater discharge permit 
[or general permit {optional}] requirements; and where authority to sign 
documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance 
with corporate procedures. 

 

(2) 
A  If the User is a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner ofor 
proprietor if the industrial user is a partnership or proprietorship, respectively. 

(3) 
A duly authorized representative of the individual designated above if such representative 

is(3)  If the User is a Federal, State, or local governmental facility:  a director or 
highest official appointed or designated to oversee the operation and 
performance of the activities of the government facility, or their designee. 

(4)  The individuals described in paragraphs 1 through 3 above, may designate a 
Duly Authorized Representative if the authorization is in writing, the 
authorization specifies the individual or position responsible for the overall 
operation of the facilitiesfacility from which the indirect discharge originates.  or 
having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the company, and the 
written authorization is submitted to the City. 

Best Management practices (BMPs) means schedules of activities, prohibitions 
of practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to 
implement the prohibitions listed in Sections 19-207 and 19-208.  BMPs include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site 
runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials 
storage. 

 
Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in 

the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure 
in five days at 20 degrees Celsius, expressed in milligrams per liter.  

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Auto, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line:  0",
Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single, Keep with next

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Auto, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single, Keep
with next

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops:  -0.75", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab
stops:  -0.75", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 43 of 102



 

3 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

 
Building drain means that  part  of the  piping of a building  which collectcollects 

wastewater inside the walls of the  building  and conveys it to outside  the  
building wall.  

 
Building sewer means the extension from the building drain to the public sewer 

or other place of disposal, also called "house connection."  

 
Categorical industrial user means an Industrial User subject to a categorical 
Pretreatment Standard or categorical standard. 

Categorical standards means national categorical pretreatment standards or 
pretreatment standard.  

 
Chemical oxygen demand (COD) means a measure of oxygen equivalent of 

that portion of the organic matter in a sample that is susceptible to oxidation by a 
strong chemical oxidant.  

 
City means the City of Wildwood or the city commission of the city.  

 
City commission means the duly elected officials of the city.  

 
City manager means the person designated by the city commission to 

administer all city activities.  

 
Control authority means the "approval authority," defined in this section, or the 

Director if the city has an approved pretreatment program under the provisions of 
40 CFR 403.11.  

 
Cooling water means the water discharged from any use such as air 

conditioning, cooling or refrigeration, or to which the only pollutant added is heat.  
 

Customer  means  every person  who is responsible  for contracting (expressly 
or implicitly) with the city in obtaining, having or using sewer connections with, or 
sewer taps to, the sewer system of the city and in obtaining, having, or using 
water and other related services furnished by the city for the purpose  of disposing  
of wastewater and sewage through such system. The word "customer" includes 
the occupants of each unit of a multiple-family dwelling unit building  as a 
separate and distinct customer.  

 
Daily maximum means the arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a 

pollutant collected during a calendar day. 

Direct discharge means the discharge of treated or untreated wastewater 
directly to the waters of the state.  

 
Director means director of the POTW.  

 
Easement means an acquired legal right for the specific use of land owned by 

others.  

 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(68,68,68)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 44 of 102



 

4 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA means the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, or where appropriate the term may also be used as a 
designation for the administrator or other duly authorized official of such agency.  

 
Excess strength wastewater means wastewater containing constituents whose 

parameters are in excess of normal wastewater.  
 

Existing source means any source of discharge, the construction or operation of 
which commenced prior to the  publication  by EPA of proposed categorical  
pretreatment standards, which will be applicable to such source if the standard is 
thereafter promulgated in accordance with Section 307 of the Act.  

 
Floatable oil means oil, fat or grease in a physical state such that it will separate 

by gravity from wastewater by treatment in an approved pretreatment facility. A 
wastewater shall be considered free of floatable fat if it is properly pretreated and 
the wastewater does not interfere with the collection system.  

 
Flush toilet means the common sanitary flush commode in general use for the 

disposal of human excrement.  

 
Garbage means the animal and vegetable waste resulting from the handling, 

preparation, cooking and serving of foods.  
 

Grab sample means a sample which is taken from a wastestream without 
regard to the flow in the wastestream and over a period of time not to exceed 
fifteen (15) minutes.  

 
Health officer means the county environmental health director.  
 
Holding tank waste means any waste from holding tanks such as vessels, 

chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, and vacuum-pump tank trucks.  
 

Indirect discharge means the discharge or the introduction of nondomestic 
pollutants from any source regulated under section 307 (b) or (c) of the Act (33 
U.S.C. 1317), into the POTW (including holding tank waste discharged into the 
system).  

 
 Industrial user means a source of indirect discharge.  
 

Industrial wastes means the wastewater from industrial processes as distinct 
from normal wastewater.  

 
Infiltration/Inflow means  groundwater and  surface water which  leaks  into  the  

sewers through cracked pipes, joints,  manholes or other  openings.  
 

Instantaneous maximum allowable discharge limit  means the maximum 
concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time,  determined 
from/and by the analysis of any discrete or composited sample collected, 
independent of the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event.  

 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(42,42,42)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", First
line:  0.15", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(42,42,42)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.39", First
line:  0.15", Right:  0.1", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 45 of 102



 

5 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

Interference means a discharge which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge 
or discharges from other sources, both:  

(1) 

   Inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations, or 
its sludge processes, use or disposal; and 

 

(2) 
  Therefore is a cause  of a violation  of any requirement of the POTW's 

NPDES permit (including  an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation) 
or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal  in compliance with  the 
following statutory provisions and   regulations or  permits issued thereunderthere 
under (or  more   stringent state or  local regulations): Section 405 of the Clean 
Water Act, the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including  title  II,  more  
commonly  referred to  as  the  Resource Conservation  and Recovery Act 
(RCRA), and  including state regulations contained in any state  sludge 
management plan  prepared pursuant to subtitle D of the  SWDA), the Clean Air 
Act, the  Toxic Substances Control  Act, the  Marine Protection, Research and 
Sanctuaries Act and  any  state laws  which  reflect  the  same or  similar subject  
matter as these federal laws.  

 
Local Limit means specific discharge limits developed and enforced by the City 

upon industrial or commercial facilities to implement the general and specific 
discharge prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b). 

Medical waste means isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and 
blood products, pathological wastes, sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, 
surgical wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes, and dialysis wastes.  

 
National categorical pretreatment standard or pretreatment standard means 

any regulation containing pollutant discharge limits promulgated by the EPA in 
accordance with section 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1347) which applies 
to a specific category of industrial users.  

 
National pollution  discharge  elimination system  or NPDES permit  means  a 

permit issued pursuant to section  402 of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1342).  
 

National  prohibitive  discharge  standard   or  prohibitive  discharge  standard  
means  any regulation developed under  the authority of section  307(b) of the Act 
and 40 CFR 403.5.  

 
Natural  outlet  means  any outlet,  including  storm sewers  and  combined 

sewer overflows, into  a watercourse,  pond, ditch, lake or other  body of surface 
or ground water.  

 
New  source means any: 
 
(1)  Any building,  structure, facility,  or installation from which there is or may  

be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after  the 
publication of proposed  pretreatment standards under section 307(c) of the Act 
which will be applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.4", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", First
line:  0.44", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  4.75
pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(42,42,42)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", First
line:  0.44", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  -1.38", Left

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.41", First
line:  0.22", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.41", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.41", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.35", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.11", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.35", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.1", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 46 of 102



 

6 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

promulgated in accordance with that  section. , provided that: 
 

a) The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site 
which no other source is located; or, 

b) The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the 
process or production equipment that causes the discharge of 
pollutants at an Existing Source; or, 

c) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, 
structure, facility, or installation are substantially independent of an 
Existing Source at the same site.  In determining whether these are 
substantially independent, factors such as the extent to which the 
new facility is integrated with the existing plant, and the extent to 
which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the Existing Source, should be considered. 

(2)  Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in 
a modification rather than a New Source if the construction does not create 
a new building, structure, facility, or installation meeting the criteria of 
Section (1) (b) or (c) above but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing 
process or production equipment. 

(3)  Construction of a New Source as defined under this paragraph has 
commenced if the owner or operator has: 

a) Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite 
construction program: 

 i)  Any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or 
equipment; or 

 ii)  Significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, 
or removal of existing buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary 
for the placement, assembly, or installation of new source facilities or 
equipment;  

or 

b)  Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or 
equipment which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time.  
Options to purchase or contracts which can be terminated or modified without 
substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design studies do 
not constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph. 

 
Noncontact  cooling water  means water  used  for cooling which  does   not 

come into direct contact  with any raw material, intermediate product,  waste  
product,  or  finished  product.  

 
Normal  wastewater  means wastewater discharged into the  sanitary sewers in 

which the average concentration  of total  suspended solids  and  BOD is not  
more than  250 mg/l, total phosphorus is not more than 15 mg/l, total nitrogen is 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.09", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 47 of 102



 

7 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

not more than  30 mg/l; COD is not more than 450 mg/l; TSS is not more than  
250 mg/l; and a pH range of 6.5 to 8.0 and for which total flow is not more than  
25,000 gallons per day.  

 
Pass through means a discharge which exits the POTW to a water of the United 

States in quantities or concentrations which alone or in conjunction with a 
discharge or discharges from all other sources, is a cause of a violation of any 
requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the 
magnitude or duration of a violation); or wastewater constituent which is not 
adequately treated by the treatment process resulting in its discharge to the 
receiving environment.  

 
Person means any individual, partnership, copartnershipco-partnership, firm, 

company, governmental entity or any other legal entity, or their legal 
representatives, agents or assigns.  

 
pH means the logarithm (base 10) a measure of the reciprocalacidity or alkalinity of 

the concentration of hydrogen ionsa solution, expressed in grams per liter of 

solutionstandard units.  

 
Pit privy means a shored, vertical pit in the earth completely covered with a 

flytight slab on which is securely located a flytight riser covered with a hinged 
flytight seat and lid.  

 
Pollutant means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, 

garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, heat 
wrecked or discharged equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt and industrial, municipal, 
and agricultural waste discharge into water.  

 
Pollution means the manmade or man-induced alteration of the chemical,   

physical, biological and radiological integrity of water.  
 

POTW treatment plant means that portion of the POTW designed to provide 
treatment to wastewater.  

 
 

Pretreatment or treatment means the reduction of the amount  of pollutants, the 
elimination of pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of pollutants, or the  
alteration of the nature  of pollutant properties in wastewater to a less harmful state 

prior to or in lieu of discharging or otherwise introducing such  pollutants into  a  
POTW.  The reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical or 
biological processes, or by process changes or other means, except  as prohibited  
Rule 62-625.400,410(5),  FAC.  

 
Pretreatment requirements means any substantive or procedural requirement 

related to pretreatment, other than a national pretreatment standard imposed on 
an industrial user.  

 
Pretreatment standards or standards means pretreatment standards shall 

mean prohibited discharge standards, categorical pretreatment standards, and 

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.37", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.09", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.37", First
line:  0.15", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.37", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.37", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 48 of 102



 

8 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

local limits.  

 
Prohibited discharge standards or prohibited discharges means absolute 

prohibitions against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions 
appear in section 19-207.  section 19-207. 

 
Properly shredded means the wastes from the preparation, cooking, and 

dispensing of food that has been shredded  to such a degree that all particles will 
be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, 
with no particle greater than  one-half inch in any  dimension.  

 
Public sewer means a common sewer controlled by a governmental agency or 

public utility.  
 

Publicly owned treatment works (POTW) means a treatment works as defined 
by section 212 of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1292) which is owned in this instance by the 
city. This definition includes any sewers that convey wastewater to the POTW 
treatment plant, but does not include pipes, sewers or other conveyances not 
connected to a facility providing treatment. For the purposes of this article, POTW 
shall also include any sewers that convey wastewaters to the POTW from 
persons outside the city who are, by contract or agreement with the city, users of 
the city's POTW.  

 
Sanitary sewer means a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried wastes from 

residences, commercial building, industrial plants, and institutions together with 
minor quantities of ground, storm and surface waters that are not admitted 
intentionally.  

 
Septic tank means a subsurface impervious tank designed to temporarily retain 

sewage or similar waterborne wastes together with:  

 

(1) 
  A sewer  line  constructed with  soldered  pipe,  with  the  joints sealed,  

connecting  the impervious tank with  a plumbing stub  out; and  
 

(2) 
   A subsurface system  of trenches, piping  and  other  materials constructed to 

drain  the clarified  discharge from  the  tank and  distribute it underground to be 
absorbed  or filtered.  

 
Sewage  means  the  spent water of a community.  The equivalent term is 

"wastewater," as defined  in this section.  
 

Sewer  means  a pipe or conduit  that carries wastewater.  
 

Significant  industrial  user  (SIU)   means any   industrial user   of the  city's  
wastewater disposal system who:  is: 

(1) 

Has  
(1) An Industrial User subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards; or 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.4", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.4", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0",
Space Before:  0.1 pt, After:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(36,36,36)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.41", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 49 of 102



 

9 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

(2) An Industrial User that: 

(a discharge flow ) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand 

(25,000 gallons) gpd or more per average work day; 

(2) 

Has a flow greater than five percent of the flow in the city'sprocess wastewater 
treatment system;to the POTW (excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling and 
boiler blow down wastewater); 

(3) 

Has in his wastes toxic pollutants as defined pursuant to section 307 of the 

Act or Florida Statutes and rules; or 

(4) 

Is found by the city, the state control agency or the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA) to have significant impact, either singly or in 

combination with other contributing industries, on the wastewater treatment 

system, the quality of sludge, the system's effluent quality, or air emissions 

generated by the system; or  

(5) 

Is a categorical industry pursuant to federal law. 

(b) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five (5) percent 
or more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW treatment plant; or 

(c) Is designated as such by the City on the basis that it has a reasonable 
potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement. 

  
Significant  noncompliance  or SNC  means  an SIU  shall  be in  significant 

noncompliance when any one or more of the following criteria are satisfied:  

 

(1) 

  Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits when 66defined 

here as those in which sixty-six percent (66%) or more of theall 

measurements taken for the same pollutant parameter taken during 

a six- (6) month period exceed (by any magnitude) the maximum 

limita numeric Pretreatment Standard or average limit (if applicable) for 

the same pollutant parameter;  

(Requirement, including Instantaneous Limits as defined in Section 2) ; 
 

(2)  Technical review criteria (TRC) violations when 33, defined here 

as those in which thirty-three percent (33%) or more of 

thewastewater measurements taken for each pollutant parameter 

taken during a six- (6) month period equalequals or exceedexceeds 

the product of the maximum limitnumeric Pretreatment Standard or 

average limit (if applicable)Requirement including Instantaneous 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1", Space
Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops: 
-0.75", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 50 of 102



 

10 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

Limits, as defined in Section 2, multiplied by the applicable TRC:  

a. 

Forcriteria (1.4 for BOD, TSS, Total Oil and Grease, TRC = 1.4 or 40 percent over the 

limit;fats, oils and grease, and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH);   

b. 

for all 

(3) Any other pollutants, TRC = 1.2 or 20 percent over the limit; 

(3) 

When the SIU fails to respond within ten days of receipt of a letter of violation (LOV) issued by 

the director;of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by Section 2 
(Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative standard) 
that [the Superintendent] determines 

(4) 

When the SIU fails to accurately report non-compliance; 

(5) 

When the SIU reports false "information"; 

(6) 
When the SIU intentionally or negligently violates a permit condition or requirement; 

(7) 
When the SIU refuses to permit entry to the director or a duly authorized employee for 
inspection, etc., as specified in this article;  

(8) 
When any violation occurs that the director reasonably believes has caused, alone or in 
combination with other discharges, interference (e.g., slug loads) or pass through; or 

endangeredInterference or Pass Through, including endangering the health of the 

POTW employeespersonnel or the general public;  
 

(4)(9) 

When any Any discharge occurs which causesof a pollutant that has caused 
imminent endangerment to human health, welfarethe public or to the environment, or 
resultshas resulted in [the POTW's useSuperintendent’s] exercise of its emergency 
authority to halt or prevent such a discharge;  

(10) 
When violations of industrial 
(5) Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days of the scheduled date, a compliance 
schedule milestone contained in an individual wastewater discharge permit (IWDP) 

[or other required compliance schedules occur such as, but not limited to, failure to 

startgeneral permit] or completeenforcement order for starting construction, 
completing construction, or failure to attainattaining final compliance by the compliance 

schedule date; ; 
 
(6) Failure to provide within forty-five (45) days after the due date, any required 
reports, including baseline monitoring reports, reports on compliance with 
categorical Pretreatment Standard deadlines, periodic self-monitoring reports and 
reports on compliance with compliance schedules; 
 
(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or 
 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38",
Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-80%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(68,68,68)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", Right: 
-0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single, Tab stops:  0.86", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(68,68,68)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(68,68,68)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 51 of 102



 

11 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

(8)(11) 

When periodic compliance reports, base-line monitoring reports or other 

required reports are not received by the director within 30 days after due 

date; or  

(12) 

When any  Any other violation(s), which may include a violation or group of 
violations occurs which, in the judgment of the director, may reasonably be expected to have a 

significant adverse impact onof Best Management Practices, which [the 
Superintendent] determines will adversely affect the operation or implementation of 
the local pretreatment program, the wastewater treatment system, the quality of sludge, 
the system's reclaimed water quality or air emissions generated by the system, or has the 

potential to endanger the POTW employees. . 
 

Significant violation means any violation or group of violations of an industrial 
user's IWDP which establishes significant noncompliance.  

 
Slug means any discharge of water or wastewater which in concentration of any  

given constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any period of duration longer 
than 15 minutes more than five times the average 24-hour concentrations of flows 
during normal operation and shall adversely affect the collection system and/or  
performance of the wastewater facilities.  

 
Spill containment plan means a detailed plan showing facilities and operating 

procedures to provide protection from accidental discharge.  

 
Standard industrial classification (SIC) means a classification pursuant to the 

Standard Industrial  Classification Manual  issued  by the  Executive Office  of  the  
President, Office of Management and Budget, 1972.  

 
Storm drain, sometimes termed storm sewer, means a drain or sewer for 

conveying water, groundwater, subsurface water,  or unpolluted water  from  any 
source.  

 
Stormwater means any flow occurring during or following any form of natural 

precipitation and resulting therefrom.  

 
Suspended solids means total suspended matter that either floats on the 

surface  of, or is in suspension in, water, wastewater, or other liquids, and that is  
removable by  laboratory filtering as prescribed in Standard Methods for the 
Examination of Water  and Wastewater and referred to as nonfilterable residue.  

 
Total nitrogen  (TN)  means  TKN + nitrate/nitrite.  
 

Total toxic organics (TTO) means the summation of all quantifiable values, 
greater than 0.01 mg/l, of toxic organic  substances identified   by the  EPA for  
electroplating point  source categories listed  in  40 CFR 413.02(i)  and  for metal  
finishing subcategories listed  in 40 CFR 433.11ll(e), or identified in any 
equivalent state law.  

 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38",
Right:  -0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single, Tab stops:  0.86", Left

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.44", First
line:  0.13", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.43", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.43", First
line:  0.16", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 52 of 102



 

12 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

Toxic pollutant means any pollutant or combination of pollutants listed as toxic  
in regulations promulgated by the administrator of the Environmental Protection  
Agency (EPA) under the provision of CWA 307(1) or other acts.  

 
Unpolluted water means water of quality equal to or better than the effluent  

criteria in effect or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality 
standards and would not  be benefitted by discharge to the  sanitary sewers and  
wastewater treatment facilities provided.  

 
User means any person who contributes, causes or permits the contribution of 

wastewater into the city POTW.  
 

Wastewater means the spent water of a community. From  the  standpoint of 
source, it may be  a  combination  of  the   liquid   and   water-carried  wastes  
from   residences,  commercial buildings, industrial plants, and  institutions, 
together with  any  groundwater, surface water and  stormwater that may  be 
present.  

 
Wastewater facilities means the structures, equipment, and processes required 

to collect, carry away, and treat domestic and industrial wastes and dispose of the 
effluent.  

 
Watercourse means a natural or artificial channel for the passage of water either 
continuously or intermittently.  

 

Waters of the state means all  streams, lakes, ponds,  marshes, 

watercourses,  waterways, wells, springs, reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation systems, 

drainage systems and all other bodies or  accumulations of water,  surface or  

underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which  are  contained within, 

flow through, or border upon the  state or any portion.  

 (Ord. No. 188, § 1.2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-
28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 1, 8-10-98; Ord. No. 339, 4-26-99)  Cross reference-
Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2. 

Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2.  

Sec. 19-182. - Abbreviations.  

 
The following abbreviations shall have the designated meanings:  
 
BOD, biochemical oxygen demand.  
 

CA, city attorney.  

 
CFR,  Code of Federal Regulations.  
civil action 
CIVIL ACTION, civil litigation against a user seeking equitable relief, monetary 
penalties and actual damages.  
 
COD, chemical oxygen demand.  

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.43", First
line:  0.18", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 53 of 102



 

13 
 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

criminal action 
CRIMINAL ACTION, pursuing punitive measures against an  individual and/or  
organization through a court  of law.  

 
D, waste water director.  

 

EPA, United States Environmental Protection Agency.  

FDEP, Florida Department of Environmental Protection.  
fine, 
FINE,  monetary penalty assessed by the city.  
 
I, inspector (environmental specialist).  

 
IWDP, industrial wastewater discharge permit.  
 
l, liter.  
late fee 
LATE FEE, monetary penalty imposed for late reporting.  
 
LOV, letter  of violation.  
mg 
MG, milligrams.  
mg 
MG/l, milligrams per liter.  
 
NOSNC, notice of significant noncompliance.  
 
NPDES,  national pollutant discharge elimination system.  
 
POTW, publicly owned treatment works.  
publication 
PUBLICATION, publication in the  annual list of significant violators.  
 
SIC, standard industrial classification.  
 
SIU, significant industrial user.  
 
SNC, significant noncompliance.  

 
SWDA, Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. 6901, et seq.)  
TSS, total  suspended solids.  

USC, United  States Code.  

 

(Ord. No. 188, § 1.3, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95;  Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-
95)  

 

Sec. 19-182.1. - Director.  

 

(a) 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 54 of 102



 

14 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

  Director and staff./or Authorized Staff.  The director shall be responsible for the 
administration and enforcement of all sections of this division and shall be 
responsible for the operation of the POTW.  

 

(b) 
  Records.  The director shall keep all records required under this division 

including records of all IWDPs as required by applicable state and federal 
regulations.  

 

(c) 
 Public participation requirements. The director shall comply with all applicable 

public participation requirements of section 101(e) of the Act and 40 CFR Part 25, 
in the enforcement of national categorical pretreatment standards.  

 

(d) 
  Public notice. The director shall provide individual notice and opportunity to 

comment to persons or groups who request in writing notification of local limits 
development.  

 

(e) 
  Public notification. The director shall annually publish in the largest daily 

newspaper of general circulation within the county a list of the SIUs identified as 
being in significant noncompliance with applicable pretreatment requirements or 
standards at least once during the previous calendar year. The notification shall 
also summarize any enforcement actions taken against the SIUs during the same 
12 months.  (Ord . No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95) 

(Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-183. - Purpose and policy. Policy. 

 

(a) 
  This article sets forth uniform requirements for direct and indirect contributors 

into the wastewater collection and treatment system for the city and enables the 
city to comply with all applicable state and federal laws required by the Clean 
Water Act of 1977 and the general pretreatment regulations (Rule 62-625, FAC). 
The objectives of this article are:  

 

(1) 
  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater 

system which will interfere with the operation of the system or contaminate the 
resulting sludge.  

 

(2) 
  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater 

system which will pass through the system, inadequately treated, into receiving 
waters or the atmosphere or otherwise be incompatible with the system.  

 

(3) 
  To protect the general public and wastewater facility personnel. 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.42", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(24,24,24)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Italic, Font color:
Custom Color(RGB(24,24,24)), Border: : (No
border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 55 of 102



 

15 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

 

(4) 
  To improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewaters and 

sludgessludge from the system. 
 

(5) 
  To provide for equitable distribution of the cost of the municipal 

wastewater system. 
 

(6) 
  To enable the wastewater facility to comply with its FDEP wastewater 

facility permit conditions, residuals use and disposal requirements and any other 
federal or state laws.  

 

(b) 
  This  article provides for  the   regulation  of  direct and   indirect  contributors 
to  the municipal wastewater system through the  issuance of permits to certain 
nondomestic  users and  through enforcement activities, requires user reporting, 
assumes that existing customer's capacity  will  not   be  preempted,  and   
provides for  the   setting of  fees for  the  equitable distribution of costs resulting 
from the  program established herein.  

 

(c) 

  This article shall apply to the city and to persons outside the city who are, 

by contract or agreement with  the city, users of the  city POTW. Except as 

otherwise provided herein the director shall administer, implement, and 

enforce the provisions of this article.  
 (Ord. No. 188, § 1.1, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-
28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 2, 8-10-98)  

 

Sec. 19-184. - Use of public sewers required.  

 

(a) 
  All premises shall be provided, by the owner thereof, with at least one toilet. All 
toilets shall be kept clean and in a sanitary working condition.  

 

(b) 
  No person shall dispose of human excrement except in a toilet. 

 

(c) 
 It shall be unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the city, or in any area 
under the jurisdiction of the city, any wastewater or other polluted waters, except 
where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with subsequent 
provisions of this article.  

 

(d) 
  Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain any 
privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for the 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(63,63,63)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", First
line:  0.5", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(63,63,63)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", First
line:  0.5", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single, Tab stops:  0.86", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(45,45,45)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(63,63,63)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", First
line:  0.5", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(63,63,63)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(63,63,63)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(45,45,45)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 56 of 102



 

16 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

disposal of wastewater.  

 

(e) 
  The owner  of all houses,  buildings, or properties used  for  human occupancy, 
employment, recreation, or other  purposes situated within  the city jurisdiction 
and abutting on any street, alley, or right-of-way  in  which  there is not  located  
or may   in. the  future  be located a public sanitary sewer of the city, is hereby 
required at the owner's expense to install suitable toilet  facilities  therein.  

 

(f) 
  All sinks,  dishwashing machines, lavatories, basins, showerbaths,shower baths,  
bathtubs, laundry tubs,  washing machines, and similar plumbing fixtures or 
appliances shall be connected to the public  sewer;  provided,  that where   no  
sewer  is available, septic  tanks or  other  private subsurface disposal  facilities, 
approved  in  accordance with  all applicable laws, may be used.  

 

(g) 
  The customer shall be notified when the sewer is available. 

 

(1) 
  Sewage  shall  be considered available to an  existing single-family dwelling 

when the dwelling  can  be connected   by gravity flow  to  a line  in  any 
public  right-of-way  or easement which  passes the  property at any  point.  

 

(2) 
  Sewage shall be considered available to any new single-family dwelling when 

the dwelling can be connected by the installation of 200 linear feet of 
gravity flow line from the nearest point of the property.  

 

(h) 

  Sewer charges shall be in effect upon notification of the availability of 

sewer service. Even if the sewer system is available, if the City has 

executed a contract that allows continued use of a properly operating 

existing septic tank, as long as the terms of the contract are met and the 

existing septic tank is providing adequate disposal, the terms of the 

contract will apply. 

 

(i)  

Sewer charges shall be in effect upon notification of the availability of 

sewer service.   (Ord. No. 188, § 2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; 

Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  
 
 

Sec. 19-185. - Private wastewater disposal.  

 

(a) 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38",
Hanging:  0.02", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.41", First
line:  0.03", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", Right: 
-0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.59",
Hanging:  0.33", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(52,52,52)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.59",
Hanging:  0.33", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  1", First line: 
0", Right:  0", Space Before:  2.4 pt, Line
spacing:  At least 15.6 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Gray-85%, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Auto, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before:  0
pt, After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 57 of 102

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Text Box
NEWLANGUAGEINSERTED

plaw
Line



 

17 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

  Where a public sanitary sewer is not available under the provisions of 
section 19-184, section 19-184, the building sewer shall be connected to a private 
wastewater disposal system complying with the provisions of this section.  No 
person shall construct a septic tank or other wastewater disposal facility without 
prior approval from the city manager's office. The availability of sewer is defined 
in section 19-184 section 19-184. 

 

(b) 
  Septic tanks shall be constructed, repaired, altered, enlarged and 

maintained in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the county 
health officer.  

 

(c) 
  No person shall construct, repair, alter or enlarge any septic tank unless he 

receives approval by the wastewater director and shall hold a valid permit for 
such work issued by the county health officer.  

 

(d) 
  The type, capacities, location, and layout of a private wastewater disposal 

system shall comply with all regulations of the state department of environmental 
protection and all other applicable regulations. No septic tank or cesspool shall be 
permitted to discharge to any natural outlet.  

 

(e) 
  No septic tank or other subsurface disposal facility shall be installed where 

a public sewer is accessible to the premises involved.  
 

(f) 
 At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a 

private wastewater disposal system, a direct connection shall be made to the 
public sewer within 30 days if the property is located within the city and 120 days if 
the propertyProperty is located outside of the city after notice and no further 
connection or interconnection withWith such previously used facility shall be 
allowed. Even if the sewer system is available, if the City has executed a contract 
that allows continued use of a properly operating existing septic tank, as long as 
the terms of the contract are met and the existing septic tank is providing 
adequate disposal, the terms of the contract will apply. 

 

(g) 
 The owner(s) shall operate and maintain the private wastewater disposal 

facilities in a sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the city.  

 

(h) 
   Every flush toilet shall be connected to a public sewer where available or to 

a septic tank. Flush toilets shall be provided at all times, with sufficient running 
water under pressure to flush the toilet clean after each use.  

 

(i) 
   No pit privy shall be installed. 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.43", First
line:  0.32", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 58 of 102

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Text Box
NEW LANGUAGE INSERTED

plaw
Line



 

18 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

 

(j) 
  Discharge of septic tanks into sewer system. 

 

(1) 
   Restricted. It shall be unlawful  to empty, dump, throw or otherwise 
discharge, into any manhole,  catch  basin  or  other  opening,  into  
the  city sewer  system, or any system connected with and 
discharging into the sewer system, the contents of any septic tank, 
sludge,  sewage  or other  similar matter or material, except as 
provided in paragraph (2).  

 

(2) 
  Permits. The director is hereby authorized to grant permits to 
discharge the contents of septic tanks (from domestic sources only) 
at locations specified by him and under his supervision. Such permits 
may be revoked at any time if, in the opinion of the director, continued 
dumping of such matter into the sewers will be injurious to the sewer 
system or treatment processes.  

 

(3) 
  Charges. A charge shall be made for the privilege of dumping 
contents of septic tanks, as provided in separate rules. A record shall 
be kept of such dumpingsdumping and statements shall be payable 
within ten days after rendition. Failure to pay the amounts due within 
such ten-day period shall be cause for revoking the permit.  

 

(k) 
  Any premises that have a septic tank, privy or any other sewage, industrial 

waste, or liquid waste disposal system, located thereon that does not function in a 
sanitary manner shall be corrected within 30 days from the receipt of written 
notification from the director that the system is not functioning in a sanitary 
manner, and order that the system be corrected.  

 

(l) 
  Premises  with  private  water  systems shall  not be connected  with  the  

public sewage system unless  approved  by the director., 

 

(m) 
  No statement contained in this section shall be construed to interfere with 

any additional requirements that may be imposed by the county health officer or 
director.  (Ord. No. 188, § 3, 8-24-87; Ord . No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 
1, 8-28-95) 

(Ord. No. 188, § 3, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-186. - Building sewers and connections.  

 
 

(a) 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", First line: 
0.38", Right:  -0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31", First
line:  0.01", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(65,65,65)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31",
Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(65,65,65)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31",
Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", First
line:  0.38", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", First
line:  0.37", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(65,65,65)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.39", First
line:  0.36", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Gray-85%,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Gray-85%, Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 59 of 102



 

19 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

  Permit required. No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections 
with or opening into, use, alter, or disturb any public sewer or appurtenance 
thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the director.  

 

(b) 
  Application; fee. The owner or his agent shall make application on a special 

form furnished by the city.  The permit application shall be supplemented by any 
plans, specifications, or other information considered pertinent in the judgment of 
the director. A permit and inspection fee as specified elsewhere shall be paid at 
the time the application is filed.  

 

(c) 
 Costs; indemnification. All costs and expenses incidental to the installation and 

connection of the building sewer shall be borne by the owner.  The owner shall 
indemnify the city from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be 
occasioned by the installation of the building sewer.  

 

(d) 
  Separate buildings. A separate and independent building sewer shall be 

provided for every building; except where one building stands at the rear of 
another on an interior lot and no private sewer is available or can be constructed 
to the rear  building through an adjoining alley, court, yard, or driveway, the front  
building sewer may be extended to the rear  building. However, additional 
connection fees may be required. The city does not and will not assume any 
obligation or responsibility for damage caused by or resulting from any such single 
connection aforementioned.  

 

(e) 
  Old building sewers. Old building sewers may be used in connection with new 

buildings only when they are found, on examination and testing by the director 
and community development department, to meet all requirements of this article.  

 

(f) 
 Construction. The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building 

sewer, and the methods to be used in construction shall all conform to the 
requirements of the building and plumbing codes or other applicable rules and 
regulations of the city. In the absence of code provisions or in amplification 
thereof, the materials and procedures set forth in appropriate specifications of the 
ASTM and WPCF Manual of Practice No. 9 shall apply.  

 

(g) 
  Elevation; flow of sewage. Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be 

brought to the building at an elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in 
which any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, 
sanitary sewage carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved 
means and discharged to the building sewer.  

 

(h) 
  Surface runoff, groundwater. No person shall make connection of roof 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.39", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(36,36,36)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.39", First
line:  0.18", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(22,22,22)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 60 of 102



 

20 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

downspouts, foundation drains, areaway drains, air conditioner condensation 
lines, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building sewer or 
building drain which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary 
sewer, unless such connection is approved for purposes of disposal of polluted 
surface drainage.  

 

(i) 
  Excavations guarded.  All excavations for building sewer installations shall be 

adequately guarded with barricades and lights in compliance with all OSHA 
requirements so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, 
parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be 
restored in a manner satisfactory to the city.  

 

(j) 
 Sewer availability; costs. The city commission will define the availability of 

sewers and costs associated with sewer permits or construction.  

 

(k) 
  Manner of connection. The connection of the building sewer into the public 

sewer shall conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing codes or 
other applicable rules and regulations of the city, or the procedures set forth in 
appropriate specifications of the ASTM and the WPCF Manual of Practice No. 9. 
All such connections shall be made gastight and watertight and verified by proper 
testing. Any deviation from the prescribed procedures and materials must be 
approved by the director before installation.  

 

(l) 
   Infiltration, inflow. If any customer sewer connection permits entrance of 

infiltration or inflow, the director may:  

(1) 

 
(i)  Require the owner to repair the sewer. 

(2) 

 
(ii)  Charge the owner a sewer rate that reflects the additional cost of 
sewage treatment from the owner's property. 

(3) 

 
(iii)  Require the owner to disconnect his sewer from the city's sewer 
system. 

 

(m) 

    Sewer service unavailable. Where sewer service is unavailable, all cost 

associated with permit, construction and extension shall be the 

responsibility of the permitting applicant.  
(Ord. No. 188, § 4, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-

95; Ord. No. 324, § 3, 8-10-98)  
 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(31,31,31)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Italic, Font color:
Custom Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No
border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(31,31,31)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(31,31,31)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.36", First
line:  0.18", Right:  0.09", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 61 of 102



 

21 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

Sec. 19-187. - Malicious damage.  

 

(a) 
  No person shall  maliciously, willfully,  or negligently break, damage, destroy,  

uncover, deface, or  tamper with  any  structure, appurtenance or  equipment 
which is  a  part of the wastewater facilities.  

 

(b) 
  Any person violating this provision shall be subject to immediate arrest under 

charge of disorderly conduct and/or other appropriate charge and shall be 
responsible for any loss of revenue or monetary expenditures needed for repairs 
brought about by their actions and for any fines or penalties imposed upon the city 
arising from such damage.  

 

(c) 
  The city shall be entitled to attorney's fees and costs in any action or 

proceeding brought to enforce this provision or to recover damages caused by a 
violation of this article.  (Ord. No. 188, §6, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; 
Ord.  No. 279 §1, 8-28-95) Cross reference--Offenses and miscellaneous 
provisions, Ch. 13. 

(Ord. No. 188, § 6, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Cross reference— Offenses and miscellaneous provisions, ch. 13.  

Sec. 19-188. -  Powers and authority of inspectors.  
 

(a) 
  Duly  authorized employees  of the  city  bearing proper  credentials and  

identification shall  be admitted with permission from proper authorities to all 
properties for the purposes of inspection, observation,  measurement, sampling  
and  testing pertinent to discharge  to the sewer  system  in accordance with  the  
provisions of the  article.  

 

(b) 
  While  performing  the  necessary work  on  private properties  referred   to 

herein,  the authorized employees  of the  city  shall  observe  all safety rules  
applicable to  the  premises established by the company, and the company shall  
be held harmless for injury or death to the employees. The city shall indemnify the 
company against loss or damage to its property by city employees  and  against 
liability claims and demands for personal injury or property  damage asserted 
against the company,  except  as such  may be caused  by negligence or failure  
of the company  to maintain safe conditions  as required by this  article.  

 

(c) 
  Duly authorized employees of the city bearing proper credentials and 

identification shall be permitted to enter all private properties through which the 
city holds an easement for the purposes of, but not limited to, inspection, 
observation, measurement, sample, repair, and maintenance of any portion of the 
wastewater facilities lying within such easement.  All entry and subsequent work, 
if any, on such easement shall be done in full accordance with the terms of the 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color:
Custom Color(RGB(31,31,31)), Border: : (No

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.37", Right: 
-0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(31,31,31)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.37", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.37", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.38", First
line:  0.17", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(31,31,31)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Custom Color(RGB(49,49,49)), Border: : (No
border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 62 of 102



 

22 
 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

duly negotiated easement pertaining to the private property involved.  (Ord. No. 
188, § 7, 8-24-87; Ord.  No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord.  No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95) 

 
(Ord. No. 188, § 7, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-189. - Authority to disconnect service.  

 
The city reserves the right to terminate water and wastewater disposal services 

and disconnect a customer from the system when:  

 

(1) 
  Acids or chemicals damaging to the sewer lines or treatment process are 

released into the sewer causing rapid deterioration of these structures or 
interfering with proper conveyance and treatment of wastewater;  

 

(2) 
  A governmental agency informs the city that the effluent from the 

wastewater treatment plant is no longer of a quality permitted for discharge 
into the environment, and it is found that the customer is delivering 
wastewater to the city's system that is not sufficiently treated or requires 
treatment that is not provided by the city as normal domestic treatment; or  

 

(3) 
  The customer: 

 

a. 
  Discharges industrial waste or wastewater that is in violation of the  

permit issued  by city; 
 

b. 
  Discharges wastewater at an uncontrolled, variable rate in sufficient 

quantity to cause an imbalance in the wastewater treatment systems;  
 

c. 
  Fails to pay monthly bills for water and sanitary sewer services when 

due; 

 

d. 
  Repeats a discharge of prohibited wastes into public sewers; or 

 

e. 

    Fails to apply for and obtain proper permits. 
  (Ord. No. 188, § 11, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 

1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 4, 8-10-98)  

 

Sec. 19-190. - Legal remedy.  

 
In  the event  the city is required to disconnect service because of discharging 

by a customer or user into the POTW of any substance causing damage to the 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 63 of 102



 

23 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

POTW including, but not limited to, any acids or chemicals damaging the sewer 
lines or  treatment process; any substances which have caused the effluent from 
the  wastewater treatment plant to no longer be of a quality  permitted for 
discharge into the environment; any discharge, industrial waste or wastewater that 
is in violation of  the permit issued by the city; any discharges of wastewater at an 
uncontrolled, variable rate in sufficient quantity to cause an imbalance in the 
wastewater treatment system; or any  discharge of prohibited waste, which results 
in any fines  or penalties being  assessed against the  city, the  city shall have the 
right to collect from the  user  or customer the  cost of repair of any  damage to 
the system caused by the materials which  led to the  disconnection. The  city 
shall also  be entitled to recover any fine or penalty assessed  against the  city  
assessed against  the   city  as  a  result  of  the  discharge by any regulatory 
agency  with  jurisdiction from  the customer causing the discharge. If the  city is 
forced  to  file an  action  to  enforce this these  provisions, the  city  shall be  
entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and  costs.  
(Ord.  No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95;  Ord.  No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95;  Ord.  No. 324,  § 5, 8-
10-98)  

 

Secs. 19-191—-19-205. - Reserved.  

 
DIVISION - CODE OF ORDINANCES >> Chapter 19 - UTILITIES >> ARTICLE V. - SEWER USE >> 

DIVISION 2. - RESTRICTED USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS >>  

DIVISION 2. - RESTRICTED USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS  

Sec. 19-206. - Unpolluted waters. 

Sec. 19-207. - Prohibited discharges generally. 

Sec. 19-208. - Restricted discharges. 

Sec. 19-209. - Action by city. 

Sec. 19-210. - Interceptors. 

Sec. 19-211. - Pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities. 

Sec. 19-212. - Significant industrial users. 

Sec. 19-213. - Discharge into storm sewer. 

Sec. 19-214. - Cooling or condensing water. 

Sec. 19-215. - Information provided by industrial users. 

Sec. 19-216. - Special agreements. 

Sec. 19-217. - Federal or state test procedures. 

Secs. 19-218—19-235. - Reserved. 

 
 

Sec. 19-206. - Unpolluted waters.  

2. 
 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Auto, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before: 
0.6 pt, After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold, Font color:
Auto

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33))

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 9 pt, Bold,
Font color: Gray-80%

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 64 of 102



 

24 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

RESTRICTED USE  OF PUBLIC SEWERS 
 
Sec. 19-206. Unpolluted  waters. 

 

No  person   shall discharge or  cause to  be  discharged any   unpolluted  

waters such  as stormwater, groundwater, roof runoff,  subsurface drainage, or 

cooling  water to any sewer.  

(Ord.  No. 188, § 5.1,  8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279,  § 1, 
8-28-95)  

 

Sec. 19-207. - Prohibited discharges generally.  

 

(a) 
  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following 

described waters or wastes to any public sewers: 
 

(1) 

    Any substances which  by reason  of their nature or quantity are, or 
may be, sufficient either alone or  by interaction with  other substances to 
cause fire or explosion  or be injurious in any other way to the  POTW or its 
operation. In no case shall pollutants or wastestreams with  a closed  cup  
flashpoint of less  than 140  degrees Fahrenheit (60 degrees Celsius), as 
determined by the test methods specified  in 40 CFR 261.21, be discharged 
to  the  POTW. At no time shall two successive readings on an  explosion 
hazard meter at the  point of discharge into the system (or at any  point  in 
the system) be  more  than five  percent, nor  any  single reading over  ten  
percent, of the  lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter.  Prohibited materials 
include, but are not limited to, gasoline, kerosene,  naphtha,  benzene, 
toluene,  xylene,  ethers, alcohols,  ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, 
perchlorates,  bromates,  carbides, hydrides and  sulfides  and  any  other 
substances which  constitute a fire   hazard or  a  hazard to the system.  

 

(2) 
    Any waters containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in 

sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with  other wastes, to injury 
or interfere with any waste treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans 
or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any  hazard in  the  receiving 
waters of the  wastewater treatment plant.  

 

(3) 
    Pollutants which  will  cause corrosion or structural damage to the  

treatment  works, but  in  no cases discharges with  a  pH lower than 6.5 or 
higher than 8.0  be allowed, unless the works is specifically designed to 
accommodate such discharge.  

 

(4) 
  Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of 

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic, Font color:
Custom Color(RGB(54,54,54)), Border: : (No
border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", First line: 
0.17", Right:  0.08", Space Before:  0 pt, After: 
0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.39", Right: 
-0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(54,54,54)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.38", First line: 
0.17", Right:  0.07", Space Before:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(33,33,33)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(54,54,54)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  4.3
pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(35,35,35)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(21,21,21)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.05", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(35,35,35)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.06", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(21,21,21)), Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 65 of 102



 

25 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

causing obstruction to the flow in sewers, or other interference with the 
proper operation of the wastewater facilities such as, but not limited to, 
ashes, bones, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, 
feathers, tar, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch 
manure, hair and fleshings, entrails, and paper dishes, cups, milk containers, 
etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders.  

 

(5) 

  Petroleum oil,  non-biodegradable cutting  oil  or  products of  

mineral oil  origin  in amounts that will cause interference or  pass  

through.  
 (Ord. No. 188, § 5.2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 249, § 1, 1-25-93; Ord. No. 273, 

§ 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord.  No. 324,  § 6, 8-10-98)  
 

Sec. 19-208. - Restricted discharges.  

 
The following described substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be 

limited in discharges to municipal waste systems to concentrations or quantities 
which will not harm either the sewers, wastewater treatment process or 
equipment, will not have an adverse effect on the receiving stream, or will not 
otherwise endanger life, limb, public property, or constitute a nuisance.  The 
city manager may set limitations lower than the limitations established in the 
regulations listed below, if, in his opinion, such more severe limitations are 
necessary to meet the above objectives.  In forming his opinion as to 
acceptability, the city manager will give consideration to such factors as the 
quantity of subject waste in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, 
materials of construction of the sewers, the wastewater process employed, 
capacity of the wastewater treatment plant, degree of treatability of the waste in 
the wastewater treatment plant, and other pertinent factors.   The limitations or 
restrictions on materials or characteristics of waste of wastewater discharged to 
the sanitary sewer are as follows:  

( 

1) 
 Any substance having a temperature which will inhibit 

biological activity in the POTW treatment plant resulting in interference, but 
in no case wastewater with a temperature at the introduction into the POTW 
which exceeds 40 degrees Celsius (104 degrees Fahrenheit). Unless a higher 
temperature is allowed under the user'suser’s IWDP, no user shall discharge 

into any sewer line or other appurtenance of the POTW, wastewater with a 
temperature exceeding 65.5 degrees Celsius (150 degrees Fahrenheit).  

( 

2) 
 Any substance which is harmful to the wastewater collection 

or treatment system, or is hazardous to the wastewater system because it 
contains flammable or explosive liquids, solids, or gases which by reason of 
their nature or quantity are, or may be, sufficient either along or by 
interaction with other substances to cause fire, or explosion or be injurious in 
any other way to the wastewater system or to the operation of the 
wastewater system.  At no time, shall two successive readings on an 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(61,61,61)), Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 66 of 102



 

26 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

explosive hazard meter, at the point of discharge into the system (or at any 
point in the system) be more than five percent nor any single reading over 
ten percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter. At no time, shall 
two successive readings on an explosive hazard meter, at the point of discharge into the 
system (or at any point in the system) be more than five percent nor any single reading 

over ten percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter. Such materials may 
exclude, but are not limited to gasoline, kerosene, naptha, benzene, toluene, 
xylene, ethers, alcohols, keytones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, 
perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides and sulfides and any other 
substances which the city, state, or EPA has notified the user is a fire hazard, 
a health hazard, or a hazard to the system.  

( 

3) 
 Wastewater containing more than 100 milligrams per liter of oils, 

fat or grease or any other combination thereof. 
( 

4) 
 Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. Garbage 

grinders may be connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, 
restaurants, hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places where 
garbage originalsoriginates from the preparation of food in kitchens for the 
purpose of consumption on the premises or when served by caterers.  

( 

5) 
Any All   wastewater discharges  discharge   exceeding categorical 

standards or alternatively having an excess of:  local   limits   for   metallic 
substances. 

*  
  Local limits shall be set by resolution.  The established local 

limits apply at the point where the wastewater is discharged to the W WF. All 

 Instantaneous Maximum 
 

Limit in Milligrams 
 

Parameter Per Liter* 

Arsenic 2.5 

Cadmium 0.4 

Chromium, total 6.5 

Copper 0.6 

Cyanide 2.3 

Lead 13.0 

Molybdenum 0.3 

Nickel 6.1 

Selenium 0.9 

Silver 6.4 

Zinc 3.7 

BOD 6,056 plant design criteria 

TSS 2,115 plant design criteria 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.25 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  -1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  -1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,

Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Condensed by  0.5 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  -1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.35 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.35 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.75", First
line:  0.25", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0 pt,
Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  -1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 67 of 102



 

27 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

concentrations for metallic substances are for total metalsmetal unless 
indicated otherwise indicated. In the exercise of. At his or her discretion, the director 
may impose mass limitations in addition to, or in place of the concentration- 
based limitations above. . 

( 

  A copy of the approved local limits is available upon requested at 
the following location: City of Wildwood Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

6) 

 Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances 
exceeding limits, which may be established by the Director. 

( 

7) 
 Any radioactive or isotopes of such halflifehalf-life or concentrations 

as may exceed limits established in compliance with applicable state or 
federal regulations.  

( 

8) 
 Quantities of flow, concentration, or both which constitute a "“slug"” 

as defined in section 19-181 Section 19-181. 
( 

9) 
 Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amendable 

to treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed, 
or are amendable to treatment only to such degree that the wastewater 
treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies 
having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters.  

( 

10) 
 Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or 

wastes in the public sewer system, release obnoxious gases, form solids 
which interfere with the collection system, or create a condition deleterious 
to structures and treatment process.  

( 

11) 
 Wastewater, which does not constitute normal wastewater as, 

defined by this ordinance. 
( 

12) 
 Any substances that include or will cause pass through or 

interference. 

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.3, 8-24-87; ; Ord. No. 249, § 1, 1-25-93; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 

8-28-95; Ord. No. 373, § 1, 12-11-00; Ord. No. O2009-21, § 1, 12-14-09)  

Cross reference— Solid waste and weeds, ch. 15.  

Sec. 19-209. - Action by city.  

(a) 

If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the 

public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.4 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Condensed by  0.65 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Condensed by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 68 of 102



 

28 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

enumerated in this division of this article, and which in the judgment of the city 

manager or director, may have a deleterious effect upon the wastewater facilities, 

processes, equipment or receiving waters, or which otherwise create a hazard to life 

or constitute a public nuisance, the city may:  

(1) 

Reject the wastes. 

(2) 

Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public 

sewers. 

(3) 

Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge. 

(4) 

Require surcharge payment to cover added costs of handling and treating the 

waters. 

(5) 

Require payment of the cost of repair of any part of the system damaged by 

such discharge. 

(6) 

Require pass through payment of any fine or penalty assessed against the 

city as a result of such discharge. 

(b) 

When considering the above alternatives, the city manager or director shall give 

consideration to the economic impact of each alternative on the discharger. If 

pretreatment or equalization of waste flows is permitted, the design and installation of 

the plants and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the city 

manager and director.  

(c) 

In any action brought by the city to enforce this section, the city shall be entitled to 

recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.4, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-210. - Interceptors.  
 

(a) 
  Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the 
director they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing 
floatable grease in excessive amounts, sand, or other harmful ingredients; 
except that such interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or 
dwelling units.  All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the 
director and shall be located as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning 
and inspection. All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the director 

and shall be located as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. In 
the maintaining of these interceptors the owner shall be responsible for the 
proper removal and disposal by appropriate means of the captured material and 
shall maintain records of the dates and means of disposal which are subject to 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Right:  -0.01",
Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Expanded by 
0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Expanded by 
0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Expanded by 
0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Right:  -0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 69 of 102



 

29 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted ...

review by the director.  Any removal and hauling of the collected materials not 
performed by owner'sowner’s personnel must be performed by currently licensed 
waste disposal firms.  
 

(b) 
  If any person fails to comply with this section and said failure results in damage 
to the city system, the city shall be entitled to recover the cost of repair of the 
system from said person and any fines or penalties assessed against the city as 
a result of such failure.  
 

(c) 
  In any action brought by the city to enforce this section, the city shall be entitled 
to reasonable attorney'sattorney’s fees and costs. 
(Ord. No. 188, § 5.5, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95) 

  

Sec. 19-211. - Pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities.  

Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided or required for any 

waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective 

operation by the owner at his expense.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.6, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-212. - Significant industrial users. Industrial Users. 
 
 All significant industrial users discharging to the city sewer system shall comply 
with the following:  

 

(1) 
 In order to  provide for  accurate sampling  and  measurement  

of industrial wastes, each designated discharger shall provide and maintain, 
on each of its industrial waste outlet sewers, a large manhole for sampling, 
or other devices acceptable to the city to be located outside or near its 
plant boundary line.  If inside of the plant fence, there shall be a gate near 
the sampling chamber with a key furnished to the city. There shall be ample 
room provided in each sampling chamber to enable convenient inspection 
and sampling by the city or its agent. The sampling port shall be of a design 
approved by the wastewater director.  

 

(2) 
 Each sampling chamber shall contain a Parshall flume, 

accurate weir, or other approved device, with a recording and 
totalizing register for measurement of the liquid quantity; or the metered 
water supply to the industrial plant may be used as the liquid quantity 
where it is substantiated that the metered water supply and waste 
quantities are approximately the same, or where a measurable 
adjustment can be made in the metered supply to determine the 
liquid quantity.  The measuring, totalizing, recording devices are to be 
supplied, installed, and maintained by the owner.  All wastewater 
samples must be representative of the User’s discharge. Wastewater 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Right:  -0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5",
Right:  -0.01", Space Before:  0 pt, Line
spacing:  single

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

1. a. 
Page 70 of 102



 

30 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

monitoring flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, 
kept clean, and maintained in good working order at all times. The 
failure of the User to keep its monitoring facility in good working 
order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that sample results are 
unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
Sec. 19-242.  Accidental discharge/slug control plans. 

 
(a) Each user shall provide protection from accidental or slug 

discharges of prohibited materials of other substances regulated by this 
article. Facilities to prevent accidental or slug discharge of prohibited 
materials shall be provided and maintained at the owner or user’s own 
cost and expense. 

 
(b) An accidental discharge/slug control plan shall address, at a 

minimum, the following: 
 

(1)  Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch 
discharges; 

 
(2)  Description of stored chemicals; 
 
(3)  Procedures  for  immediately  notifying  the  director  of  any 

accidental or slug discharge, as required by section 19-283(f); and 
 
(4)  Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or slug 

discharge.  Such procedures include, but are not limited to, inspection and 
maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, loading and 
unloading operations, control of plant site runoff, worker training, building of 
containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic 
pollutants, including solvents, and/or measures and equipment for emergency 
response. 

 
(c) No user who commences contribution to the POTW after the effective date 

of this article shall be permitted to introduce pollutants into the system until 
accidental discharge procedures have been approved by the city. 

 
(d) Review and approval of such plans and operating procedures shall not 

relieve the industrial user from the responsibility to modify the user’s facility as 
necessary to meet the requirements of this article. 

 

 (e) In the case of an accidental or slug discharge, it is the responsibility of 
the user to immediately telephone and notify the POTW of the incident and 
provide written notification within five days of the accidental or slug discharge.  
The notification must include location of discharge, type of waste, concentration 
and volume, and corrective actions.  Such notification shall not relieve the user 
of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be incurred as a 
result of damage to the POTW, fish kills, or any other damage to person or 
property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, civil penalties, or 
other liability which may be imposed by this division or other applicable law. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", Space
Before:  0.8 pt, Line spacing:  single

1. a. 
Page 71 of 102



 

31 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

 
(f) The wastewater director shall evaluate each industrial user at least once 

every two years to determine if an accidental discharge/slug control plan is 
required. 

 
(g) Significant Industrial Users are required to notify the director immediately 

of any changes at its facility affecting the potential for a slug discharge. 
 

Sec. 19-281– Wastewater discharges. 

 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge without a city permit to 

the POTW any wastewater except as authorized by the City and director in 
accordance with the provisions of this article. 

 
(b) Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit – contents. 

 

  An individual wastewater discharge permit, or a general permit, shall include 
such conditions as are deemed reasonably necessary by the director to 
prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect the quality of the water body 
receiving the treatment plant’s effluent, protect worker health and safety, 
facilitate sludge management and disposal, and protect against damage to the 
POTW. 

 

  (1)  Individual wastewater discharge permits must contain: 

 

  a.  A statement that indicates the wastewater discharge 
permit issuance date, expiration date and effective date;  

 

  b.       A   statement   that   the   wastewater   discharge   permit   
is nontransferable without prior notification to the city in 
accordance with Section 5.5 of this ordinance, and 
provisions for furnishing the new owner or operator with a 
copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit; 

 

  c.  Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, based 
on applicable Pretreatment Standards; 

 

 d. Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and 
record- keeping requirements.  These requirements shall 
include an identification of pollutants (or best management 
practice) to be monitored, sampling location, sampling 
frequency, and sample type based on Federal, State and 
Local law; 

 

 e. The process for seeking a waiver from monitoring for 
pollutant neither present nor expected to be present in the 
Discharge in accordance with Section 6.4.B.; 

 

  f.       A  statement  of  applicable  civil  and  criminal  penalties  

1. a. 
Page 72 of 102



 

32 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

for violation of Pretreatment Standards and Requirements, 
and any applicable compliance schedule. Such schedule 
may not extend the time for compliance beyond that 
required by applicable Federal, State or Local law. 

 

  g.  Requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by 
the city to be necessary; 

 

 h.  Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the city must be 
included as a condition in the user’s permit. 

 
 Section 19-281(b) Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit contents. 

An individual wastewater discharge permit, or a general permit, shall 
include such conditions as are deemed reasonably necessary by the director to 
prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect the quality of the water body 
receiving the treatment plants effluent, protect worker health and safety, facilitate 
sludge management and disposal, and protect against damage to the POTW. 

(1) Individual wastewater discharge permits must contain: 

a. A statement that indicates the wastewater discharge permit 
issuance date, expiration date and effective date;  

b. A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is 
nontransferable without prior notification to the city in 
accordance with Section 5.5 of this ordinance, and 
provisions for furnishing the new owner or operator with a 
copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit; 

c. Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, based 
on applicable Pretreatment Standards; 

d. Self monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-
keeping requirements.  These requirements shall include an 
identification of pollutants (or best management practice) to 
be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, and 
sample type based on Federal, State and Local law; 

e. A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for 
violation of Pretreatment Standards and Requirements, and 
any applicable compliance schedule.  Such schedule may 
not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by 
applicable Federal, State or Local law. 

f. Requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by 
the city to be necessary; 

Section 19-282(b).  Permit application.   

Users required to obtain a wastewater contribution permit shall complete and file 
with the city an application in the form prescribed by the city and accompanied by 
a fee as set by the city from time to time.  New users shall apply at least 90 days 

1. a. 
Page 73 of 102



 

33 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

prior to connecting to or contributing to the POTW.  In support of the application, 
the user shall submit, in units and terms appropriate for evaluation, the following 
information: 

(1) Name, address, and location (if different from the address). 

(2) SIC number according to the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, 
Bureau of the Budget, 1972, as amended. 

(3) Wastewater constituents and characteristics including but not limited to 
those mentioned in division 2 of this article as determined by a reliable analytical 
laboratory; sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with 
procedures contained in Rule 62-160, F.A.C., as amended. 

(4) Time and duration of contribution. 

(5) Average daily peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly and 
seasonal variations if any. 

(6) Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans and details to show 
all sewers, sewer connections, and appurtenances by the size, location and 
elevation. 

(7) Description of activities, facilities and plant processes on the premises, 
including all materials which are or could be discharged. 

(8) Where known, the nature and concentration of any pollutants in the 
discharge which are limited by any city, state or federal pretreatment standards, 
and a statement regarding whether or not the pretreatment standards are being 
met on a consistent basis and if not, whether additional operation and 
maintenance (O&M) and/or additional pretreatment is required for the user to 
meet applicable pretreatment standards. 

(9) If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the 
pretreatment standards, the shortest schedule by which the user will provide 
such additional pretreatment.  The completion date in this schedule shall not be 
later than the compliance date established for the applicable pretreatment 
standard.  The following conditions shall apply to this schedule: 

 a. The schedule shall contain increments of progress in the form of 
dates for the commencement of major events leading to the construction and 
operation of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable 
pretreatment standards (e.g., hiring an engineer, completing preliminary plans, 
completing final plans, executing contract for major components, commencing 
construction, completing construction, etc.). 

 b. No increment referred to in paragraph a. shall exceed nine months. 

 c. Not later than 14 days following each date in the schedule and the 
final date for compliance, the user shall submit a progress report to the director 
including, at a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment of 
progress to be met on such date, and, if not, the date on which it expects to 
comply with this increment of progress, the reason for delay, and the steps being 
taken by the user to return the construction to the schedule established.  In no 

1. a. 
Page 74 of 102



 

34 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

event shall more than nine months elapse between such progress reports to the 
director. 

(10) Each product produced by type, amount, process or processes and rate of 
production. 

(11) Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per 
day). 

(12) Number and type of employees and hours of operation of plant and 
proposed or actual hours of operation of pretreatment system. 

(13) Any other information as may be deemed by the city to be necessary to 
evaluate the permit application. 

(14) A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility. 

(15) All wastewater discharge permit applications and user reports must be 
signed by an authorized representative of the user and contain the following 
certification statement: 

“I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were 
prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system 
designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate 
the information submitted.  Based on my inquiry of the person or persons 
who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for 
gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there 
are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.” 

  The city will evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional 
information.  After evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the city may 
issue a wastewater contribution permit subject to the terms and conditions 
provided herein. 
 

Sec. 19-283.  Reporting requirement for permittee.  

a) Baseline monitoring reports. 

(1) Within either 180 days after the effective date of a 
categorical pretreatment standard, or the final administrative 
decision on a category determination under Rule 62-
625.410(2)(d), F.A.C., whichever is later, existing industrial users 
currently discharging to or scheduled to discharge to the POTW 
shall submit to the director a report which contains the information 
listed in paragraph (2) below. At least 90 days prior to 
commencement of their discharge, new sources, and sources 
that become categorical users subsequent to the promulgation of 
an applicable categorical standard, shall submit to the director a 
report which contains the information listed in paragraph (2), 
below.   New sources shall report the method of pretreatment it 

1. a. 
Page 75 of 102



 

35 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

intends to use to meet applicable pretreatment standards.  New 
source also shall give estimates of the information requested in 
paragraph (2)(d) and (3) below. 

 
(2) Industrial users described above shall submit the information set 

forth below: 

 
a. Identifying information. The name and address of the 

facility, including the name of the operator and owner. 

 
b. Permits.  A list of any pollution control permits held by or 

for the facility. 

 
c. Description of operations.  A brief description of the 

nature, average rate of production, and standard   
industrial classifications (SIC) codes of the operation(s) 
carried out by such user.   This description should include 
a schematic process diagram which indicates points of 
discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes. 

 
d. Flow measurement.   Information  showing  the  measured 

average daily and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day, 
to the POTW from regulated process streams and other 
streams, as necessary, to allow use of the combined 
wastestream formula set out in 62-625.41(6) F.A.C. 

 

e. Measurement of pollutants. 

 
1. Except as indicated in Section B and C below, the 

User must collect wastewater samples using 24-
hour flow- proportional composite sampling 
techniques, unless time-proportional composite 
sampling or grab sampling is authorized by [the 
Superintendent].  Where time- proportional 
composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized 
by [the City]; the samples must be representative of 
the discharge.   Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 
136 and appropriate EPA guidance, multiple grab 
samples collected during a 24-hour period may be 
composited prior to the analysis as follows: for 
cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides and the sulfide 
samples may be composited in the laboratory.  
Composite samples for other parameters unaffected 
by the composting procedures as documented in 
approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by 
[the City], as appropriate. In addition, grab samples 
may be required to show compliance with 
Instantaneous Limits. 

 

1. a. 
Page 76 of 102



 

36 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

  2.  Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, 
cyanide, total phenols, sulfides, and volatile organic 
compounds must be obtained using grab collection 
techniques. 

 

  3.  For sampling required in support of a baseline 
monitoring and 90-day compliance reports required 
in Section 6.1 and 6.3 [40 CFR 403.12 (b) and (d)], 
a minimum of four (4) grab samples must be used for 
pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide 
and volatile organic compounds for facilities for 
which historical sampling data are available, [the 
Superintendent] may authorize a lower minimum.  
For the reports required by paragraphs Section 6.4 
(40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User 
is required to collect the number of grab samples 
necessary to assess and assure compliance by with 
applicable Pretreatment Standards and 
Requirements. 

 

4.     The categorical pretreatment standards applicable 
to each regulated process. 

 
5.     The results of sampling and analysis identifying the 

nature and concentration, and/or mass, where 
required by the standard or by the director, of 
regulated pollutants in the discharge from each 
regulated process. Instantaneous, daily maximum, 
and long-term average concentrations, or mass, 
where required, shall be reported.   The sample 
shall be representative of daily operations and all 
laboratory and analytical reports shall comply with 
Rule 62-160.670, F.A.C. 

 
6.     A minimum of four grab samples must be used for 

any of these applicable tests: pH, cyanide, total 
phenals, oil and grease, sulfide, volatile organics, 
temperature dissolved oxygen, chlorine residual, uni-
ionized ammonia, microbiology, specific 
conductance, and dissolved constituents (e.g. ortho 
phosphate, etc.). For all other pollutants, 24-hour 
composite samples must be obtained through flow-
proportional composite sampling techniques where 
feasible.  The control authority shall waive flow-
proportional composite sampling for any industrial 
user that demonstrates that flow-proportional 
sampling is technically infeasible.   In such cases, 
samples shall be obtained through time-proportional 
composite sampling techniques or through a 
minimum of four grab samples where the industrial 

1. a. 
Page 77 of 102



 

37 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

user demonstrates that this will provide a 
representative sample of effluent being discharged. 

 
7.    The industrial user shall take a minimum of one 

representative sample to compile that data 
necessary to comply with these requirements. 

 
8.     Samples shall be taken immediately downstream from 

pretreatment facilities, if such exist, or immediately 
downstream from   the   regulated   process   if   no 
pretreatment exists.  If other wastewaters are 
mixed with the regulated wastewater prior to 
pretreatment, the industrial user    shall   measure    
the    flows    and concentrations necessary to allow 
use of the combined waste stream formula of Rule 62-
625.410(6), F.A.C., in order to evaluate compliance 
with the pretreatment standards.  Where an alternate 
concentration or mass limit has been calculated in 
accordance with Rule 62-625410(6), F.A.C., this 
adjusted limit, along with supporting data, shall be 
submitted to the control authority. 

 
9.    All activities related to sampling and analysis shall 

comply with Chapter 62-160, F.A.C., and shall be 
conducted under   the   requirements   of   Rule   
62-160.300(5), F.A.C., which is Category 2A. 

 

i. Sampling activities and laboratory analyses shall 
be performed according to procedures specified 
in “The Department of Environmental Regulation 
Standard Operating Procedures for Laboratory 
Operations and Sample Collection Activities” 
(DER-AQ-001/92) September 1992, herein 
incorporated by reference.   Alternately, an 
organization with the required protocols listed in 
their department approved comprehensive 
quality assurance plan may sample and analyze 
according to the protocols specified in that 
document. 

ii. To the extent possible, analytical tests shall be 
performed in accordance with the techniques 
prescribed in chapter 62-160, F.A.C. If a test for a 
specific component is not available in chapter 
62-160, F.A.C., the testing laboratory shall select 
an alternative method from those listed in DER- 
QA-001/92 and propose its use to the quality 
assurance section of the department.   The 
department shall determine if the proposed 
method is appropriate and applicable for use by 
the  laboratory  in  accordance  with  Rule  62- 

1. a. 
Page 78 of 102



 

38 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

160.530, F.A.C. 
iii. Where sampling or analytical techniques for the 

pollutant in question are not available or 
approved, or where the department determines 
that sampling and analysis shall be performed by 
using analytical methods or any other applicable 
sampling and analytical procedures, including 
procedures suggested by the control authority or 
other parties, for which method validation 
information has been submitted and approved by 
the Department in accordance with Rules 62- 
160.430, 62-160.520 and 62-160.530, F.A.C. 

 
10.  The industrial user may submit a baseline report which 

utilizes only historical data so long as the data 
provides information sufficient to determine the need 
for industrial pretreatment measures. 

 
11.  The baseline report shall indicate the time, date 

and place of sampling; method of analysis; and test 
results for each component and shall certify that such 
sampling and analysis is representative of normal 
work cycles and expected pollutant discharges to the 
POTW. 

 

f. Certification  of  Permit  Applications,  User  Reports  and  
Initial Monitoring Waiver– The following certification statement is 
required to be signed and submitted by Users submitting permit 
applications in accordance with Section 4.7; Users submitting 
baseline monitoring reports on compliance with the categorical 
Pretreatment Standard deadlines under Section 6.3; Users 
submitting periodic compliance reports required by Section 6.4 A-
D, and Users submitting an initial request to forego sampling of 
a pollutant on the basis of Section 6.4B(4). The following 
certification statement must be signed and by an Authorized 
Representative as defined in Section 1.4C: 

 

  I certify under penalty of law that this document and all 
attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in 
accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified 
personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.  
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the 
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.   I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for 
knowing violations. 

 

1. a. 
Page 79 of 102



 

39 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

g. Compliance schedule. If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will 
be required to meet the pretreatment standards, the shortest 
schedule by which the user will provide such additional 
pretreatment and/or O&M. The completion date in this schedule 
shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable pretreatment standard. A compliance schedule 
pursuant to this section must meet the requirements set out in 
section 19-283(b). 

 
1. Where the industrial user’s categorical pretreatment 

standard has been modified by the combined waste stream 
formula in accordance with Rule 62-625.410(6), F.A.C., a 
removal credit in accordance   with   Rule   62-625.420,   
F.A.C.,   or   a fundamentally different factor variance in 
accordance with Rule 62-625.700, F.A.C., at the time the 
industrial user submits the report required by this 
subsection, the information requested in f. and g. of this 
subsection shall pertain to the modified limits. 

 
2. If the categorical pretreatment standard is modified by 

the combined waste stream formula, a removal credit, or a 
fundamentally different factor variance after the industrial 
user submits the report required by this subsection, any 
necessary amendment to the information requested in f. 
and g. of this subsection shall be submitted by the 
industrial user to the control authority within 60 days after 
the modified limit is approved. 

 
h. Signature and certification.  All baseline monitoring reports must be 

signed and certified in accordance with section 19-282(b)(14). 

 
(b) Compliance to schedule progress reports.  The following conditions shall 

apply to the compliance schedule required by section 19-283(a)(2)g.: 
 

(1) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates 
for the commencement and completion of major events leading to the 
construction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the 
user to meet the applicable pretreatment standards (such events 
include, but are not limited to, hiring an engineer, completing 
preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components, 
commencing and completing construction, and beginning on 
conducting routine operation); 

 
(2)      No increment referred to above shall exceed nine months; 
 
(3)      The user shall submit a progress report to the director no later than 

14 days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 
compliance, including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with 
the increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if 
appropriate, the steps being taken to return the established schedule; 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.81",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  1.31", Left

1. a. 
Page 80 of 102



 

40 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

and, 
 

(4) In no event shall more than nine months elapse between such 
progress reports to the director. 

 
(c) Reports on compliance with categorical pretreatment standard deadline. 

Within 90 days following the date for final compliance with applicable 
categorical pretreatment standards, or in the case of a new source following 
commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the POTW, any user 
subject to such pretreatment standards and requirements shall submit to the 
director  a  report  containing  the  information  described  in  section  19- 
283(a)(2)d. through f. For users subject to equivalent mass or concentration 
limits established in accordance with procedures in [Rule] 62-625.410(4) 
[F.A.C.], this subject to categorical pretreatment standards expressed in 
terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production (or other 
measure of operation), this report shall include the user’s actual production 
during the appropriate sampling period.   All compliance reports must be 
signed and certified in accordance with section 19-282(b)(14). 
 

(d) Periodic compliance reports. 
 

(1) All significant industrial users shall, at a frequency determined by the 
director but in no case less than twice per year (in June and 
December), submit a report indicating the nature and concentration 
of pollutants in the discharge which are limited by pretreatment 
standards and the measured or estimated average and maximum 
daily flows for the reporting period.  The city may require more 
detailed reporting of flows if necessary to comply with the 
requirements of this article. All periodic compliance reports must be 
signed and certified in accordance with section 19-282(b)(14). 

 
(2) All  wastewater  samples  must  be  representative  of  the  user’s 

discharge.  Wastewater monitoring and flow measurement facilities 
shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in good 
working order at all times. The failure of a user to keep its monitoring 
facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the user to claim 
that sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
(3) If a user subject to the reporting requirements in this section monitors 

any pollutant more frequently than required by the director, using the 
procedures prescribed in section 19-283(k), the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the report. 

 
(e) Reports of changed conditions.  Each user must notify the director of any 

planned significant changes to the user’s operations or system which might 
alter the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater at least 30 days before 
the change. 

 
(1) The director may require the user submit such information as may be 

deemed necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31",
Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

1. a. 
Page 81 of 102



 

41 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

submission of a wastewater discharge permit application under 
section 12-282(b). 

 
(2) The director may issue a wastewater discharge permit under section 

19-282 or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under 
section 19-282(c) in response to changed conditions or anticipated 
changed conditions. 
 

(3) For purposes of this requirement, significant changed include, but are 
not limited to, flow increases of 20 percent or greater, and the 
discharge of any previously unreported pollutants. 

 
(f) Reports of potential problems. 
 

(1) In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental 
discharges, discharges   of   a   nonroutine,   episodic   nature,   a 
noncustomary batch discharge, or a slug load, that may cause 
potential problems for the POTW, the user shall immediately 
telephone and notify the director of the incident. This notification shall 
include the location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and 
volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the user. 

 
(2) Within five days following such discharge, the user shall, unless 

waived by the director, submit a detailed written report describing the 
cause(s) of the discharge and the measures to be taken by the user 
to prevent similar future occurrences.   Such notification shall not 
relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which 
may be incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural 
resources, or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such 
notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties, or other liability 
which may be imposed pursuant to this article. 

 
(3) A notice shall be permanently posed on the user’s bulletin board or 

other permanent place advising employees whom to call in the event 
of a discharge described in subsection (1) above.  Employers shall 
ensure that all employees, who may cause such a discharge to occur, 
are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

 
(g) Reports  from  unpermitted  users.    All  users  not  required  to  obtain  a 

wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate reports to the director 
as the director may require. 

 
(h) Notice of violation/repeat sampling and reporting. If sampling performed by a 

user indicates a violation, the user must notify the director within 24 hours of 
becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also repeat the sampling and 
analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the director within 
30 days after becoming aware of the violation.  The user is not required to 
resample if the director monitors at the user’s facility at least once a month, or 
if the director samples between the user’s initial sampling and when the 
user receives the results of this sampling. 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31",
Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.81",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  1.31", Left

1. a. 
Page 82 of 102



 

42 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

 
(i) Notification of discharge hazardous waste. 
 

(1) The  industrial  user  shall  notify  the  control  authority  and  the 
department’s hazardous waste and pretreatment authorities in writing 
of any discharge into the WWF of a substance, which, if otherwise 
disposed of, would be hazardous waste under Chapter 62-730, F.A.C. 
Such notification must include the name of the hazardous waste, the 
EPA hazardous waste number, and the type of discharge (continuous, 
batch, or other).  If the industrial user discharges more than 100 
kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the WWF, the 
notification shall also contain the following information to the extent 
such information is known and readily available to the user: an 
identification of the hazardous constituents contained in the wastes, 
an estimation of the mass and concentration of such constituents in 
the waste stream discharged during that calendar month, and an 
estimation of the mass of constituents in the waste stream expected 
to be discharged during the following 12 months. Industrial users who 
commence discharging after the effective date of this article shall 
provide the notification no later than 180 days after the discharge of 
the listed or characteristic hazardous waste.  Any notification under 
this subsection needs to be submitted only once for each 
hazardous waste discharged.  However, notifications of changed 
discharges must be submitted under subsection (e) above.  The 
notification requirement of this section does not apply to pollutants 
already reported under the self-monitoring requirements of 
subsections (a), (c) and (d) of this section. 

 
(2) Discharges are exempt from the requirements of subsection (1) above 

during a calendar month in which they discharge no more than 15 
kilograms of hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute 
hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute 
hazardous wastes as specified in chapter 62-730, F.A.C., requires a 
one-time notification. Subsequent months during which the industrial 
user discharges more than such quantities of any hazardous waste do 
not require additional notification. 

 
(3) In the case of any new department regulations identifying additional 

characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance 
as a hazardous waste, the industrial user must notify the control 
authority and the department’s hazardous waste and pretreatment 
authorities of the discharge of such substance within 90 days of the 
effective date of such regulations. 

 

(4)(3) 

Sample collection techniques. 

a. 

Depending on the objectives or requirements of the monitoring 

program, samples may be collected either manually or with automatic 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before: 
0.8 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.81",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  1.31", Left

1. a. 
Page 83 of 102



 

43 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

samplers. The following general guidelines apply when taking 

samples:  

1. 

Exclude large nonhomogeneous particles and objects. 

2. 

Collect the sample facing upstream to avoid contamination. 

3. 

Do not rinse sample container with sample when collecting 

microbiological samples, but fill it directly to within 2.5 to 5.0 

cm from the top.  

4. 

Fill the container completely if the sample is to be analyzed 

for purgeable organics, oxygen, ammonia, hydrogen sulfide, 

free chlorine, pH, hardness, sulfite, ammonium, ferrous iron, 

acidity, or alkalinity.  

5. 

Collect sufficient volume to allow for quality assurance 

testing. 

b. 

Types of samples. The two types of samples, grab and composite 

samples, may be collected either manually or with automatic 

samplers.  

1. 

Grab samples. Grab samples are individual samples collected 

over a period of time not exceeding 15 minutes; the grab 

sample can be taken manually. The collection of a grab 

sample is appropriate when a sample is needed to:  

i. 

Provide information about instantaneous 

concentrations of pollutant at specific times. 

ii. 

Allow collection of a variable sample volume. 

iii. 

Corroborate composite samples. 

iv. 

Collect samples for parameters not amenable to 

automatic sampling (e.g., oil and grease, volatile 

organics, coliform bacteria). 

2. 

Composite samples. These samples consist of grab samples 

collected at equal intervals and combined proportional to flow; 

a sample continuously collected proportionally to flow; or 

equal volumes taken at varying time intervals. Composite 

1. a. 
Page 84 of 102



 

44 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

samples should be used when:  

i. 

Determining average pollutant concentration during 

the compositing period. 

ii. 

Calculating mass/unit time loadings. 

iii. 

Wastewater characteristics are highly variable. 

There are six methods for compositing samples; they may be 

collected using either manual or automatic sampling 

technologies. The six compositing methods, all of which 

depend on either continuous or periodic sampling, are shown 

in Table A. In any manual compositing method, sample 

manipulation should be minimized to reduce the possibility of 

contamination.  

To determine the pollutant loading rate into a POTW system 

or to flow proportion a sample, it may be important for the 

control authority to make an accurate flow measurement for 

each regulated discharge. Therefore, control authority 

sampling staff should also be prepared to measure flow in 

case the SIU does not regularly monitor the amount of 

wastewater discharged.  

TABLE A 

COMPOSITING METHODS  

Compositing Principle Advantages Disadvantages Comments 

Constant sample 
volume, constant 
time interval 
between samples 

Minimal 
instrumentation and 
manual effort; 
requires no flow 
measurement 

May lack representativeness especially 
for highly variable flows 

Widely used in 
both automatic 
samplers and 
manual 
sampling 

Constant sample 
volume, time interval 
between samples 
proportional to 
stream flow 

Minimal manual 
effort 

Requires accurate flow 
measurement/reading equipment; 
manual compositing from flow chart 

Widely used in 
automatic as 
well as manual 
sampling 

Constant time 
interval between 
samples, sample 
volume proportional 
to total stream flow 
at time of sampling 

Minimal 
instrumentation 

Manual compositing from flow chart in 
absence of prior information on the ratio 
of minimum to maximum flow; change of 
collecting too small or too large 
individual discrete samples for a given 
composite volume  

Used in 
automatic 
samplers and 
widely used as 
manual method 

Constant time 
interval between 
samples, sample 
volume proportional 
to total stream flow 
since last sample 

Minimal 
instrumentation 

Manual compositing from flow chart in 
absence of prior information on the ratio 
of minimum to maximum flow; change of 
collecting either too small or too large 
individual discrete samples for a given 
composite volume  

Not widely 
used in 
automatic 
samplers but 
may be done 
manually 

1. a. 
Page 85 of 102



 

45 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

c. 

Sample volume. The volume of samples collected depends on the 

type and number of analyses that are needed, as reflected in the 

parameters to be measured. The volume of the sample obtained 

should be sufficient to perform all the required analyses plus 

additional amounts to provide for any split samples or repeat 

analyses. The laboratory performing the analysis should be consulted 

for any specific volume required. A breakdown of the recommended 

minimum sample volumes for different pollutant parameters can be 

found in EPA's "Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and 

Wastes," 1979; "Handbook for Sampling and Sample Preservation of 

Water and Wastewater," 1982; and the current, EPA approved edition 

of "Standard Methods."  

d. 

Selection and preparation of sample containers. The selection and 

preparation of sample containers will be based on the parameters to 

be measured. Wastewater samples for chemical analysis are 

generally collected in plastic (polyethylene) containers. Exceptions to 

this general rule are oil and grease samples, pesticides, PCBs, and 

other organic pollutant samples. These are collected in properly 

rinsed glass jars or bottles and sealed. Bacteriological samples are 

generally collected in properly sterilized plastic or glass containers.  

e. 

Sample preservation and holding time. In most cases, wastewater 

samples contain one or more unstable pollutants that require 

immediate analysis or preservation. Prompt analysis is the most 

positive assurance against error from sample deterioration, but this is 

not feasible for composite samples, in which portion may be stored 

for as long as 24 hours. It is important that preservation of the 

samples be provided for during compositing, where possible, in 

addition to being preserved before being transferred to the laboratory. 

Procedures used to preserve samples include refrigeration, pH 

adjustment, and chemical treatment. Proper preservation and holding 

dime for samples is essential to the integrity of the monitoring 

program.  

f. 

Other sampling references. The following references shall be utilized 

Constant pumping 
rate 

Minimal manual 
effort, requires no 
flow measurement 

Requires large sample capacity; may 
lack representativeness for highly 
variable flows 

Practical but 
not widely used 

Sample pumping rate 
proportional to 
stream flow 

Most representative 
especially for highly 
variable flows; 
minimal manual 
effort 

Requires accurate flow measurement 
equipment, large sample volume, 
variable pumping capacity, and power 

Not widely 
used 

1. a. 
Page 86 of 102



 

46 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

by the control authority to ensure proper sampling and flow 

measurement techniques. They include, among others:  

1. 

Handbook for Sampling and Sample Preservation of Water 

and Wastewater, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 

Environmental Monitoring and Support Laboratory, 

September 1982. Report No. EPA-600/4-82-029. NTIS 

PB83124503.  

2. 

Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and Wastes, U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency, Environmental Monitoring 

and Support Laboratory, 1978. Report No. EPA-500/4-79-

020. NTIS PB 297686.  

3. 

Compliance Evaluation Inspection Manual, EPA, Office of 

Water Enforcement, July 1976. 

4. 

NPDES Compliance Sampling Inspection Manual-MCD-51, 

USEPA Enforcement Division, Office of Water Enforcement, 

Compliance Branch. 

5. 

Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and 

Wastewater, American Public Health Association, 15th 

Edition. 

(4) 

The owner of each facility discharging industrial wastes shall submit monthly 

to the city, on forms supplied or approved by the city, a certified statement of 

the quantities of its wastes discharged into the sewers and sewage works of 

the city or into any sewer connected therewith. Copies of pertinent 

information shall be submitted with the above statement. Such documents 

shall be filed with the city not later than the fifteenth day of the following 

month. A separate statement shall be filed for each industrial plant. The 

report will provide the quantity of water discharged to the city system during 

the reporting period and will contain results of analysis for parameters as 

specified in the facility's discharge permit.  

(5) 

Any industrial user in violation of this article must notify the city within 24 

hours of becoming aware of the violation and must resample and test and 

resubmit both results to the city within 30 days after becoming aware of the 

violation.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.7, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 210, 1-8-96; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-

95; Ord. No. 324, §§ 7, 8, 8-10-98)  

Sec. 19-213. - Discharge into storm sewer.  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 87 of 102



 

47 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any sanitary wastewater into 

the storm sewer system, without exception.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.8, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-214. - Cooling or condensing water.  

Cooling and/or condensing water may be discharged to the storm sewer system only 

if a NPDES permit is obtained from the FDER.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.9, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-215. - Information provided by industrial users.  

The industrial users may be required to provide information needed to determine 

compliance with this article. These requirements may include:  

(1) 

Wastewaters discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time period. 

(2) 

Chemical analyses of wastewaters. In the case of any notification made 
under this  subsection, the industrial user shall certify that it has a 
program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous 
wastes generated to the degree it has determined to be economically 
practical. 

 
(5) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not 

permitted to be discharged by this ordinance, a permit issued 
thereunder, or applicable federal or state law. 

 
(j) Analytical  requirements.     All  pollutant  analyses,  including  sampling 

techniques, to be submitted as part of a wastewater discharge permit 
application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques 
prescribed in Rule 62-160, F.A.C., unless otherwise specified in an 
applicable categorical pretreatment standard.  If Rule 62-160, F.A.C. does 
not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, 
sampling and analyses must be performed in accordance with procedures 
approved by EPA. 

 
(k) Sample collection. 
 

(1) Except as indicated in subsection (2), below, the user must collect 
wastewater samples using flow proportional composite collection 
techniques. In the event flow proportional sampling is infeasible, the 
director may authorize the use of time proportional sampling or a 
minimum of four grab samples where the user demonstrates that this 
will provide a representative sample of the effluent being discharged. 
In addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with 
instantaneous discharge limits. 

 
(2) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenols, 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 88 of 102



 

48 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

sulfides, and volatile organic compounds must be obtained using grab 
collection techniques. 

 
(l) Timing. Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date 

postmarked. For reports which are not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail 
facility serviced by the United States Postal Service, the date of receipt of the 
report shall be given. 

 
(m) Record keeping. 
 

(1)      Users subject to the reporting requirements of this article shall retain, 
and make available for inspection and copying, all records of 
information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required by 
this article and any additional records of such requirements, and 
documentation associated with Best Management Practices 
established under Section 2.4C.   Records shall include the date, 
exact place, method, and time of sampling, and the name of the 
person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were performed; 
who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques or methods 
used; and the results of such analyses.  These records shall remain 
available for a period of at least three (3) years. This period shall be 
automatically extended for the duration fo any litigation concerning the 
User or the city, or where the user has been specifically notified of a 
longer retention period by the city 

 
(2) Except as indicated in Sections b and c below, the user must collect 

wastewater samples using 24-hour flow-proportional composite 
sampling techniques, unless time-proportional composite sampling or 
grab sampling is authorized by the city.   Where time-proportional 
composite sampling is authorized by the city, the samples must be 
representative of the discharge.    Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and 
appropriate EPA guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 
24 hour period may be composited prior to the analysis as follows: for 
cyanide, total phenols, and sulfieds the samples may be composited 
in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and 
grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite 
samples for other parameters unaffected by the compositing 
procedures as documented in approved EPA methodologies may be 
authorized by the city, as appropriate. In addition, grab samples may 
be required to show compliance with Instantaneous Limits. 

 

 (3)    Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, total phenols, 
sulfides, and volatile organic compounds must be obtained using grab 
collection techniques. 

 

 (4)     For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day 
compliance reports required in Section 6.1 and 6.3 [40 CFR 403.12(b) 
and (d)], a minimum of four (4) grab samples must be used for pH, 
cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide and volatile organic 

1. a. 
Page 89 of 102



 

49 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not 
exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data do not exist; for 
facilities for which historical sampling data are available, the city may 
authorize a lower minimum.  For the reports required by paragraphs 
Section 6.4 (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User is 
required to collect the number of grab samples necessary to assess 
and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment Standards 
and Requirements. 

 
Section 19-291.  Penalties. 

 a) Article violations.  Any person who is found to have violated any 
provision of this article or any condition of IWDP’s issued hereunder, shall be, 
upon conviction, subject to penalty in an amount not to exceed the maximum 
amount permissible by law or at least $1,000.00 or by imprisonment for not more 
than six months, or by both, for each offense.  Each separate violation shall 
constitute a separate offense, and upon conviction of a specified ordinance 
violation, each day of violation shall constitute a separate violation.  In addition to 
the penalties provided herein, the city may recover reasonable attorney’s fees, 
court costs, court reporter’s fees and other expenses of litigation by appropriate 
suit at law against the person found to have violated this division or the orders, 
rules, regulations, and IWDPs issued hereunder. 

 b) Falsifying information.  Any person who knowingly makes 
any false statements, representations or certification in any 
application, record, report, clan or other document filed or required to 
be maintained pursuant to this article, or IWDP, or who falsifies, 
tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device 
or method required under this article, shall, upon conviction, be 
subject to a penalty of at least $1,000.00 or by imprisonment for not 
more than six months, or by both.  Each day on which a violation shall 
occur or continue shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense.  

(3) 
Information on raw materials, processes and products affecting wastewater 
volume and quality. 

(4) 

Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, sludge, oil, solvent, or other 

materials important to sewer use control. 

(5) 

A plot plan of sewers of the user's property showing sewer and pretreatment 

facility location. 

(6) 

Details of wastewater pretreatment facilities. 

(7) 

Details of the systems to prevent and control the losses of materials through 

spills to the municipal sewer. 

(8) 

A description of the activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises, 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31",
Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1.31",
Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:
 single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 90 of 102



 

50 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

including a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the facility 

which are or could accidentally or intentionally be discharged to the POTW. 

Material safety data sheets (MSDSs) of all chemicals shall be included and a 

spill containment plant shall be submitted for stored chemicals.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.10, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-216. - Special agreements.  

No statement contained in this division shall be construed as preventing any special 

agreement or arrangement between the city and any industrial concern whereby an industrial 

waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted by the city for treatment. However, 

there shall be no agreements made that would violate any state or federal pretreatment 

standard.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.11, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-217. - Federal or state test procedures.  

All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to 

which reference is made in this article shall be determined in accordance with the latest test 

procedures and guidelines for analysis of pollutants as specified in Rule 62-160, FAC.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.12, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 9, 

8-10-98)  

Secs. 19-218—19-235. - Reserved.  

- CODE OF ORDINANCES >> Chapter 19 - UTILITIES >> ARTICLE V. - SEWER USE >> DIVISION 2. - 

RESTRICTED USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS >>  

DIVISION 2. - RESTRICTED USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS  

Sec. 19-206. - Unpolluted waters. 

Sec. 19-207. - Prohibited discharges generally. 

Sec. 19-208. - Restricted discharges. 

Sec. 19-209. - Action by city. 

Sec. 19-210. - Interceptors. 

Sec. 19-211. - Pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities. 

Sec. 19-212. - Significant industrial users. 

Sec. 19-213. - Discharge into storm sewer. 

Sec. 19-214. - Cooling or condensing water. 

Sec. 19-215. - Information provided by industrial users. 

Sec. 19-216. - Special agreements. 

Sec. 19-217. - Federal or state test procedures. 

Secs. 19-218—19-235. - Reserved. 

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 9 pt, Bold,
Font color: Gray-80%

1. a. 
Page 91 of 102



 

51 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

 

Sec. 19-206. - Unpolluted waters.  

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any unpolluted waters such as 

stormwater, groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, or cooling water to any sewer.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.1, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-207. - Prohibited discharges generally.  

(a) 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described 

waters or wastes to any public sewers: 

(1) 

Any substances which by reason of their nature or quantity are, or may be, 

sufficient either alone or by interaction with other substances to cause fire or 

explosion or be injurious in any other way to the POTW or its operation. In no 

case shall pollutants or wastestreams with a closed cup flashpoint of less 

than 140 degrees Fahrenheit (60 degrees Celsius), as determined by the test 

methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21, be discharged to the POTW. At no time 

shall two successive readings on an explosion hazard meter at the point of 

discharge into the system (or at any point in the system) be more than five 

percent, nor any single reading over ten percent, of the lower explosive limit 

(LEL) of the meter. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to, 

gasoline, kerosene, naphtha, benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, 

ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, 

hydrides and sulfides and any other substances which constitute a fire 

hazard or a hazard to the system.  

(2) 
Any waters containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in sufficient quantity, 

either singly or by interaction with other wastes, to injury or interfere with any 
waste treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a 
public nuisance, or create any hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater 
treatment plant.  

(3) 

Pollutants which will cause corrosion or structural damage to the treatment 

works, but in no cases discharges with a pH lower than 6.5 or higher than 8.0 

be allowed, unless the works is specifically designed to accommodate such 

discharge.  

(4) 

Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing 

obstruction to the flow in sewers, or other interference with the proper 

operation of the wastewater facilities such as, but not limited to, ashes, 

bones, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, 

plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair and 

fleshings, entrails, and paper dishes, cups, milk containers, etc., either whole 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.81",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 92 of 102



 

52 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

or ground by garbage grinders.  

(5) 

Petroleum oil, non-biodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin in 

amounts that will cause interference or pass through.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 249, § 1, 1-25-93; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-

28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 6, 8-10-98)  

Sec. 19-208. - Restricted discharges.  

The following described substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be limited in 

discharges to municipal waste systems to concentrations or quantities which will not harm 

either the sewers, wastewater treatment process or equipment, will not have an adverse 

effect on the receiving stream, or will not otherwise endanger life, limb, public property, or 

constitute a nuisance. The city manager may set limitations lower than the limitations 

established in the regulations listed below if, in his opinion, such more severe limitations are 

necessary to meet the above objectives. In forming his opinion as to acceptability, the city 

manager will give consideration to such factors as the quantity of subject waste in relation to 

flows and velocities in the sewers, materials of construction of the sewers, the wastewater 

process employed, capacity of the wastewater treatment plant, degree of treatability of the 

waste in the wastewater treatment plant, and other pertinent factors. The limitations or 

restrictions on materials or characteristics of waste of wastewater discharged to the sanitary 

sewer are as follows:  

(1) 
Any substance having a temperature which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW 

treatment plant resulting in interference, but in no case wastewater with a 
temperature at the introduction into the POTW which exceeds 40 degrees 
Celsius (104 degrees Fahrenheit). Unless a higher temperature is allowed 
under the user's IWDP, no user shall discharge into any sewer line or other 
appurtenance of the POTW, wastewater with a temperature exceeding 65.5 
degrees Celsius (150 degrees Fahrenheit).  

(2) 
Any substance which is harmful to the wastewater collection or treatment system, or is hazardous to 
the wastewater system because it contains flammable or explosive liquids, solids, or gases which by 
reason of their nature or quantity are, or may be, sufficient either along or by interaction with other 
substances to cause fire, or explosion or be injurious in any other way to the wastewater system or 

to the operation of the wastewater system. At no time, shall two successive readings on an 
explosive hazard meter, at the point of discharge into the system (or at any point in the 
system) be more than five percent nor any single reading over ten percent of the 
lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter. Such materials may exclude, but are not limited to 
gasoline, kerosene, naptha, benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, keytones, aldehydes, 
peroxides, chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides and sulfides and any other 
substances which the city, state, or EPA has notified the user is a fire hazard, a health hazard, or a 
hazard to the system.  

(3) 
Wastewater containing more than 100 milligrams per liter of oils, fat or grease or any 

other combination thereof. 

(4) 

Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. Garbage grinders may be 

connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, restaurants, 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.81",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.04", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Space Before: 
0.8 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.81",
Hanging:  0.5", Right:  0.03", Space Before:  0
pt, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  1.31", Left

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 93 of 102



 

53 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places where garbage originals 

from the preparation of food in kitchens for the purpose of consumption on 

the premises or when served by caterers.  

(5) 

Any wastewater discharges exceeding categorical standards or alternatively 

having an excess of: 

*  All concentrations for metallic substances for total metals unless otherwise indicated. In the exercise of 

discretion, the director may impose mass limitations in addition to, or in place of the concentration-based 

limitations above.  

(6) 

Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances exceeding 

limits, which may be established by the Director. 

(7) 

Any radioactive or isotopes of such halflife or concentrations as may exceed 

limits established in compliance with applicable state or federal regulations.  

(8) 

Quantities of flow, concentration, or both which constitute a "slug" as defined 

in section 19-181 

(9) 

Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amendable to 

treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed, or 

are amendable to treatment only to such degree that the wastewater 

treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies 

having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters.  

(10) 

 Instantaneous Maximum 
 

Limit in Milligrams 
 

Parameter Per Liter* 

Arsenic 2.5 

Cadmium 0.4 

Chromium, total 6.5 

Copper 0.6 

Cyanide 2.3 

Lead 13.0 

Molybdenum 0.3 

Nickel 6.1 

Selenium 0.9 

Silver 6.4 

Zinc 3.7 

BOD 6,056 plant design criteria 

TSS 2,115 plant design criteria 

1. a. 
Page 94 of 102



 

54 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or wastes in the 

public sewer system, release obnoxious gases, form solids which interfere 

with the collection system, or create a condition deleterious to structures and 

treatment process.  

(11) 

Wastewater, which does not constitute normal wastewater as, defined by this 

ordinance. 

(12) 

Any substances that include or will cause pass through or interference. 

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.3, 8-24-87; ; Ord. No. 249, § 1, 1-25-93; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 

8-28-95; Ord. No. 373, § 1, 12-11-00; Ord. No. O2009-21, § 1, 12-14-09)  

Cross reference— Solid waste and weeds, ch. 15.  

Sec. 19-209. - Action by city.  

(a) 

If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the 

public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics 

enumerated in this division of this article, and which in the judgment of the city 

manager or director, may have a deleterious effect upon the wastewater facilities, 

processes, equipment or receiving waters, or which otherwise create a hazard to life 

or constitute a public nuisance, the city may:  

(1) 

Reject the wastes. 

(2) 

Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public 

sewers. 

(3) 

Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge. 

(4) 

Require surcharge payment to cover added costs of handling and treating the 

waters. 

(5) 

Require payment of the cost of repair of any part of the system damaged by 

such discharge. 

(6) 

Require pass through payment of any fine or penalty assessed against the 

city as a result of such discharge. 

(b) 

When considering the above alternatives, the city manager or director shall give 

consideration to the economic impact of each alternative on the discharger. If 

pretreatment or equalization of waste flows is permitted, the design and installation of 

the plants and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the city 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 95 of 102



 

55 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

manager and director.  

(c) 

In any action brought by the city to enforce this section, the city shall be entitled to 

recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.4, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-210. - Interceptors.  

(a) 

Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the 

director they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing 

floatable grease in excessive amounts, sand, or other harmful ingredients; except 

that such interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling 

units. All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the 

director and shall be located as to be readily and easily accessible for 

cleaning and inspection. In the maintaining of these interceptors the owner shall 

be responsible for the proper removal and disposal by appropriate means of the 

captured material and shall maintain records of the dates and means of disposal 

which are subject to review by the director. Any removal and hauling of the collected 

materials not performed by owner's personnel must be performed by currently 

licensed waste disposal firms.  

(b) 

If any person fails to comply with this section and said failure results in damage to the city system, 
the city shall be entitled to recover the cost of repair of the system from said person and any fines or 
penalties assessed against the city as a result of such failure.  

(c) 

In any action brought by the city to enforce this section, the city shall be entitled to 

reasonable attorney's fees and costs. 

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.5, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-211. - Pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities.  

Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided or required for any 

waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective 

operation by the owner at his expense.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.6, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-212. - Significant industrial users.  

All significant industrial users discharging to the city sewer system shall comply with 

the following:  

(1) 

In order to provide for accurate sampling and measurement of industrial 

wastes, each designated discharger shall provide and maintain, on each of 

its industrial waste outlet sewers, a large manhole for sampling, or other 

devices acceptable to the city to be located outside or near its plant boundary 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Expanded by  0.05 pt, Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", Space
Before:  0.8 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Auto,
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 96 of 102



 

56 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

line. If inside the plant fence, there shall be a gate near the sampling 

chamber with a key furnished to the city. There shall be ample room provided 

in each sampling chamber to enable convenient inspection and sampling by 

the city or its agent. The sampling port shall be of a design approved by the 

wastewater director.  

(2) 

Each sampling chamber shall contain a Parshall flume, accurate weir, or 

other approved device, with a recording and totalizing register for 

measurement of the liquid quantity; or the metered water supply to the 

industrial plant may be used as the liquid quantity where it is substantiated 

that the metered water supply and waste quantities are approximately the 

same, or where a measurable adjustment can be made in the metered 

supply to determine the liquid quantity. The measuring, totalizing, recording 

devices are to be supplied, installed, and maintained by the owner.  

(3) 

Sample collection techniques. 

a. 

Depending on the objectives or requirements of the monitoring 

program, samples may be collected either manually or with automatic 

samplers. The following general guidelines apply when taking 

samples:  

1. 

Exclude large nonhomogeneous particles and objects. 

2. 

Collect the sample facing upstream to avoid contamination. 

3. 

Do not rinse sample container with sample when collecting 

microbiological samples, but fill it directly to within 2.5 to 5.0 

cm from the top.  

4. 

Fill the container completely if the sample is to be analyzed 

for purgeable organics, oxygen, ammonia, hydrogen sulfide, 

free chlorine, pH, hardness, sulfite, ammonium, ferrous iron, 

acidity, or alkalinity.  

5. 

Collect sufficient volume to allow for quality assurance 

testing. 

b. 

Types of samples. The two types of samples, grab and composite 

samples, may be collected either manually or with automatic 

samplers.  

1. 

Grab samples. Grab samples are individual samples collected 

1. a. 
Page 97 of 102



 

57 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

over a period of time not exceeding 15 minutes; the grab 

sample can be taken manually. The collection of a grab 

sample is appropriate when a sample is needed to:  

i. 

Provide information about instantaneous 

concentrations of pollutant at specific times. 

ii. 

Allow collection of a variable sample volume. 

iii. 

Corroborate composite samples. 

iv. 

Collect samples for parameters not amenable to 

automatic sampling (e.g., oil and grease, volatile 

organics, coliform bacteria). 

2. 

Composite samples. These samples consist of grab samples 

collected at equal intervals and combined proportional to flow; 

a sample continuously collected proportionally to flow; or 

equal volumes taken at varying time intervals. Composite 

samples should be used when:  

i. 

Determining average pollutant concentration during 

the compositing period. 

ii. 

Calculating mass/unit time loadings. 

iii. 

Wastewater characteristics are highly variable. 

There are six methods for compositing samples; they may be 

collected using either manual or automatic sampling 

technologies. The six compositing methods, all of which 

depend on either continuous or periodic sampling, are shown 

in Table A. In any manual compositing method, sample 

manipulation should be minimized to reduce the possibility of 

contamination.  

To determine the pollutant loading rate into a POTW system 

or to flow proportion a sample, it may be important for the 

control authority to make an accurate flow measurement for 

each regulated discharge. Therefore, control authority 

sampling staff should also be prepared to measure flow in 

case the SIU does not regularly monitor the amount of 

wastewater discharged.  

TABLE A 

COMPOSITING METHODS  

1. a. 
Page 98 of 102



 

58 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

c. 

Sample volume. The volume of samples collected depends on the 

type and number of analyses that are needed, as reflected in the 

parameters to be measured. The volume of the sample obtained 

should be sufficient to perform all the required analyses plus 

additional amounts to provide for any split samples or repeat 

analyses. The laboratory performing the analysis should be consulted 

for any specific volume required. A breakdown of the recommended 

minimum sample volumes for different pollutant parameters can be 

found in EPA's "Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and 

Wastes," 1979; "Handbook for Sampling and Sample Preservation of 

Water and Wastewater," 1982; and the current, EPA approved edition 

of "Standard Methods."  

d. 

Selection and preparation of sample containers. The selection and 

preparation of sample containers will be based on the parameters to 

be measured. Wastewater samples for chemical analysis are 

generally collected in plastic (polyethylene) containers. Exceptions to 

this general rule are oil and grease samples, pesticides, PCBs, and 

Compositing Principle Advantages Disadvantages Comments 

Constant sample 
volume, constant 
time interval 
between samples 

Minimal 
instrumentation and 
manual effort; 
requires no flow 
measurement 

May lack representativeness especially 
for highly variable flows 

Widely used in 
both automatic 
samplers and 
manual 
sampling 

Constant sample 
volume, time interval 
between samples 
proportional to 
stream flow 

Minimal manual 
effort 

Requires accurate flow 
measurement/reading equipment; 
manual compositing from flow chart 

Widely used in 
automatic as 
well as manual 
sampling 

Constant time 
interval between 
samples, sample 
volume proportional 
to total stream flow 
at time of sampling 

Minimal 
instrumentation 

Manual compositing from flow chart in 
absence of prior information on the ratio 
of minimum to maximum flow; change of 
collecting too small or too large 
individual discrete samples for a given 
composite volume  

Used in 
automatic 
samplers and 
widely used as 
manual method 

Constant time 
interval between 
samples, sample 
volume proportional 
to total stream flow 
since last sample 

Minimal 
instrumentation 

Manual compositing from flow chart in 
absence of prior information on the ratio 
of minimum to maximum flow; change of 
collecting either too small or too large 
individual discrete samples for a given 
composite volume  

Not widely 
used in 
automatic 
samplers but 
may be done 
manually 

Constant pumping 
rate 

Minimal manual 
effort, requires no 
flow measurement 

Requires large sample capacity; may 
lack representativeness for highly 
variable flows 

Practical but 
not widely used 

Sample pumping rate 
proportional to 
stream flow 

Most representative 
especially for highly 
variable flows; 
minimal manual 
effort 

Requires accurate flow measurement 
equipment, large sample volume, 
variable pumping capacity, and power 

Not widely 
used 

1. a. 
Page 99 of 102



 

59 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

other organic pollutant samples. These are collected in properly 

rinsed glass jars or bottles and sealed. Bacteriological samples are 

generally collected in properly sterilized plastic or glass containers.  

e. 

Sample preservation and holding time. In most cases, wastewater 

samples contain one or more unstable pollutants that require 

immediate analysis or preservation. Prompt analysis is the most 

positive assurance against error from sample deterioration, but this is 

not feasible for composite samples, in which portion may be stored 

for as long as 24 hours. It is important that preservation of the 

samples be provided for during compositing, where possible, in 

addition to being preserved before being transferred to the laboratory. 

Procedures used to preserve samples include refrigeration, pH 

adjustment, and chemical treatment. Proper preservation and holding 

dime for samples is essential to the integrity of the monitoring 

program.  

f. 

Other sampling references. The following references shall be utilized 

by the control authority to ensure proper sampling and flow 

measurement techniques. They include, among others:  

1. 

Handbook for Sampling and Sample Preservation of Water 

and Wastewater, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 

Environmental Monitoring and Support Laboratory, 

September 1982. Report No. EPA-600/4-82-029. NTIS 

PB83124503.  

2. 

Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and Wastes, U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency, Environmental Monitoring 

and Support Laboratory, 1978. Report No. EPA-500/4-79-

020. NTIS PB 297686.  

3. 

Compliance Evaluation Inspection Manual, EPA, Office of 

Water Enforcement, July 1976. 

4. 

NPDES Compliance Sampling Inspection Manual-MCD-51, 

USEPA Enforcement Division, Office of Water Enforcement, 

Compliance Branch. 

5. 

Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and 

Wastewater, American Public Health Association, 15th 

Edition. 

(4) 

1. a. 
Page 100 of 102



 

60 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

The owner of each facility discharging industrial wastes shall submit monthly 

to the city, on forms supplied or approved by the city, a certified statement of 

the quantities of its wastes discharged into the sewers and sewage works of 

the city or into any sewer connected therewith. Copies of pertinent 

information shall be submitted with the above statement. Such documents 

shall be filed with the city not later than the fifteenth day of the following 

month. A separate statement shall be filed for each industrial plant. The 

report will provide the quantity of water discharged to the city system during 

the reporting period and will contain results of analysis for parameters as 

specified in the facility's discharge permit.  

(5) 

Any industrial user in violation of this article must notify the city within 24 

hours of becoming aware of the violation and must resample and test and 

resubmit both results to the city within 30 days after becoming aware of the 

violation.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.7, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 210, 1-8-96; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-

95; Ord. No. 324, §§ 7, 8, 8-10-98)  

Sec. 19-213. - Discharge into storm sewer.  

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any sanitary wastewater into 

the storm sewer system, without exception.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.8, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-214. - Cooling or condensing water.  

Cooling and/or condensing water may be discharged to the storm sewer system only 

if a NPDES permit is obtained from the FDER.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.9, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-215. - Information provided by industrial users.  

The industrial users may be required to provide information needed to determine 

compliance with this article. These requirements may include:  

(1) 

Wastewaters discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time period. 

(2) 

Chemical analyses of wastewaters. 

(3) 

Information on raw materials, processes and products affecting wastewater 

volume and quality. 

(4) 

Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, sludge, oil, solvent, or other 

materials important to sewer use control. 

(5) 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

1. a. 
Page 101 of 102



 

61 
 

Formatted: Font: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  At least 0
pt

A plot plan of sewers of the user's property showing sewer and pretreatment 

facility location. 

(6) 

Details of wastewater pretreatment facilities. 

(7) 

Details of the systems to prevent and control the losses of materials through 

spills to the municipal sewer. 

(8) 

A description of the activities, facilities, and plant processes on the premises, 

including a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the facility 

which are or could accidentally or intentionally be discharged to the POTW. 

Material safety data sheets (MSDSs) of all chemicals shall be included and a 

spill containment plant shall be submitted for stored chemicals.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.10, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-216. - Special agreements.  

No statement contained in this division shall be construed as preventing any special 

agreement or arrangement between the city and any industrial concern whereby an industrial 

waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted by the city for treatment. However, 

there shall be no agreements made that would violate any state or federal pretreatment 

standard.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.11, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95)  

Sec. 19-217. - Federal or state test procedures.  

All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to 

which reference is made in this article shall be determined in accordance with the latest test 

procedures and guidelines for analysis of pollutants as specified in Rule 62-160, FAC.  

(Ord. No. 188, § 5.12, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 9, 

8-10-98)  

Secs. 19-218—19-235. - Reserved.  

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold,
Font color: Custom Color(RGB(85,85,85)),
Border: : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5"

1. a. 
Page 102 of 102



1 
 

ARTICLE V. SEWER 
USE 

 
DIVISION  1.  
 

GENERAL Sec. 19-181.  Definitions. 

 
Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the following terms and 

phrases, as used in this article, shall have the meanings hereinafter designated.  
The singular shall include the plural where indicated by the context. 

 
Act or the Act means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the 
Clean Water Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.). 

 
Approval authority means the director in an NPDES state with an approved 

state pre-treatment program and the administrator of the EPA in a non-NPDES 
state or NPDES state without an approved state pretreatment program. 

 
Authorized or Duly Authorized Representative of the User.   

(1) If the User is a corporation: 

(a) The president, secretary, treasurer, or a vice-president of the 
corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person 
who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation; 
or 

(b) The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating 
facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management decisions 
that govern the operation of the regulated facility including having the explicit 
or implicit duty of making major capital investment recommendations, and 
initiate and direct other comprehensive measures to assure long-term 
environmental compliance with environmental laws and regulations; can 
ensure that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather 
complete and accurate information for individual wastewater discharge permit 
[or general permit {optional}] requirements; and where authority to sign 
documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance 
with corporate procedures. 

 

(2)  If the User is a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or 
proprietor, respectively. 

(3)  If the User is a Federal, State, or local governmental facility:  a director or 
highest official appointed or designated to oversee the operation and 
performance of the activities of the government facility, or their designee. 

(4)  The individuals described in paragraphs 1 through 3 above, may designate a 
Duly Authorized Representative if the authorization is in writing, the 
authorization specifies the individual or position responsible for the overall 
operation of the facility from which the discharge originates or having overall 

1. a. 
Page 4 of 102



2 
 

responsibility for environmental matters for the company, and the written 
authorization is submitted to the City. 

Best Management practices (BMPs) means schedules of activities, prohibitions 
of practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to 
implement the prohibitions listed in Sections 19-207 and 19-208.  BMPs include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site 
runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw materials 
storage. 

 
Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in 

the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure 
in five days at 20 degrees Celsius, expressed in milligrams per liter. 

 
Building drain means that  part  of the  piping of a building  which collects 

wastewater inside the walls of the  building  and conveys it to outside  the  
building wall. 

 
Building sewer means the extension from the building drain to the public sewer 

or other place of disposal, also called "house connection." 

 
Categorical industrial user means an Industrial User subject to a categorical 
Pretreatment Standard or categorical standard. 

Categorical standards means national categorical pretreatment standards or 
pretreatment standard. 

 
Chemical oxygen demand (COD) means a measure of oxygen equivalent of 

that portion of the organic matter in a sample that is susceptible to oxidation by a 
strong chemical oxidant. 

 
City means the City of Wildwood or the city commission of the city. 

 
City commission means the duly elected officials of the city. 

 
City manager means the person designated by the city commission to 

administer all city activities. 

 
Control authority means the "approval authority," defined in this section, or the 

Director if the city has an approved pretreatment program under the provisions of 
40 CFR 403.11. 

 
Cooling water means the water discharged from any use such as air 

conditioning, cooling or refrigeration, or to which the only pollutant added is heat. 
 

Customer  means  every person  who is responsible  for contracting (expressly 
or implicitly) with the city in obtaining, having or using sewer connections with, or 
sewer taps to, the sewer system of the city and in obtaining, having, or using 
water and other related services furnished by the city for the purpose  of disposing  
of wastewater and sewage through such system. The word "customer" includes 
the occupants of each unit of a multiple-family dwelling unit building  as a 

1. a. 
Page 5 of 102



3 
 

separate and distinct customer. 
 

Daily maximum means the arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a 
pollutant collected during a calendar day. 

Direct discharge means the discharge of treated or untreated wastewater 
directly to the waters of the state. 

 
Director means director of the POTW. 

 
Easement means an acquired legal right for the specific use of land owned by 

others. 

 
Environmental Protection Agency or EPA means the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency, or where appropriate the term may also be used as a 
designation for the administrator or other duly authorized official of such agency. 

 
Excess strength wastewater means wastewater containing constituents whose 

parameters are in excess of normal wastewater. 
 

Existing source means any source of discharge, the construction or operation of 
which commenced prior to the  publication  by EPA of proposed categorical  
pretreatment standards, which will be applicable to such source if the standard is 
thereafter promulgated in accordance with Section 307 of the Act. 

 
Floatable oil means oil, fat or grease in a physical state such that it will separate 

by gravity from wastewater by treatment in an approved pretreatment facility. A 
wastewater shall be considered free of floatable fat if it is properly pretreated and 
the wastewater does not interfere with the collection system. 

 
Flush toilet means the common sanitary flush commode in general use for the 

disposal of human excrement. 

 
Garbage means the animal and vegetable waste resulting from the handling, 

preparation, cooking and serving of foods. 
 

Grab sample means a sample which is taken from a wastestream without 
regard to the flow in the wastestream and over a period of time not to exceed 
fifteen (15) minutes. 

 
Health officer means the county environmental health director. 
 
Holding tank waste means any waste from holding tanks such as vessels, 

chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks, and vacuum-pump tank trucks. 
 

Indirect discharge means the discharge or the introduction of nondomestic 
pollutants from any source regulated under section 307 (b) or (c) of the Act (33 
U.S.C. 1317), into the POTW (including holding tank waste discharged into the 
system). 

 

1. a. 
Page 6 of 102



4 
 

 Industrial user means a source of indirect discharge. 
 

Industrial wastes means the wastewater from industrial processes as distinct 
from normal wastewater. 

 
Infiltration/Inflow means  groundwater and  surface water which  leaks  into  the  

sewers through cracked pipes, joints,  manholes or other  openings. 
 

Instantaneous limit  means the maximum concentration of a pollutant allowed to 
be discharged at any time,  determined from/and by the analysis of any discrete 
or composited sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the 
duration of the sampling event. 

 
Interference means a discharge which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge 

or discharges from other sources, both: 

(1)   Inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations, 
or its sludge processes use or disposal; and 

 
(2)  Therefore is a cause  of a violation  of any requirement of the 

POTW's NPDES permit (including  an increase in the magnitude or duration of a 
violation) or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal  in compliance 
with  the following statutory provisions and   regulations or  permits issued there 
under (or  more   stringent state or  local regulations): Section 405 of the Clean 
Water Act, the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including  title  II,  more  
commonly  referred to  as  the  Resource Conservation  and Recovery Act 
(RCRA), and  including state regulations contained in any state  sludge 
management plan  prepared pursuant to subtitle D of the  SWDA), the Clean Air 
Act, the  Toxic Substances Control  Act, the  Marine Protection, Research and 
Sanctuaries Act and  any  state laws  which  reflect  the  same or  similar subject  
matter as these federal laws. 

 
Local Limit means specific discharge limits developed and enforced by the City 

upon industrial or commercial facilities to implement the general and specific 
discharge prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b). 

Medical waste means isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and 
blood products, pathological wastes, sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, 
surgical wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes, and dialysis wastes. 

 
National categorical pretreatment standard or pretreatment standard means 

any regulation containing pollutant discharge limits promulgated by the EPA in 
accordance with section 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1347) which applies 
to a specific category of industrial users. 

 
National pollution  discharge  elimination system  or NPDES permit  means  a 

permit issued pursuant to section  402 of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1342). 
 

National  prohibitive  discharge  standard   or  prohibitive  discharge  standard  
means  any regulation developed under  the authority of section  307(b) of the Act 
and 40 CFR 403.5. 

1. a. 
Page 7 of 102



5 
 

 
Natural  outlet  means  any outlet,  including  storm sewers  and  combined 

sewer overflows, into  a watercourse,  pond, ditch, lake or other  body of surface 
or ground water. 

 
New  source means: 
 
(1)  Any building,  structure, facility,  or installation from which there is or may  

be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after  the 
publication of proposed  pretreatment standards under section 307(c) of the Act 
which will be applicable to such source if such standards are thereafter 
promulgated in accordance with that  section, provided that: 

 
a) The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site 

which no other source is located; or, 

b) The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the 
process or production equipment that causes the discharge of 
pollutants at an Existing Source; or, 

c) The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, 
structure, facility, or installation are substantially independent of an 
Existing Source at the same site.  In determining whether these are 
substantially independent, factors such as the extent to which the 
new facility is integrated with the existing plant, and the extent to 
which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the Existing Source, should be considered. 

(2)  Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in 
a modification rather than a New Source if the construction does not create 
a new building, structure, facility, or installation meeting the criteria of 
Section (1) (b) or (c) above but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing 
process or production equipment. 

(3)  Construction of a New Source as defined under this paragraph has 
commenced if the owner or operator has: 

a) Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite 
construction program: 

 i)  Any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or 
equipment; or 

 ii)  Significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, 
or removal of existing buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary 
for the placement, assembly, or installation of new source facilities or 
equipment;  

or 

b)  Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or 
equipment which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time.  
Options to purchase or contracts which can be terminated or modified without 

1. a. 
Page 8 of 102



6 
 

substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design studies do 
not constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph. 

 
Noncontact  cooling water  means water  used  for cooling which  does   not 

come into direct contact  with any raw material, intermediate product,  waste  
product,  or  finished  product. 

 
Normal  wastewater  means wastewater discharged into the  sanitary sewers in 

which the average concentration  of total  suspended solids  and  BOD is not  
more than  250 mg/l, total phosphorus is not more than 15 mg/l, total nitrogen is 
not more than  30 mg/l; COD is not more than 450 mg/l; TSS is not more than  
250 mg/l; and a pH range of 6.5 to 8.0 and for which total flow is not more than  
25,000 gallons per day. 

 
Pass through means a discharge which exits the POTW to a water of the United 

States in quantities or concentrations which alone or in conjunction with a 
discharge or discharges from all other sources, is a cause of a violation of any 
requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the 
magnitude or duration of a violation); or wastewater constituent which is not 
adequately treated by the treatment process resulting in its discharge to the 
receiving environment. 

 
Person means any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, 

governmental entity or any other legal entity, or their legal representatives, agents 
or assigns. 

 
pH means  a measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a solution, expressed in 

standard units.  

 
Pit privy means a shored, vertical pit in the earth completely covered with a 

flytight slab on which is securely located a flytight riser covered with a hinged 
flytight seat and lid. 

 
Pollutant means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, 

garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, heat 
wrecked or discharged equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt and industrial, municipal, 
and agricultural waste discharge into water. 

 
Pollution means the manmade or man-induced alteration of the chemical,   

physical, biological and radiological integrity of water. 
 

POTW treatment plant means that portion of the POTW designed to provide 
treatment to wastewater. 

 
 

Pretreatment  means the reduction of the amount  of pollutants, the elimination 
of pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of pollutants, or the  alteration of the 
nature  of pollutant properties in wastewater prior to or in lieu of  introducing such  
pollutants into  a  POTW.  The reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, 

1. a. 
Page 9 of 102



7 
 

chemical or biological processes, or by process changes or other means, except  
as prohibited  Rule 62-625.410(5),  FAC. 

 
Pretreatment requirements means any substantive or procedural requirement 

related to pretreatment, other than a national pretreatment standard imposed on 
an industrial user. 

 
Pretreatment standards or standards means pretreatment standards shall 

mean prohibited discharge standards, categorical pretreatment standards, and 
local limits. 

 
Prohibited discharge standards or prohibited discharges means absolute 

prohibitions against the discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions 
appear in section 19-207. 

 
Properly shredded means the wastes from the preparation, cooking, and 

dispensing of food that has been shredded  to such a degree that all particles will 
be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, 
with no particle greater than  one-half inch in any  dimension. 

 
Public sewer means a common sewer controlled by a governmental agency or 

public utility. 
 

Publicly owned treatment works (POTW) means a treatment works as defined 
by section 212 of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1292) which is owned in this instance by the 
city. This definition includes any sewers that convey wastewater to the POTW 
treatment plant, but does not include pipes, sewers or other conveyances not 
connected to a facility providing treatment. For the purposes of this article, POTW 
shall also include any sewers that convey wastewaters to the POTW from 
persons outside the city who are, by contract or agreement with the city, users of 
the city's POTW. 

 
Sanitary sewer means a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried wastes from 

residences, commercial building, industrial plants, and institutions together with 
minor quantities of ground, storm and surface waters that are not admitted 
intentionally. 

 
Septic tank means a subsurface impervious tank designed to temporarily retain 

sewage or similar waterborne wastes together with: 

 
(1)  A sewer  line  constructed with  soldered  pipe,  with  the  joints sealed,  

connecting  the impervious tank with  a plumbing stub  out; and 
 

(2)   A subsurface system  of trenches, piping  and  other  materials constructed 
to drain  the clarified  discharge from  the  tank and  distribute it underground to 
be absorbed  or filtered. 

 
Sewage  means  the  spent water of a community.  The equivalent term is 

"wastewater," as defined  in this section. 
 

1. a. 
Page 10 of 102



8 
 

Sewer  means  a pipe or conduit  that carries wastewater. 

 
Significant  industrial  user  (SIU)   means any   industrial user   of the  city's  

wastewater disposal system who is: 

 
(1) An Industrial User subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards; or 

(2) An Industrial User that: 

(a) Discharges an average of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gpd or more 
of process wastewater to the POTW (excluding sanitary, noncontact 
cooling and boiler blow down wastewater); 

(b) Contributes a process waste stream which makes up five (5) percent 
or more of the average dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the 
POTW treatment plant; or 

(c) Is designated as such by the City on the basis that it has a reasonable 
potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any 
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement. 

  
Significant  noncompliance  or SNC  means  an SIU  shall  be in  significant 

noncompliance when any one or more of the following criteria are satisfied: 

 
(1)  Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits defined here as those in 
which sixty-six percent (66%) or more of all measurements taken for the same 
pollutant parameter taken during a six (6) month period exceed (by any 
magnitude) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including 
Instantaneous Limits as defined in Section 2 ; 

 
(2)  Technical review criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 
thirty-three percent (33%) or more of wastewater measurements taken for each 
pollutant parameter during a six (6) month period equals or exceeds the product 
of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including Instantaneous 
Limits, as defined in Section 2, multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4 for BOD, 
TSS, fats, oils and grease, and 1.2 for all other pollutants except pH);   

 
(3) Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined 
by Section 2 (Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative 
standard) that [the Superintendent] determines has caused, alone or in 
combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass Through, including 
endangering the health of POTW personnel or the general public;  
 
(4) Any discharge of a pollutant that has caused imminent endangerment to the 
public or to the environment, or has resulted in [the Superintendent’s] exercise of 
its emergency authority to halt or prevent such a discharge; 
 
(5) Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days of the scheduled date, a compliance 
schedule milestone contained in an individual wastewater discharge permit [or 
general permit] or enforcement order for starting construction, completing 

1. a. 
Page 11 of 102



9 
 

construction, or attaining final compliance; 
 
(6) Failure to provide within forty-five (45) days after the due date, any required 
reports, including baseline monitoring reports, reports on compliance with 
categorical Pretreatment Standard deadlines, periodic self-monitoring reports and 
reports on compliance with compliance schedules; 
 
(7) Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or 
 
(8) Any other violation(s), which may include a violation of Best Management 
Practices, which [the Superintendent] determines will adversely affect the operation 
or implementation of the local pretreatment program. 

 
Significant violation means any violation or group of violations of an industrial 

user's IWDP which establishes significant noncompliance. 

 
Slug means any discharge of water or wastewater which in concentration of any  

given constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any period of duration longer 
than 15 minutes more than five times the average 24-hour concentrations of flows 
during normal operation and shall adversely affect the collection system and/or  
performance of the wastewater facilities. 

 
Spill containment plan means a detailed plan showing facilities and operating 

procedures to provide protection from accidental discharge. 

 
Standard industrial classification (SIC) means a classification pursuant to the 

Standard Industrial  Classification Manual  issued  by the  Executive Office  of  the  
President, Office of Management and Budget, 1972. 

 
Storm drain, sometimes termed storm sewer, means a drain or sewer for 

conveying water, groundwater, subsurface water,  or unpolluted water  from  any 
source. 

 
Stormwater means any flow occurring during or following any form of natural 

precipitation and resulting therefrom. 

 
Suspended solids means total suspended matter that either floats on the 

surface  of, or is in suspension in, water, wastewater, or other liquids, and that is  
removable by  laboratory filtering as prescribed in Standard Methods for the 
Examination of Water  and Wastewater and referred to as nonfilterable residue. 

 
Total nitrogen  (TN)  means  TKN + nitrate/nitrite. 
 

Total toxic organics (TTO) means the summation of all quantifiable values, 
greater than 0.01 mg/l, of toxic organic  substances identified   by the  EPA for  
electroplating point  source categories listed  in  40 CFR 413.02(i)  and  for metal  
finishing subcategories listed  in 40 CFR 433.ll(e), or identified in any equivalent 
state law. 

 
Toxic pollutant means any pollutant or combination of pollutants listed as toxic  

1. a. 
Page 12 of 102



10 
 

in regulations promulgated by the administrator of the Environmental Protection  
Agency (EPA) under the provision of CWA 307(1) or other acts. 

 
Unpolluted water means water of quality equal to or better than the effluent  

criteria in effect or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality 
standards and would not  be benefitted by discharge to the  sanitary sewers and  
wastewater treatment facilities provided. 

 
User means any person who contributes, causes or permits the contribution of 

wastewater into the city POTW. 
 

Wastewater means the spent water of a community. From  the  standpoint of 
source, it may be  a  combination  of  the   liquid   and   water-carried  wastes  
from   residences,  commercial buildings, industrial plants, and  institutions, 
together with  any  groundwater, surface water and  stormwater that may  be 
present. 

 
Wastewater facilities means the structures, equipment, and processes required 

to collect, carry away, and treat domestic and industrial wastes and dispose of the 
effluent. 

 
Watercourse means a natural or artificial channel for the passage of water either 
continuously or intermittently. 

 
Waters of the state means all  streams, lakes, ponds,  marshes, watercourses,  

waterways, wells, springs, reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation systems, drainage 
systems and all other bodies or  accumulations of water,  surface or  underground, 
natural or artificial, public or private, which  are  contained within, flow through, or 
border upon the  state or any portion.  (Ord. No. 188, § 1.2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, 
§ 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 1, 8-10-98; Ord. No. 339, 
4-26-99)  Cross reference-Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2. 

 
Sec. 19-182. Abbreviations. 

 
The following abbreviations shall have the designated meanings:  
 
BOD, biochemical oxygen demand. 
 

CA, city attorney. 

 
CFR,  Code of Federal Regulations. 
 
CIVIL ACTION, civil litigation against a user seeking equitable relief, monetary 
penalties and actual damages. 
 
COD, chemical oxygen demand. 
 
CRIMINAL ACTION, pursuing punitive measures against an  individual and/or  
organization through a court  of law. 

 

1. a. 
Page 13 of 102



11 
 

D, waste water director. 

 
EPA, United States Environmental Protection Agency. FDEP, Florida Department 
of Environmental Protection.  
 
FINE,  monetary penalty assessed by the city. 
 
I, inspector (environmental specialist). 

 
IWDP, industrial wastewater discharge permit. 
 
l, liter. 

 
LATE FEE, monetary penalty imposed for late reporting. 
 
LOV, letter  of violation.  
 
MG, milligrams. 
 
MG/l, milligrams per liter. 
 
NOSNC, notice of significant noncompliance. 
 
NPDES,  national pollutant discharge elimination system.  
 
POTW, publicly owned treatment works. 
 
PUBLICATION, publication in the  annual list of significant violators. 
 
SIC, standard industrial classification. 
 
SIU, significant industrial user. 
 
SNC, significant noncompliance. 

 
SWDA, Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. 6901, et seq.)  
TSS, total  suspended solids. 

USC, United  States Code. 

 

(Ord. No. 188, § 1.3, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95;  Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-
95) 

 
Sec. 19-182.1. Director. 

 
(a)  Director and/or Authorized Staff.  The director shall be responsible for the 

administration and enforcement of all sections of this division and shall be 
responsible for the operation of the POTW. 

 
(b)  Records.  The director shall keep all records required under this division 

including records of all IWDPs as required by applicable state and federal 

1. a. 
Page 14 of 102



12 
 

regulations. 

 
(c) Public participation requirements. The director shall comply with all 

applicable public participation requirements of section 101(e) of the Act and 40 
CFR Part 25, in the enforcement of national categorical pretreatment standards. 

 
(d)  Public notice. The director shall provide individual notice and opportunity to 

comment to persons or groups who request in writing notification of local limits 
development. 

 
(e)  Public notification. The director shall annually publish in the largest daily 

newspaper of general circulation within the county a list of the SIUs identified as 
being in significant noncompliance with applicable pretreatment requirements or 
standards at least once during the previous calendar year. The notification shall 
also summarize any enforcement actions taken against the SIUs during the same 
12 months.  (Ord . No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95) 

 

Sec. 19-183.  Purpose and Policy. 
 

(a)  This article sets forth uniform requirements for direct and indirect 
contributors into the wastewater collection and treatment system for the city and 
enables the city to comply with all applicable state and federal laws required by 
the Clean Water Act of 1977 and the general pretreatment regulations (Rule 62-
625, FAC). The objectives of this article are: 

 
(1)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal 

wastewater system which will interfere with the operation of the system or 
contaminate the resulting sludge. 

 
(2)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the municipal wastewater 

system which will pass through the system, inadequately treated, into receiving 
waters or the atmosphere or otherwise be incompatible with the system. 

 
(3)  To protect the general public and wastewater facility personnel. 
 
(4)  To improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewaters and 

sludge from the system. 
 
(5)  To provide for equitable distribution of the cost of the municipal 

wastewater system. 
 
(6)  To enable the wastewater facility to comply with its FDEP wastewater 

facility permit conditions, residuals use and disposal requirements and any other 
federal or state laws. 

 
(b)  This  article provides for  the   regulation  of  direct and   indirect  
contributors to  the municipal wastewater system through the  issuance of 
permits to certain nondomestic  users and  through enforcement activities, 
requires user reporting, assumes that existing customer's capacity  will  not   be  
preempted,  and   provides for  the   setting of  fees for  the  equitable 

1. a. 
Page 15 of 102



13 
 

distribution of costs resulting from the  program established herein. 
 

(c)  This article shall apply to the city and to persons outside the city who are, by 
contract or agreement with  the city, users of the  city POTW. Except as 
otherwise provided herein the director shall administer, implement, and enforce 
the provisions of this article.  (Ord. No. 188, § 1.1, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-
23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 2, 8-10-98) 

 
Sec. 19-184.  Use of public sewers required. 

 
(a)  All premises shall be provided, by the owner thereof, with at least one toilet. 
All toilets shall be kept clean and in a sanitary working condition. 

 
(b)  No person shall dispose of human excrement except in a toilet. 

 
(c) It shall be unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the city, or in any 
area under the jurisdiction of the city, any wastewater or other polluted waters, 
except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with 
subsequent provisions of this article. 

 
(d)  Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain 
any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for 
the disposal of wastewater. 

 
(e)  The owner  of all houses,  buildings, or properties used  for  human 
occupancy, employment, recreation, or other  purposes situated within  the city 
jurisdiction and abutting on any street, alley, or right-of-way  in  which  there is not  
located  or may   in. the  future  be located a public sanitary sewer of the city, is 
hereby required at the owner's expense to install suitable toilet  facilities  therein. 

 
(f)  All sinks,  dishwashing machines, lavatories, basins, shower baths,  bathtubs, 
laundry tubs,  washing machines, and similar plumbing fixtures or appliances 
shall be connected to the public  sewer;  provided,  that where   no  sewer  is 
available, septic  tanks or  other  private subsurface disposal  facilities, approved  
in  accordance with  all applicable laws, may be used. 

 
(g)  The customer shall be notified when the sewer is available. 

 
(1)  Sewage  shall  be considered available to an  existing single-family 

dwelling when the dwelling  can  be connected   by gravity flow  to  a line  
in  any public  right-of-way  or easement which  passes the  property at any  
point. 

 
(2)  Sewage shall be considered available to any new single-family dwelling 

when the dwelling can be connected by the installation of 200 linear feet of 
gravity flow line from the nearest point of the property. 

         
(h)     Even if the sewer system is available, if the City has executed a contract                               
that allows continued use of a properly operating existing septic tank, as long as 
the terms of the contract are met and the existing septic tank is providing 

1. a. 
Page 16 of 102

plaw
Rectangle



14 
 

adequate disposal, the terms of the contract will apply. 

 
(i)  Sewer charges shall be in effect upon notification of the availability of sewer 
service. (Ord. No. 188, § 2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 
1, 8-28-95) 

 
 

Sec. 19-185. Private wastewater disposal. 

 
(a)  Where a public sanitary sewer is not available under the provisions of 

section 19-184, the building sewer shall be connected to a private wastewater 
disposal system complying with the provisions of this section.  No person shall 
construct a septic tank or other wastewater disposal facility without prior approval 
from the city manager's office. The availability of sewer is defined in section 19-
184. 

 
(b)  Septic tanks shall be constructed, repaired, altered, enlarged and 

maintained in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the county 
health officer. 

 
(c)  No person shall construct, repair, alter or enlarge any septic tank unless 

he receives approval by the wastewater director and shall hold a valid permit for 
such work issued by the county health officer. 

 
(d)  The type, capacities, location, and layout of a private wastewater 

disposal system shall comply with all regulations of the state department of 
environmental protection and all other applicable regulations. No septic tank or 
cesspool shall be permitted to discharge to any natural outlet. 

 
(e)  No septic tank or other subsurface disposal facility shall be installed 

where a public sewer is accessible to the premises involved. 
 

(f) At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by 
a private wastewater disposal system, a direct connection shall be made to the 
public sewer within 30 days if the property is located within the city and 120 days 
if the Property is located outside of the city after notice and no further connection 
or interconnection With such previously used facility shall be allowed. Even if the 
sewer system is available, if the City has executed a contract that allows 
continued use of a properly operating existing septic tank, as long as the terms 
of the contract are met and the existing septic tank is providing adequate 
disposal, the terms of the contract will apply. 

 
 

(g) The owner(s) shall operate and maintain the private wastewater disposal 
facilities in a sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the city. 

 
(h)   Every flush toilet shall be connected to a public sewer where available 

or to a septic tank. Flush toilets shall be provided at all times, with sufficient 
running water under pressure to flush the toilet clean after each use. 

 

1. a. 
Page 17 of 102

plaw
Rectangle

plaw
Rectangle



15 
 

(i)   No pit privy shall be installed. 
 

(j)  Discharge of septic tanks into sewer system. 
 

(1)   Restricted. It shall be unlawful  to empty, dump, throw or 
otherwise discharge, into any manhole,  catch  basin  or  other  
opening,  into  the  city sewer  system, or any system connected with 
and discharging into the sewer system, the contents of any septic 
tank, sludge,  sewage  or other  similar matter or material, except as 
provided in paragraph (2). 

 
(2)  Permits. The director is hereby authorized to grant permits to 
discharge the contents of septic tanks (from domestic sources only) 
at locations specified by him and under his supervision. Such permits 
may be revoked at any time if, in the opinion of the director, continued 
dumping of such matter into the sewers will be injurious to the sewer 
system or treatment processes. 

 
(3)  Charges. A charge shall be made for the privilege of dumping 
contents of septic tanks, as provided in separate rules. A record shall 
be kept of such dumping and statements shall be payable within ten 
days after rendition. Failure to pay the amounts due within such ten-
day period shall be cause for revoking the permit. 

 
(k)  Any premises that have a septic tank, privy or any other sewage, 

industrial waste, or liquid waste disposal system, located thereon that does not 
function in a sanitary manner shall be corrected within 30 days from the receipt of 
written notification from the director that the system is not functioning in a sanitary 
manner, and order that the system be corrected. 

 
(l)  Premises  with  private  water  systems shall  not be connected  with  the  

public sewage system unless  approved  by the director, 

 
(m)  No statement contained in this section shall be construed to interfere 

with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the county health officer 
or director.  (Ord. No. 188, § 3, 8-24-87; Ord . No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, 
§ 1, 8-28-95) 

 
Sec. 19-186.  Building sewers and connections. 

 
 

(a)  Permit required. No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any 
connections with or opening into, use, alter, or disturb any public sewer or 
appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the director. 

 
(b)  Application fee. The owner or his agent shall make application on a special 

form furnished by the city.  The permit application shall be supplemented by any 
plans, specifications, or other information considered pertinent in the judgment of 
the director. A permit and inspection fee as specified elsewhere shall be paid at 
the time the application is filed. 

1. a. 
Page 18 of 102



16 
 

 
(c) Costs indemnification. All costs and expenses incidental to the installation 

and connection of the building sewer shall be borne by the owner.  The owner 
shall indemnify the city from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be 
occasioned by the installation of the building sewer. 

 
(d)  Separate buildings. A separate and independent building sewer shall be 

provided for every building; except where one building stands at the rear of 
another on an interior lot and no private sewer is available or can be constructed 
to the rear  building through an adjoining alley, court, yard, or driveway, the front  
building sewer may be extended to the rear  building. However, additional 
connection fees may be required. The city does not and will not assume any 
obligation or responsibility for damage caused by or resulting from any such single 
connection aforementioned. 

 
(e)  Old building sewers. Old building sewers may be used in connection with 

new buildings only when they are found, on examination and testing by the 
director and community development department, to meet all requirements of this 
article. 

 
(f) Construction. The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a 

building sewer, and the methods to be used in construction shall all conform to 
the requirements of the building and plumbing codes or other applicable rules and 
regulations of the city. In the absence of code provisions or in amplification 
thereof, the materials and procedures set forth in appropriate specifications of the 
ASTM and WPCF Manual of Practice No. 9 shall apply. 

 
(g)  Elevation flow of sewage. Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be 

brought to the building at an elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in 
which any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, 
sanitary sewage carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved 
means and discharged to the building sewer. 

 
(h)  Surface runoff, groundwater. No person shall make connection of roof 

downspouts, foundation drains, areaway drains, air conditioner condensation 
lines, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building sewer or 
building drain which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary 
sewer, unless such connection is approved for purposes of disposal of polluted 
surface drainage. 

 
(i)  Excavations guarded.  All excavations for building sewer installations shall 

be adequately guarded with barricades and lights in compliance with all OSHA 
requirements so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, 
parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be 
restored in a manner satisfactory to the city. 

 
(j) Sewer availability costs. The city commission will define the availability of 

sewers and costs associated with sewer permits or construction. 
 

(k)  Manner of connection. The connection of the building sewer into the public 

1. a. 
Page 19 of 102



17 
 

sewer shall conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing codes or 
other applicable rules and regulations of the city, or the procedures set forth in 
appropriate specifications of the ASTM and the WPCF Manual of Practice No. 9. 
All such connections shall be made gastight and watertight and verified by proper 
testing. Any deviation from the prescribed procedures and materials must be 
approved by the director before installation. 

 
(l)   Infiltration, inflow. If any customer sewer connection permits entrance of 

infiltration or inflow, the director may: 

 
(i)  Require the owner to repair the sewer. 

 
(ii)  Charge the owner a sewer rate that reflects the additional cost of 
sewage treatment from the owner's property. 

 
(iii)  Require the owner to disconnect his sewer from the city's sewer 
system. 

 
(m)    Sewer service unavailable. Where sewer service is unavailable, all cost 

associated with permit, construction and extension shall be the responsibility of 
the permitting applicant. (Ord. No. 188, § 4, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; 
Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 324, § 3, 8-10-98) 

 
Sec. 19-187.  Malicious damage. 

 
(a)  No person shall  maliciously, willfully,  or negligently break, damage, 

destroy,  uncover, deface, or  tamper with  any  structure, appurtenance or  
equipment which is  a  part of the wastewater facilities. 

 
(b)  Any person violating this provision shall be subject to immediate arrest 

under charge of disorderly conduct and/or other appropriate charge and shall be 
responsible for any loss of revenue or monetary expenditures needed for repairs 
brought about by their actions and for any fines or penalties imposed upon the city 
arising from such damage. 

 
(c)  The city shall be entitled to attorney's fees and costs in any action or 

proceeding brought to enforce this provision or to recover damages caused by a 
violation of this article.  (Ord. No. 188, §6, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; 
Ord.  No. 279 §1, 8-28-95) Cross reference--Offenses and miscellaneous 
provisions, Ch. 13. 
 
Sec. 19-188.   Powers and authority of inspectors. 

 
(a)  Duly  authorized employees  of the  city  bearing proper  credentials and  

identification shall  be admitted with permission from proper authorities to all 
properties for the purposes of inspection, observation,  measurement, sampling  
and  testing pertinent to discharge  to the sewer  system  in accordance with  the  
provisions of the  article. 

 
(b)  While  performing  the  necessary work  on  private properties  referred   to 

1. a. 
Page 20 of 102



18 
 

herein,  the authorized employees  of the  city  shall  observe  all safety rules  
applicable to  the  premises established by the company, and the company shall  
be held harmless for injury or death to the employees. The city shall indemnify the 
company against loss or damage to its property by city employees  and  against 
liability claims and demands for personal injury or property  damage asserted 
against the company,  except  as such  may be caused  by negligence or failure  
of the company  to maintain safe conditions  as required by this  article. 

 
(c)  Duly authorized employees of the city bearing proper credentials and 

identification shall be permitted to enter all private properties through which the 
city holds an easement for the purposes of, but not limited to, inspection, 
observation, measurement, sample, repair, and maintenance of any portion of the 
wastewater facilities lying within such easement.  All entry and subsequent work, 
if any, on such easement shall be done in full accordance with the terms of the 
duly negotiated easement pertaining to the private property involved.  (Ord. No. 
188, § 7, 8-24-87; Ord.  No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord.  No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95) 

 
 

Sec. 19-189. Authority to disconnect service. 

 
The city reserves the right to terminate water and wastewater disposal services 

and disconnect a customer from the system when: 

 
(1)  Acids or chemicals damaging to the sewer lines or treatment process are 

released into the sewer causing rapid deterioration of these structures or 
interfering with proper conveyance and treatment of wastewater; 

 
(2)  A governmental agency informs the city that the effluent from the 

wastewater treatment plant is no longer of a quality permitted for discharge 
into the environment, and it is found that the customer is delivering 
wastewater to the city's system that is not sufficiently treated or requires 
treatment that is not provided by the city as normal domestic treatment; or 

 
(3)  The customer: 

 
a.  Discharges industrial waste or wastewater that is in violation of the  

permit issued  by city; 
 

b.  Discharges wastewater at an uncontrolled, variable rate in sufficient 
quantity to cause an imbalance in the wastewater treatment systems; 

 
c.  Fails to pay monthly bills for water and sanitary sewer services when 

due; 

 
d.  Repeats a discharge of prohibited wastes into public sewers; or 

 
e.    Fails to apply for and obtain proper permits.  (Ord. No. 188, § 11, 8-24-

87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord. No. 
324, § 4, 8-10-98) 

 

1. a. 
Page 21 of 102



19 
 

Sec. 19-190.  Legal remedy. 

 
In  the event  the city is required to disconnect service because of discharging 

by a customer or user into the POTW of any substance causing damage to the 
POTW including, but not limited to, any acids or chemicals damaging the sewer 
lines or  treatment process; any substances which have caused the effluent from 
the  wastewater treatment plant to no longer be of a quality  permitted for 
discharge into the environment; any discharge, industrial waste or wastewater that 
is in violation of  the permit issued by the city; any discharges of wastewater at an 
uncontrolled, variable rate in sufficient quantity to cause an imbalance in the 
wastewater treatment system; or any  discharge of prohibited waste, which results 
in any fines  or penalties being  assessed against the  city, the  city shall have the 
right to collect from the  user  or customer the  cost of repair of any  damage to 
the system caused by the materials which  led to the  disconnection. The  city 
shall also  be entitled to recover any fine or penalty assessed  against the  city  
assessed against  the   city  as  a  result  of  the  discharge by any regulatory 
agency  with  jurisdiction from  the customer causing the discharge. If the  city is 
forced  to  file an  action  to  enforce  these  provisions the  city  shall be  entitled 
to reasonable attorney's fees and  costs. 
(Ord.  No. 273, § 1, 1-23-95;  Ord.  No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95;  Ord.  No. 324,  § 5, 8-
10-98) 

 
Secs. 19-191-19-205. Reserved. 

 
DIVISION 2. 

 
RESTRICTED USE  OF PUBLIC SEWERS 

 
Sec. 19-206. Unpolluted  waters. 

 
No  person   shall discharge or  cause to  be  discharged any   unpolluted  

waters such  as stormwater, groundwater, roof runoff,  subsurface drainage, or 
cooling  water to any sewer. (Ord.  No. 188, § 5.1,  8-24-87; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-
23-95; Ord. No. 279,  § 1, 8-28-95) 

 
Sec. 19-207. Prohibited discharges generally. 

 
(a)  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following 

described waters or wastes to any public sewers: 
 

(1)    Any substances which  by reason  of their nature or quantity are, or 
may be, sufficient either alone or  by interaction with  other substances to 
cause fire or explosion  or be injurious in any other way to the  POTW or its 
operation. In no case shall pollutants or wastestreams with  a closed  cup  
flashpoint of less  than 140  degrees Fahrenheit (60 degrees Celsius), as 
determined by the test methods specified  in 40 CFR 261.21, be discharged 
to  the  POTW. At no time shall two successive readings on an  explosion 
hazard meter at the  point of discharge into the system (or at any  point  in 
the system) be  more  than five  percent, nor  any  single reading over  ten  
percent, of the  lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter.  Prohibited materials 

1. a. 
Page 22 of 102



20 
 

include, but are not limited to, gasoline, kerosene,  naphtha,  benzene, 
toluene,  xylene,  ethers, alcohols,  ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, 
perchlorates,  bromates,  carbides, hydrides and  sulfides  and  any  other 
substances which  constitute a fire   hazard or  a  hazard to the system. 

 
(2)    Any waters containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in 

sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with  other wastes, to injury 
or interfere with any waste treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans 
or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any  hazard in  the  receiving 
waters of the  wastewater treatment plant. 

 
(3)    Pollutants which  will  cause corrosion or structural damage to the  

treatment  works, but  in  no cases discharges with  a  pH lower than 6.5 or 
higher than 8.0  be allowed, unless the works is specifically designed to 
accommodate such discharge. 

 
(4)  Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of 

causing obstruction to the flow in sewers, or other interference with the 
proper operation of the wastewater facilities such as, but not limited to, 
ashes, bones, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, 
feathers, tar, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch 
manure, hair and fleshings, entrails, and paper dishes, cups, milk containers, 
etc., either whole or ground by garbage grinders. 

 
(5)  Petroleum oil,  non-biodegradable cutting  oil  or  products of  mineral 

oil  origin  in amounts that will cause interference or  pass  through.  (Ord. 
No. 188, § 5.2, 8-24-87; Ord. No. 249, § 1, 1-25-93; Ord. No. 273, § 1, 1-23-
95; Ord. No. 279, § 1, 8-28-95; Ord.  No. 324,  § 6, 8-10-98) 

 
Sec. 19-208. Restricted discharges. 

 
The following substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be limited in 

discharges to municipal waste systems to concentrations or quantities which will 
not harm either the sewers, wastewater treatment process or equipment, will not 
have an adverse effect on the receiving stream, or will not otherwise endanger 
life, limb, public property, or constitute a nuisance.  The city manager may 
set limitations lower than the limitations established in the regulations listed 
below, if in his opinion, such more severe limitations are necessary to meet the 
above objectives.  In forming his opinion as to acceptability, the city manager 
will give consideration to such factors as the quantity of subject waste in relation 
to flows and velocities in the sewers, materials of construction of the sewers, the 
wastewater process employed, capacity of wastewater treatment plant, degree 
of treatability of the waste in wastewater treatment plant, and other pertinent 
factors.   The limitations or restrictions on materials or characteristics of waste of 
wastewater discharged to the sanitary sewer are as follows: 

 
1) Any substance having a temperature which will inhibit 

biological activity in the POTW treatment plant resulting in interference, but 
in no case wastewater with a temperature at the introduction into the POTW 
which exceeds 40 degrees Celsius (104 degrees Fahrenheit). Unless a higher 

1. a. 
Page 23 of 102



21 
 

temperature is allowed under the user’s IWDP, no POTW, wastewater with 
a temperature exceeding 65.5 degrees Celsius (150 degrees Fahrenheit). 

 
2) Any substance which is harmful to the wastewater collection 

or treatment system, or is hazardous to the wastewater system because it 
contains flammable or explosive liquids, solids, or gases which by reason of 
their nature or quantity are, or may be, sufficient either along or by 
interaction with other substances to cause fire, or explosion or be injurious in 
any other way to the wastewater system or to the operation of the 
wastewater system.  At no time, shall two successive readings on an 
explosive hazard meter, at the point of discharge into the system (or at any 
point in the system) be more than five percent nor any single reading over 
ten percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter.  Such materials 
may exclude, but are not limited to gasoline, kerosene, naptha, benzene, 
toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, keytones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, 
perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides and sulfides and any other 
substances which the city, state, or EPA has notified the user is a fire hazard, 
a health hazard, or a hazard to the system. 

 
3) Wastewater containing more than 100 milligrams per liter of oils, 

fat or grease or any other combination thereof. 

 
4) Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. Garbage 

grinders may be connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, 
restaurants, hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places where 
garbage originates from the preparation of food in kitchens for the purpose of 
consumption on the premises or when served by caterers. 

 
5) All   wastewater   discharge   exceeding   local   limits   for   

metallic substances. 
 
  Local limits shall be set by resolution.  The established local 

limits apply at the point where the wastewater is discharged to the W WF. All 
concentrations for metallic substances are for total metal unless indicated 
otherwise. At his or her discretion, the director may impose mass limitations in 
addition to or in place of the concentration based limitations. 

 

  A copy of the approved local limits is available upon requested at 
the following location: City of Wildwood Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

6) Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances 
exceeding limits, which may be established by the Director. 

 
7) Any radioactive or isotopes of such half-life or concentrations as 

may exceed limits established in compliance with applicable state or federal 
regulations. 

 
8) Quantities of flow, concentration, or both which constitute a “slug” 

as defined in Section 19-181. 

 

1. a. 
Page 24 of 102



22 
 

9) Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amendable 
to treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed, 
or are amendable to treatment only to such degree that the wastewater 
treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies 
having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters. 

 
10) Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or 

wastes in the public sewer system, release obnoxious gases, form solids 
which interfere with the collection system, or create a condition deleterious 
to structures and treatment process. 

 
11) Wastewater, which does not constitute normal wastewater as, 

defined by this ordinance. 
 
12) Any substances that include or will cause pass through or 

interference. 
 

Sec. 19-210.  Interceptors. 
 

(a)  Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of 
the director they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes 
containing floatable grease in excessive amounts, sand, or other harmful 
ingredients; except that such interceptors shall not be required for private living 
quarters or dwelling units.  All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity 
approved by the director and shall be located as to be readily and easily 
accessible for cleaning and inspection.  In the maintaining of these interceptors 
the owner shall be responsible for the proper removal and disposal by 
appropriate means of the captured material and shall maintain records of the 
dates and means of disposal which are subject to review by the director.  Any 
removal and hauling of the collected materials not performed by owner’s 
personnel must be performed by currently licensed waste disposal firms. 
 
(b)  If any person fails to comply with this section and said failure results in 
damage to the city system, the city shall be entitled to recover the cost of repair 
of the system from said person and any fines or penalties assessed against the 
city as a result of such failure. 
 
(c)  In any action brought by the city to enforce this section, the city shall be 
entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 
 

  
Sec. 19-212.  Significant Industrial Users. 
 
 All significant industrial users discharging to the city sewer system shall comply 
with the following: 

 
(1) In order to  provide for  accurate sampling  and  measurement  

of industrial wastes, each designated discharger shall provide and maintain, 
on each of its industrial waste outlet sewers, a large manhole for sampling, 
or other devices acceptable to the city to be located outside or near its 

1. a. 
Page 25 of 102



23 
 

plant boundary line.  If inside of the plant fence, there shall be a gate near 
the sampling chamber with a key furnished to the city. There shall be ample 
room provided in each sampling chamber to enable convenient inspection 
and sampling by the city or its agent. The sampling port shall be of a design 
approved by the wastewater director. 

 
(2) Each sampling chamber shall contain a Parshall flume, 

accurate weir, or other approved device, with a recording and 
totalizing register for measurement of the liquid quantity; or the metered 
water supply to the industrial plant may be used as the liquid quantity 
where it is substantiated that the metered water supply and waste 
quantities are approximately the same, or where a measurable 
adjustment can be made in the metered supply to determine the 
liquid quantity.  The measuring, totalizing, recording devices are to be 
supplied, installed, and maintained by the owner.  All wastewater 
samples must be representative of the User’s discharge. Wastewater 
monitoring flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, 
kept clean, and maintained in good working order at all times. The 
failure of the User to keep its monitoring facility in good working 
order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that sample results are 
unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
Sec. 19-242.  Accidental discharge/slug control plans. 

 
(a) Each user shall provide protection from accidental or slug 

discharges of prohibited materials of other substances regulated by this 
article. Facilities to prevent accidental or slug discharge of prohibited 
materials shall be provided and maintained at the owner or user’s own 
cost and expense. 

 
(b) An accidental discharge/slug control plan shall address, at a 

minimum, the following: 
 

(1)  Description of discharge practices, including non-routine batch 
discharges; 

 
(2)  Description of stored chemicals; 
 
(3)  Procedures  for  immediately  notifying  the  director  of  any 

accidental or slug discharge, as required by section 19-283(f); and 
 
(4)  Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or slug 

discharge.  Such procedures include, but are not limited to, inspection and 
maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, loading and 
unloading operations, control of plant site runoff, worker training, building of 
containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic 
pollutants, including solvents, and/or measures and equipment for emergency 
response. 

 
(c) No user who commences contribution to the POTW after the effective date 

1. a. 
Page 26 of 102



24 
 

of this article shall be permitted to introduce pollutants into the system until 
accidental discharge procedures have been approved by the city. 

 
(d) Review and approval of such plans and operating procedures shall not 

relieve the industrial user from the responsibility to modify the user’s facility as 
necessary to meet the requirements of this article. 

 

 (e) In the case of an accidental or slug discharge, it is the responsibility of 
the user to immediately telephone and notify the POTW of the incident and 
provide written notification within five days of the accidental or slug discharge.  
The notification must include location of discharge, type of waste, concentration 
and volume, and corrective actions.  Such notification shall not relieve the user 
of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be incurred as a 
result of damage to the POTW, fish kills, or any other damage to person or 
property; nor shall such notification relieve the user of any fines, civil penalties, or 
other liability which may be imposed by this division or other applicable law. 

 
(f) The wastewater director shall evaluate each industrial user at least once 

every two years to determine if an accidental discharge/slug control plan is 
required. 

 
(g) Significant Industrial Users are required to notify the director immediately 

of any changes at its facility affecting the potential for a slug discharge. 
 

Sec. 19-281– Wastewater discharges. 

 
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge without a city permit to 

the POTW any wastewater except as authorized by the City and director in 
accordance with the provisions of this article. 

 
(b) Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit – contents. 

 

  An individual wastewater discharge permit, or a general permit, shall include 
such conditions as are deemed reasonably necessary by the director to 
prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect the quality of the water body 
receiving the treatment plant’s effluent, protect worker health and safety, 
facilitate sludge management and disposal, and protect against damage to the 
POTW. 

 

  (1)  Individual wastewater discharge permits must contain: 

 

  a.  A statement that indicates the wastewater discharge 
permit issuance date, expiration date and effective date;  

 

  b.       A   statement   that   the   wastewater   discharge   permit   
is nontransferable without prior notification to the city in 
accordance with Section 5.5 of this ordinance, and 
provisions for furnishing the new owner or operator with a 
copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit; 

1. a. 
Page 27 of 102



25 
 

 

  c.  Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, based 
on applicable Pretreatment Standards; 

 

 d. Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and 
record- keeping requirements.  These requirements shall 
include an identification of pollutants (or best management 
practice) to be monitored, sampling location, sampling 
frequency, and sample type based on Federal, State and 
Local law; 

 

 e. The process for seeking a waiver from monitoring for 
pollutant neither present nor expected to be present in the 
Discharge in accordance with Section 6.4.B.; 

 

  f.       A  statement  of  applicable  civil  and  criminal  penalties  
for violation of Pretreatment Standards and Requirements, 
and any applicable compliance schedule. Such schedule 
may not extend the time for compliance beyond that 
required by applicable Federal, State or Local law. 

 

  g.  Requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by 
the city to be necessary; 

 

 h.  Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the city must be 
included as a condition in the user’s permit. 

 
 Section 19-281(b) Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit contents. 

An individual wastewater discharge permit, or a general permit, shall 
include such conditions as are deemed reasonably necessary by the director to 
prevent Pass Through or Interference, protect the quality of the water body 
receiving the treatment plants effluent, protect worker health and safety, facilitate 
sludge management and disposal, and protect against damage to the POTW. 

(1) Individual wastewater discharge permits must contain: 

a. A statement that indicates the wastewater discharge permit 
issuance date, expiration date and effective date;  

b. A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is 
nontransferable without prior notification to the city in 
accordance with Section 5.5 of this ordinance, and 
provisions for furnishing the new owner or operator with a 
copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit; 

c. Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, based 
on applicable Pretreatment Standards; 

d. Self monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-
keeping requirements.  These requirements shall include an 

1. a. 
Page 28 of 102



26 
 

identification of pollutants (or best management practice) to 
be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, and 
sample type based on Federal, State and Local law; 

e. A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for 
violation of Pretreatment Standards and Requirements, and 
any applicable compliance schedule.  Such schedule may 
not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by 
applicable Federal, State or Local law. 

f. Requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by 
the city to be necessary; 

Section 19-282(b).  Permit application.   

Users required to obtain a wastewater contribution permit shall complete and file 
with the city an application in the form prescribed by the city and accompanied by 
a fee as set by the city from time to time.  New users shall apply at least 90 days 
prior to connecting to or contributing to the POTW.  In support of the application, 
the user shall submit, in units and terms appropriate for evaluation, the following 
information: 

(1) Name, address, and location (if different from the address). 

(2) SIC number according to the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, 
Bureau of the Budget, 1972, as amended. 

(3) Wastewater constituents and characteristics including but not limited to 
those mentioned in division 2 of this article as determined by a reliable analytical 
laboratory; sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with 
procedures contained in Rule 62-160, F.A.C., as amended. 

(4) Time and duration of contribution. 

(5) Average daily peak wastewater flow rates, including daily, monthly and 
seasonal variations if any. 

(6) Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans and details to show 
all sewers, sewer connections, and appurtenances by the size, location and 
elevation. 

(7) Description of activities, facilities and plant processes on the premises, 
including all materials which are or could be discharged. 

(8) Where known, the nature and concentration of any pollutants in the 
discharge which are limited by any city, state or federal pretreatment standards, 
and a statement regarding whether or not the pretreatment standards are being 
met on a consistent basis and if not, whether additional operation and 
maintenance (O&M) and/or additional pretreatment is required for the user to 
meet applicable pretreatment standards. 

(9) If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the 
pretreatment standards, the shortest schedule by which the user will provide 
such additional pretreatment.  The completion date in this schedule shall not be 

1. a. 
Page 29 of 102



27 
 

later than the compliance date established for the applicable pretreatment 
standard.  The following conditions shall apply to this schedule: 

 a. The schedule shall contain increments of progress in the form of 
dates for the commencement of major events leading to the construction and 
operation of additional pretreatment required for the user to meet the applicable 
pretreatment standards (e.g., hiring an engineer, completing preliminary plans, 
completing final plans, executing contract for major components, commencing 
construction, completing construction, etc.). 

 b. No increment referred to in paragraph a. shall exceed nine months. 

 c. Not later than 14 days following each date in the schedule and the 
final date for compliance, the user shall submit a progress report to the director 
including, at a minimum, whether or not it complied with the increment of 
progress to be met on such date, and, if not, the date on which it expects to 
comply with this increment of progress, the reason for delay, and the steps being 
taken by the user to return the construction to the schedule established.  In no 
event shall more than nine months elapse between such progress reports to the 
director. 

(10) Each product produced by type, amount, process or processes and rate of 
production. 

(11) Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per 
day). 

(12) Number and type of employees and hours of operation of plant and 
proposed or actual hours of operation of pretreatment system. 

(13) Any other information as may be deemed by the city to be necessary to 
evaluate the permit application. 

(14) A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility. 

(15) All wastewater discharge permit applications and user reports must be 
signed by an authorized representative of the user and contain the following 
certification statement: 

“I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were 
prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system 
designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate 
the information submitted.  Based on my inquiry of the person or persons 
who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for 
gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware that there 
are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the 
possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.” 

  The city will evaluate the data furnished by the user and may require additional 
information.  After evaluation and acceptance of the data furnished, the city may 
issue a wastewater contribution permit subject to the terms and conditions 
provided herein. 

1. a. 
Page 30 of 102



28 
 

 

Sec. 19-283.  Reporting requirement for permittee.  

a) Baseline monitoring reports. 

(1) Within either 180 days after the effective date of a 
categorical pretreatment standard, or the final administrative 
decision on a category determination under Rule 62-
625.410(2)(d), F.A.C., whichever is later, existing industrial users 
currently discharging to or scheduled to discharge to the POTW 
shall submit to the director a report which contains the information 
listed in paragraph (2) below. At least 90 days prior to 
commencement of their discharge, new sources, and sources 
that become categorical users subsequent to the promulgation of 
an applicable categorical standard, shall submit to the director a 
report which contains the information listed in paragraph (2), 
below.   New sources shall report the method of pretreatment it 
intends to use to meet applicable pretreatment standards.  New 
source also shall give estimates of the information requested in 
paragraph (2)(d) and (3) below. 

 
(2) Industrial users described above shall submit the information set 

forth below: 

 
a. Identifying information. The name and address of the 

facility, including the name of the operator and owner. 

 
b. Permits.  A list of any pollution control permits held by or 

for the facility. 

 
c. Description of operations.  A brief description of the 

nature, average rate of production, and standard   
industrial classifications (SIC) codes of the operation(s) 
carried out by such user.   This description should include 
a schematic process diagram which indicates points of 
discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes. 

 
d. Flow measurement.   Information  showing  the  measured 

average daily and maximum daily flow, in gallons per day, 
to the POTW from regulated process streams and other 
streams, as necessary, to allow use of the combined 
wastestream formula set out in 62-625.41(6) F.A.C. 

 

e. Measurement of pollutants. 

 
1. Except as indicated in Section B and C below, the 

User must collect wastewater samples using 24-
hour flow- proportional composite sampling 
techniques, unless time-proportional composite 

1. a. 
Page 31 of 102



29 
 

sampling or grab sampling is authorized by [the 
Superintendent].  Where time- proportional 
composite sampling or grab sampling is authorized 
by [the City]; the samples must be representative of 
the discharge.   Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 
136 and appropriate EPA guidance, multiple grab 
samples collected during a 24-hour period may be 
composited prior to the analysis as follows: for 
cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides and the sulfide 
samples may be composited in the laboratory.  
Composite samples for other parameters unaffected 
by the composting procedures as documented in 
approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by 
[the City], as appropriate. In addition, grab samples 
may be required to show compliance with 
Instantaneous Limits. 

 

  2.  Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, 
cyanide, total phenols, sulfides, and volatile organic 
compounds must be obtained using grab collection 
techniques. 

 

  3.  For sampling required in support of a baseline 
monitoring and 90-day compliance reports required 
in Section 6.1 and 6.3 [40 CFR 403.12 (b) and (d)], 
a minimum of four (4) grab samples must be used for 
pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide 
and volatile organic compounds for facilities for 
which historical sampling data are available, [the 
Superintendent] may authorize a lower minimum.  
For the reports required by paragraphs Section 6.4 
(40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User 
is required to collect the number of grab samples 
necessary to assess and assure compliance by with 
applicable Pretreatment Standards and 
Requirements. 

 

4.     The categorical pretreatment standards applicable 
to each regulated process. 

 
5.     The results of sampling and analysis identifying the 

nature and concentration, and/or mass, where 
required by the standard or by the director, of 
regulated pollutants in the discharge from each 
regulated process. Instantaneous, daily maximum, 
and long-term average concentrations, or mass, 
where required, shall be reported.   The sample 
shall be representative of daily operations and all 
laboratory and analytical reports shall comply with 

1. a. 
Page 32 of 102



30 
 

Rule 62-160.670, F.A.C. 

 
6.     A minimum of four grab samples must be used for 

any of these applicable tests: pH, cyanide, total 
phenals, oil and grease, sulfide, volatile organics, 
temperature dissolved oxygen, chlorine residual, uni-
ionized ammonia, microbiology, specific 
conductance, and dissolved constituents (e.g. ortho 
phosphate, etc.). For all other pollutants, 24-hour 
composite samples must be obtained through flow-
proportional composite sampling techniques where 
feasible.  The control authority shall waive flow-
proportional composite sampling for any industrial 
user that demonstrates that flow-proportional 
sampling is technically infeasible.   In such cases, 
samples shall be obtained through time-proportional 
composite sampling techniques or through a 
minimum of four grab samples where the industrial 
user demonstrates that this will provide a 
representative sample of effluent being discharged. 

 
7.    The industrial user shall take a minimum of one 

representative sample to compile that data 
necessary to comply with these requirements. 

 
8.     Samples shall be taken immediately downstream from 

pretreatment facilities, if such exist, or immediately 
downstream from   the   regulated   process   if   no 
pretreatment exists.  If other wastewaters are 
mixed with the regulated wastewater prior to 
pretreatment, the industrial user    shall   measure    
the    flows    and concentrations necessary to allow 
use of the combined waste stream formula of Rule 62-
625.410(6), F.A.C., in order to evaluate compliance 
with the pretreatment standards.  Where an alternate 
concentration or mass limit has been calculated in 
accordance with Rule 62-625410(6), F.A.C., this 
adjusted limit, along with supporting data, shall be 
submitted to the control authority. 

 
9.    All activities related to sampling and analysis shall 

comply with Chapter 62-160, F.A.C., and shall be 
conducted under   the   requirements   of   Rule   
62-160.300(5), F.A.C., which is Category 2A. 

 

i. Sampling activities and laboratory analyses shall 
be performed according to procedures specified 
in “The Department of Environmental Regulation 
Standard Operating Procedures for Laboratory 
Operations and Sample Collection Activities” 

1. a. 
Page 33 of 102



31 
 

(DER-AQ-001/92) September 1992, herein 
incorporated by reference.   Alternately, an 
organization with the required protocols listed in 
their department approved comprehensive 
quality assurance plan may sample and analyze 
according to the protocols specified in that 
document. 

ii. To the extent possible, analytical tests shall be 
performed in accordance with the techniques 
prescribed in chapter 62-160, F.A.C. If a test for a 
specific component is not available in chapter 
62-160, F.A.C., the testing laboratory shall select 
an alternative method from those listed in DER- 
QA-001/92 and propose its use to the quality 
assurance section of the department.   The 
department shall determine if the proposed 
method is appropriate and applicable for use by 
the  laboratory  in  accordance  with  Rule  62- 
160.530, F.A.C. 

iii. Where sampling or analytical techniques for the 
pollutant in question are not available or 
approved, or where the department determines 
that sampling and analysis shall be performed by 
using analytical methods or any other applicable 
sampling and analytical procedures, including 
procedures suggested by the control authority or 
other parties, for which method validation 
information has been submitted and approved by 
the Department in accordance with Rules 62- 
160.430, 62-160.520 and 62-160.530, F.A.C. 

 
10.  The industrial user may submit a baseline report which 

utilizes only historical data so long as the data 
provides information sufficient to determine the need 
for industrial pretreatment measures. 

 
11.  The baseline report shall indicate the time, date 

and place of sampling; method of analysis; and test 
results for each component and shall certify that such 
sampling and analysis is representative of normal 
work cycles and expected pollutant discharges to the 
POTW. 

 

f. Certification  of  Permit  Applications,  User  Reports  and  
Initial Monitoring Waiver– The following certification statement is 
required to be signed and submitted by Users submitting permit 
applications in accordance with Section 4.7; Users submitting 
baseline monitoring reports on compliance with the categorical 
Pretreatment Standard deadlines under Section 6.3; Users 
submitting periodic compliance reports required by Section 6.4 A-

1. a. 
Page 34 of 102



32 
 

D, and Users submitting an initial request to forego sampling of 
a pollutant on the basis of Section 6.4B(4). The following 
certification statement must be signed and by an Authorized 
Representative as defined in Section 1.4C: 

 

  I certify under penalty of law that this document and all 
attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in 
accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified 
personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.  
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the 
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.   I am aware 
that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for 
knowing violations. 

 

g. Compliance schedule. If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will 
be required to meet the pretreatment standards, the shortest 
schedule by which the user will provide such additional 
pretreatment and/or O&M. The completion date in this schedule 
shall not be later than the compliance date established for the 
applicable pretreatment standard. A compliance schedule 
pursuant to this section must meet the requirements set out in 
section 19-283(b). 

 
1. Where the industrial user’s categorical pretreatment 

standard has been modified by the combined waste stream 
formula in accordance with Rule 62-625.410(6), F.A.C., a 
removal credit in accordance   with   Rule   62-625.420,   
F.A.C.,   or   a fundamentally different factor variance in 
accordance with Rule 62-625.700, F.A.C., at the time the 
industrial user submits the report required by this 
subsection, the information requested in f. and g. of this 
subsection shall pertain to the modified limits. 

 
2. If the categorical pretreatment standard is modified by 

the combined waste stream formula, a removal credit, or a 
fundamentally different factor variance after the industrial 
user submits the report required by this subsection, any 
necessary amendment to the information requested in f. 
and g. of this subsection shall be submitted by the 
industrial user to the control authority within 60 days after 
the modified limit is approved. 

 
h. Signature and certification.  All baseline monitoring reports must be 

signed and certified in accordance with section 19-282(b)(14). 

 
(b) Compliance to schedule progress reports.  The following conditions shall 

apply to the compliance schedule required by section 19-283(a)(2)g.: 

1. a. 
Page 35 of 102



33 
 

 
(1) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates 

for the commencement and completion of major events leading to the 
construction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the 
user to meet the applicable pretreatment standards (such events 
include, but are not limited to, hiring an engineer, completing 
preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components, 
commencing and completing construction, and beginning on 
conducting routine operation); 

 
(2)      No increment referred to above shall exceed nine months; 
 
(3)      The user shall submit a progress report to the director no later than 

14 days following each date in the schedule and the final date of 
compliance, including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with 
the increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if 
appropriate, the steps being taken to return the established schedule; 
and, 
 

(4) In no event shall more than nine months elapse between such 
progress reports to the director. 

 
(c) Reports on compliance with categorical pretreatment standard deadline. 

Within 90 days following the date for final compliance with applicable 
categorical pretreatment standards, or in the case of a new source following 
commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the POTW, any user 
subject to such pretreatment standards and requirements shall submit to the 
director  a  report  containing  the  information  described  in  section  19- 
283(a)(2)d. through f. For users subject to equivalent mass or concentration 
limits established in accordance with procedures in [Rule] 62-625.410(4) 
[F.A.C.], this subject to categorical pretreatment standards expressed in 
terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production (or other 
measure of operation), this report shall include the user’s actual production 
during the appropriate sampling period.   All compliance reports must be 
signed and certified in accordance with section 19-282(b)(14). 
 

(d) Periodic compliance reports. 
 

(1) All significant industrial users shall, at a frequency determined by the 
director but in no case less than twice per year (in June and 
December), submit a report indicating the nature and concentration 
of pollutants in the discharge which are limited by pretreatment 
standards and the measured or estimated average and maximum 
daily flows for the reporting period.  The city may require more 
detailed reporting of flows if necessary to comply with the 
requirements of this article. All periodic compliance reports must be 
signed and certified in accordance with section 19-282(b)(14). 

 
(2) All  wastewater  samples  must  be  representative  of  the  user’s 

discharge.  Wastewater monitoring and flow measurement facilities 

1. a. 
Page 36 of 102



34 
 

shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in good 
working order at all times. The failure of a user to keep its monitoring 
facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the user to claim 
that sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. 

 
(3) If a user subject to the reporting requirements in this section monitors 

any pollutant more frequently than required by the director, using the 
procedures prescribed in section 19-283(k), the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the report. 

 
(e) Reports of changed conditions.  Each user must notify the director of any 

planned significant changes to the user’s operations or system which might 
alter the nature, quality, or volume of its wastewater at least 30 days before 
the change. 

 
(1) The director may require the user submit such information as may be 

deemed necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the 
submission of a wastewater discharge permit application under 
section 12-282(b). 

 
(2) The director may issue a wastewater discharge permit under section 

19-282 or modify an existing wastewater discharge permit under 
section 19-282(c) in response to changed conditions or anticipated 
changed conditions. 
 

(3) For purposes of this requirement, significant changed include, but are 
not limited to, flow increases of 20 percent or greater, and the 
discharge of any previously unreported pollutants. 

 
(f) Reports of potential problems. 
 

(1) In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental 
discharges, discharges   of   a   nonroutine,   episodic   nature,   a 
noncustomary batch discharge, or a slug load, that may cause 
potential problems for the POTW, the user shall immediately 
telephone and notify the director of the incident. This notification shall 
include the location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and 
volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the user. 

 
(2) Within five days following such discharge, the user shall, unless 

waived by the director, submit a detailed written report describing the 
cause(s) of the discharge and the measures to be taken by the user 
to prevent similar future occurrences.   Such notification shall not 
relieve the user of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which 
may be incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural 
resources, or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such 
notification relieve the user of any fines, penalties, or other liability 
which may be imposed pursuant to this article. 

 
(3) A notice shall be permanently posed on the user’s bulletin board or 

1. a. 
Page 37 of 102



35 
 

other permanent place advising employees whom to call in the event 
of a discharge described in subsection (1) above.  Employers shall 
ensure that all employees, who may cause such a discharge to occur, 
are advised of the emergency notification procedure. 

 
(g) Reports  from  unpermitted  users.    All  users  not  required  to  obtain  a 

wastewater discharge permit shall provide appropriate reports to the director 
as the director may require. 

 
(h) Notice of violation/repeat sampling and reporting. If sampling performed by a 

user indicates a violation, the user must notify the director within 24 hours of 
becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also repeat the sampling and 
analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the director within 
30 days after becoming aware of the violation.  The user is not required to 
resample if the director monitors at the user’s facility at least once a month, or 
if the director samples between the user’s initial sampling and when the 
user receives the results of this sampling. 

 
(i) Notification of discharge hazardous waste. 
 

(1) The  industrial  user  shall  notify  the  control  authority  and  the 
department’s hazardous waste and pretreatment authorities in writing 
of any discharge into the WWF of a substance, which, if otherwise 
disposed of, would be hazardous waste under Chapter 62-730, F.A.C. 
Such notification must include the name of the hazardous waste, the 
EPA hazardous waste number, and the type of discharge (continuous, 
batch, or other).  If the industrial user discharges more than 100 
kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the WWF, the 
notification shall also contain the following information to the extent 
such information is known and readily available to the user: an 
identification of the hazardous constituents contained in the wastes, 
an estimation of the mass and concentration of such constituents in 
the waste stream discharged during that calendar month, and an 
estimation of the mass of constituents in the waste stream expected 
to be discharged during the following 12 months. Industrial users who 
commence discharging after the effective date of this article shall 
provide the notification no later than 180 days after the discharge of 
the listed or characteristic hazardous waste.  Any notification under 
this subsection needs to be submitted only once for each 
hazardous waste discharged.  However, notifications of changed 
discharges must be submitted under subsection (e) above.  The 
notification requirement of this section does not apply to pollutants 
already reported under the self-monitoring requirements of 
subsections (a), (c) and (d) of this section. 

 
(2) Discharges are exempt from the requirements of subsection (1) above 

during a calendar month in which they discharge no more than 15 
kilograms of hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute 
hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute 
hazardous wastes as specified in chapter 62-730, F.A.C., requires a 

1. a. 
Page 38 of 102



36 
 

one-time notification. Subsequent months during which the industrial 
user discharges more than such quantities of any hazardous waste do 
not require additional notification. 

 
(3) In the case of any new department regulations identifying additional 

characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance 
as a hazardous waste, the industrial user must notify the control 
authority and the department’s hazardous waste and pretreatment 
authorities of the discharge of such substance within 90 days of the 
effective date of such regulations. 

 
(4) In the case of any notification made under this  subsection, the 

industrial user shall certify that it has a program in place to reduce the 
volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated to the degree it 
has determined to be economically practical. 

 
(5) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not 

permitted to be discharged by this ordinance, a permit issued 
thereunder, or applicable federal or state law. 

 
(j) Analytical  requirements.     All  pollutant  analyses,  including  sampling 

techniques, to be submitted as part of a wastewater discharge permit 
application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques 
prescribed in Rule 62-160, F.A.C., unless otherwise specified in an 
applicable categorical pretreatment standard.  If Rule 62-160, F.A.C. does 
not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, 
sampling and analyses must be performed in accordance with procedures 
approved by EPA. 

 
(k) Sample collection. 
 

(1) Except as indicated in subsection (2), below, the user must collect 
wastewater samples using flow proportional composite collection 
techniques. In the event flow proportional sampling is infeasible, the 
director may authorize the use of time proportional sampling or a 
minimum of four grab samples where the user demonstrates that this 
will provide a representative sample of the effluent being discharged. 
In addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with 
instantaneous discharge limits. 

 
(2) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenols, 

sulfides, and volatile organic compounds must be obtained using grab 
collection techniques. 

 
(l) Timing. Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date 

postmarked. For reports which are not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail 
facility serviced by the United States Postal Service, the date of receipt of the 
report shall be given. 

 
(m) Record keeping. 

1. a. 
Page 39 of 102



37 
 

 
(1)      Users subject to the reporting requirements of this article shall retain, 

and make available for inspection and copying, all records of 
information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required by 
this article and any additional records of such requirements, and 
documentation associated with Best Management Practices 
established under Section 2.4C.   Records shall include the date, 
exact place, method, and time of sampling, and the name of the 
person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were performed; 
who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques or methods 
used; and the results of such analyses.  These records shall remain 
available for a period of at least three (3) years. This period shall be 
automatically extended for the duration fo any litigation concerning the 
User or the city, or where the user has been specifically notified of a 
longer retention period by the city 

 
(2) Except as indicated in Sections b and c below, the user must collect 

wastewater samples using 24-hour flow-proportional composite 
sampling techniques, unless time-proportional composite sampling or 
grab sampling is authorized by the city.   Where time-proportional 
composite sampling is authorized by the city, the samples must be 
representative of the discharge.    Using protocols (including 
appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and 
appropriate EPA guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 
24 hour period may be composited prior to the analysis as follows: for 
cyanide, total phenols, and sulfieds the samples may be composited 
in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and 
grease, the samples may be composited in the laboratory. Composite 
samples for other parameters unaffected by the compositing 
procedures as documented in approved EPA methodologies may be 
authorized by the city, as appropriate. In addition, grab samples may 
be required to show compliance with Instantaneous Limits. 

 

 (3)    Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, total phenols, 
sulfides, and volatile organic compounds must be obtained using grab 
collection techniques. 

 

 (4)     For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day 
compliance reports required in Section 6.1 and 6.3 [40 CFR 403.12(b) 
and (d)], a minimum of four (4) grab samples must be used for pH, 
cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide and volatile organic 
compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not 
exist; for facilities for which historical sampling data do not exist; for 
facilities for which historical sampling data are available, the city may 
authorize a lower minimum.  For the reports required by paragraphs 
Section 6.4 (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial User is 
required to collect the number of grab samples necessary to assess 
and assure compliance by with applicable Pretreatment Standards 
and Requirements. 

 

1. a. 
Page 40 of 102



38 
 

Section 19-291.  Penalties. 

 a) Article violations.  Any person who is found to have violated any 
provision of this article or any condition of IWDP’s issued hereunder, shall be, 
upon conviction, subject to penalty in an amount not to exceed the maximum 
amount permissible by law or at least $1,000.00 or by imprisonment for not more 
than six months, or by both, for each offense.  Each separate violation shall 
constitute a separate offense, and upon conviction of a specified ordinance 
violation, each day of violation shall constitute a separate violation.  In addition to 
the penalties provided herein, the city may recover reasonable attorney’s fees, 
court costs, court reporter’s fees and other expenses of litigation by appropriate 
suit at law against the person found to have violated this division or the orders, 
rules, regulations, and IWDPs issued hereunder. 

 b) Falsifying information.  Any person who knowingly makes any false 
statements, representations or certification in any application, record, report, clan 
or other document filed or required to be maintained pursuant to this article, or 
IWDP, or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any 
monitoring device or method required under this article, shall, upon conviction, be 
subject to a penalty of at least $1,000.00 or by imprisonment for not more than 
six months, or by both.  Each day on which a violation shall occur or continue 
shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense.  

1. a. 
Page 41 of 102



2. a.  1. 
Page 1 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 2 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 3 of 12

plaw
Line

plaw
Line



2. a.  1. 
Page 4 of 12



LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

A COMPARISON OF EXISTING TO PROPOSED

General Fund Obligations                                   EXISTING DEBT SERVICE CURRENT -ANNUAL STATUS AFTER PROPOSED ESTIMATED PROPOSED NET IMPACT
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS              REFUNDING NEW DEBT SERVICE

Balance As OF Balance As OF

Sept., 2011 Sept., 2012 As Of April, 2013 As Of April, 2013 As Of April, 2013

Series 2000- City Hall Revenue Bond 1,352,858.00$                           1,330,240.00$                      86,878.00$                                              -$                                         -$                                       REFUNDED

 Series 2000A-City Hall Revenue Bond 526,187.00$                               517,744.00$                         34,752.00$                                              -$                                         -$                                       REFUNDED

COMBINED REFUNDING & PROPOSED NEW MONEY -$                                             -$                                       -$                                                         3,945,181.00$                       195,865.00$                         NEW LOAN

               TOTAL GENERAL FUND 1,879,045.00$                           1,847,984.00$                      121,630.00$                                            3,945,181.00$                       195,865.00$                         74,235.00$               2013

270,100.00$                         148,470.00$             2014-2032
195,865.00$                         74,235.00$               2033

PAID OUT no payment
7 YEARS EARLY 2034-2040

Enterprise  Fund Obligations                                EXISTING DEBT SERVICE CURRENT -ANNUAL STATUS AFTER PROPOSED ESTIMATED PROPOSED NET IMPACT
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS              REFUNDING NEW DEBT SERVICE

Balance As OF Balance As OF
Sept., 2011 Sept., 2012 As Of April, 2013 As Of April, 2013 As Of April, 2013

Series 2009-Champagne Farms Bank Loan 667,638.00$                               596,817.00$                         101,800.00$                                            -$                                         -$                                       REFUNDED

FDEP-SRF Loan #1 -1994 714,517.00$                               542,722.00$                         189,195.00$                                            -$                                         -$                                       REFUNDED

FDEP-SRF Loan #2 -1996 1,487,139.00$                           1,255,523.00$                      270,063.00$                                            -$                                         -$                                       REFUNDED

FDEP-SRF Loan #3- 2007 5,283,102.00$                           5,011,672.00$                      379,915.00$                                            4,873,835.00$                       379,915.00$                         STILL EXISTS

 TOTAL FDEP 7,484,758.00$                           6,809,917.00$                      839,173.00$                                            4,873,835.00$                       379,915.00$                         2013-2028

COMBINED REFUNDING & PROPOSED NEW MONEY -$                                             -$                                       -$                                                         3,577,051.00$                       229,631.00$                         NEW 2013

561,061.00$                         NEW 2014

466,462.00$                         NEW 2015
371,863.00$                         NEW 2016

371,863.00$                         NEW 2017
101,800.00$                         NEW 2018
101,800.00$                         NEW 2019

               TOTAL ENTERPRISE  FUND 8,152,396.00$                           7,406,734.00$                      940,973.00$                                            8,450,886.00$                       609,546.00$                         <  $331,427.00 2013

940,976.00$                         >  $            3.00 2014
846,377.00$                         <  $  94,596.00 2015
751,778.00$                         < $  189,195.00 2016
751,778.00$                         < $  189,195.00 2017
481,715.00$                         < $ 459,258.00 2018

481,715.00$                         < $ 459,258.00 2019
379,915.00$                         < $561,058.00 2020-2028

TOTAL-GENERAL AND ENTERPISE FUND 10,031,441.00$                         9,254,718.00$                      1,062,603.00$                                        12,396,067.00$                     805,411.00$                         

1,211,076.00$                      

1,042,242.00$                      

751,778.00$                         

751,778.00$                         

481,715.00$                         

481,715.00$                         

379,915.00$                         2020-2028longtermdebt comparison-2013

2. a.  1. 
Page 5 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 6 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 7 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 8 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 9 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 10 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 11 of 12



2. a.  1. 
Page 12 of 12



March 2013 
SUNDAY  MONDAY  TUESDAY  WEDNESDAY  THURSDAY  FRIDAY  SATURDAY  

     1 2 

       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

 6PM - Proposed Workshop 
to discuss Champagne 
Farms Well Site 

6PM – Parks & Rec. Board 
Meeting 

  6-9 PM Gourmet Food 
Truck Event 

 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

 7PM – Commission 
Meeting 

6PM – Historical Board 
Meeting Cancelled (SC Fair) 

630PM – Historical Assoc. 
Meeting Cancelled (SC Fair) 

    

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

  Bill Ed – Tallahassee for FLC 
Legislative Action Days 

Bill Ed – Tallahassee for FLC 
Legislative Action Days 

Bill Ed – Leadership Sumter 
County Class Day 

 
4-7 PM Teen Court 

 10 AM – Dixie 
Youth Opening 
Day 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

 7PM – Commission 
Meeting 

    10 AM – Annual 
Easter 
EggStravaganza 

31       

       

 

2. c. 1. 
Page 1 of 2



April 2013 
SUNDAY  MONDAY  TUESDAY  WEDNESDAY  THURSDAY  FRIDAY  SATURDAY  

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

       

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

  7PM – Commission 
Meeting 

6PM – Historical Board 
Meeting   

630PM – Historical Assoc. 
Meeting   

     

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

   6 PM – Wildwood Business 
Council Meeting (WWCC) 

Bill Ed – Leadership Sumter 
County Class Day (State 
Gov’t. – Tallahassee) 

 
 

4-7 PM Teen Court   

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

 7PM – Commission 
Meeting 

        

28 29 30     

        

       

       

 

2. c. 1. 
Page 2 of 2



2. g. 1.  
Page 1 of 4



2. g. 1.  
Page 2 of 4



2. g. 1.  
Page 3 of 4



2. g. 1.  
Page 4 of 4



 

Page 1 of  4

 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood Florida met in Regular Session, February 11, 2013 at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Present were: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Green, Clark and Strickland.  Also present were: 
City Manager Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, City Attorney Blair, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, Police Chief 
Reeser, Development Services Director Peavy, AVT Law, Utility Director Phillips, Public Works Director 
Kornegay, and Parks & Recreation Coordinator Hudson. 
 
The meeting was called to Order followed by an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the American 
Flag. 
 
1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
2, REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
  a. Special Presentations 
   1) Presentation of Service Award to Sandy Edwards for 28 years of service to the  
  City of Wildwood (No Attachments 
   
   UD Phillips indicated that Sandy was unable to attend the meeting due to illness.  Mayor  
  Wolf asked that the presentation be scheduled for the next meeting if Sandy is available.  
 
  b. City Manager – none  
  c. City Attorney – none  
  d. City Clerk – none  
 
  e. Commission Members 
 1) Commissioner Green – requested information about the basketball league. 

P&RC Hudson reported the old Wildwood Middle School gym is not available to the City 
this year because the school board is using it for some Wildwood Middle High School 
events and it is booked every day during the school year. No other facilities in the area 
were available this year. Commissioner Green asked if the basketball league could be 
scheduled for some other time of the year. P&RC Hudson indicated she would check on 
changing the time of year if a location is available.  

 
  2) Commissioner Clark – requested that the City Attorney review information on 

 controlling synthetic marijuana over the counter sales in the stores. The Attorney 
 General is encouraging cities and counties to outlaw it. It is causing problems for many 
 people.  

 
  f. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 

1) Peggy Smith of CSX and James Murray the Wildwood Trainmaster addressed 
the Commission. Noted that an additional track is being added to the S Line and is under 
construction at this time and when completed some freight trains will be moved from the 
A line through Orlando to Miami to the S Line through Wildwood. There could be an 
increase of 10-12 trains per day in the future, but only a couple at this time. Train speeds 
through Wildwood will be up to 50mph. They want to educate the public of what is 
happening and the danger of walking across the tracks at locations other than where  

3. a. 1.  
Page 1 of 4



 

Page 2 of  4

 

Minutes 
Page 2 
February 11, 2013 

 
crossings are provided. A Public meeting is planned at the Community Center to answer 
any questions the public may have. CSX has presenters available to speak at schools or 
other organizations. CSX would appreciate if the City could place information on the 
utility bills and on the Web. 
 
Mayor Wolf asked if there are statistics of incidents in other areas where the speed has 
been increased from 35 mph to 50 mph. Mr. Murray indicated he does not, but will find 
out if there are any.  
 
Commissioner Green noted that no matter what is done there will be some that will 
continue to cross the tracks. Ms. Smith noted they will work with them. Commissioner 
Bivins noted that some adults walk across the tracks to the soup kitchen every day. For 
them to walk all the way down to 44A and cross and then back up to the soup kitchen is 
quite far.  
 
Mr. Murray noted that education will be key. Ms. Smith suggested the dates of 20th 21st, 
or 25th and will confirm that. DSD Peavy noted the meeting will be held in the upstairs 
room of the Community Center due to events already scheduled for the downstairs. 
 
DSD Peavy noted that in discussion about the soup kitchen it came up for possible 
increase in public transportation. Possibly set up with Sumter Transportation for a daily 
run.  

 
  g. Notes and Reports 
 

 1) FYI – AARP Tax-Aide available at the Wildwood Community Center on Monday’s 
from 8:30 AM to 3:30 PM beginning February 4 and ending April 15, 2013 (Attachment – 
FYI Only) 

 
3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 
  a. MINUTES 

 1) Minutes of Regular Meeting held on January 28, 2013 (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

 
 Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Green to adopt the 
 minutes of January 28, 2013 as typed. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 

1) Ordinance O2013-05; An Ordinance repealing Article V of Chapter 19 of the City 
of Wildwood’s Code of Ordinances in its entirety and adopting a new Article V, Chapter 
19 pertaining to sewer use (Attachments) 

 
  Ordinance O2013-05 was introduced and read by title only on first reading. 
 
 Mayor Wolf asked how this change would affect what the City approved and promised  
 to many of those who annexed property into the City. Has it been checked,  against 
 the promises? CA Blair noted she will check through it because the changes were based 
 on what DEP requested. Mayor Wolf noted that during voluntary annexation  

3. a. 1.  
Page 2 of 4

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
,

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
 their

plaw
Highlight



 

Page 3 of  4

 

Minutes 
Page 3 
February 11, 2013 
 
 
 the people were concerned about having to pay to connect when they had operating 
 wells and septic tanks. The Commission approved that only if the property changes 
 ownership, zoning, or if the well or septic fails, that they would have to tie into the sewer 
 and water lines if they are available.  
 
 CA Blair noted that UD Phillips drafted the ordinance but followed what DEP told him. 
 Much of this is the same as it currently is, but some of it changed. Mayor Wolf stated the 
 Commission needs to see what the changes are. UD Phillips and CA Blair to review and 
 note the changes for the Commission before the second reading. UD Phillips indicated 
 most of this has to do with industrial waste, not residential. 
 
 No action taken.  
 
 c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL - None 
 
 d. APPOINTMENTS - None  
  
 e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS - None 
 
 f. FINANCIAL 
  1) Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark to approve payment of  
 bills. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
 Mayor Wolf asked if the on call in the utility divisions will one day be a combined as on 
 utility department on call. UD Phillips responded yes, that can be done.  
  
 2) Request approval to accept the low quote received from Bill Gregory to demolish 
 the old library on Maddox Street and remove the driveway asphalt  and replace with 
 clean fill and level to prepare it for a stormwater retention area when work begins in June 
 on 466-A/Cleveland Avenue (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
  PWD Kornegay indicated the agreement with the County was for the City to do this work. 
 
 Commissioner Strickland asked if the County retention area would look like the City’s 
 retention area behind City Hall.  Gene of KHA noted the depth and the slopes do 
 not require a fence and there is no fence planned. PWD Kornegay noted he would check 
 with the County for the City put in a wood fence similar to the one behind City Hall. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Strickland to accept the 
 low quote in the amount of $13,128.00 received from Bill Gregory to demolish the old 
 library on Maddox Street and remove the driveway asphalt  and replace with clean fill 
 and level to prepare it for a stormwater retention area when work begins in June on
 466-A /Cleveland Avenue. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
 g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

3. a. 1.  
Page 3 of 4

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
e

plaw
Typewritten Text
Losito

plaw
Typewritten Text
^

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
to



 

Page 4 of  4

 

Minutes 
Page 4 
February 11, 2013 
 

1) Extension of Wildwood Crossings, Oxford Crossings, and Oxford Crossings 
Apartments Planned Developments (PDs) due to State legislation (Attachments - Staff 
recommends approval) 

 
 DSD Peavy indicated they have received an extension of two months because of tropical 
 storm Isaac and they have asked the City for a six months extension for each. Does the 
 Commission want to grant the six months they have asked for in addition of the two 
 months to make a total of eight months? Regulations allow for 12 month extension. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Green to approve the eight 
 months Extension of Wildwood Crossings, Oxford Crossings, and Oxford Crossings 
 Apartments Planned Developments (PDs). Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
2) Approval requested to hold a “Food Truck” Night with family friendly 
entertainment on Friday, March 1, around City Hall and permission to close Wonders 
and Oxford Streets from US 301 to Gamble Street during the event (Jenny Hudson to 
present) (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
 P&RC Hudson indicated the date has been changed to March 8. She noted that the 
 Cotillion and Hollywood Café have been invited to set up. Hopes if this is successful that 
 it can be scheduled once each month. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Bivins, second by Commissioner Clark to approve a “Food 
 Truck” Night with family friendly entertainment on Friday, March 1, around City Hall and 
 permission to close Wonders and Oxford Streets from US 301 to Gamble Street during 
 the event, as requested with the date changed to March 8. Motion carried by unanimous 
 vote.   
 
4, ADJOURN 
 Upon a motion by Commissioner Green and second by Commissioner Strickland the meeting 
was adjourned.  
 
        CITY COMMISSION 
        CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 S E A L 
 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 

 

3. a. 1.  
Page 4 of 4



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The app
annexatio
213/Walk
 
Annexati
Planning
property.
 
The prop
Area has
property.
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

plicant, Cha
on applicati
ker Road an

on into the
 Area with 
.  

perty is inten
s designated
. 

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

ad Hughes 
ion for a 2
d SR 44. Th

 City is ap
Sumter Cou

nded to be 
d the subject

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-06: A
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

on behalf 
.67 +/- acre

he property t

propriate be
unty, and th

utilized as a
t property as

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

of Hughes 
e property 
to be annexe

ecause the 
he property 

an office for
s Industrial w

e O2013-06.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of Hughes

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

 Brother’s
located just
ed is a portio

property is
owner is m

r a construc
which is con

WILDWOO

s Brother’s

nance O20

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

LLC, has 
t north of t
on of Parcel 

 contained 
oving forwa

ction compa
sistent with 

OD 

s Property

013-06 

February 25

submitted a
the intersec
G07=133. 

within the 
ard with dev

ny. The Joi
the intended

y 

5, 2013 

a voluntary 
ction of CR 

City’s Joint 
veloping the 

nt Planning 
d use of the 

3. b. 1.  
Page 1 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-06 

Hughes Brothers Annexation 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 2.67 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF CR 213 
AND NORTH OF SR 44; IN SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 19 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED 
TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the east side CR 213 and north of SR 44, to be 
annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood pursuant 
to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the property is 
located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is contiguous to the 
municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal requirements for 
annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida owned by Hughes 
Brothers, LLC is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Portion of Parcel # G07=133 
2.67 +/- Acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

THAT PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST  1/4 OF SECTION 7, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: FOR A POINT OF REFERENCE, COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF THE SAID NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST  1/4, THENCE  RUN 
S.00°10'59'W. ALONG  THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 
1/4, A DISTANCE OF 560.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THOSE 
LANDS AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 583, PAGE 518 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE RUN S.89°57'06'E. 
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS 
BOOK 583, PAGE 518, A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST 

3. b. 1.  
Page 2 of 5



 

Ordinance O2013-06 
Hughes Brothers Annexation 

Page 2 of 3 
 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY  ROAD  No.  213 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUE S.89°57'06'E.  ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 
396.00 FEET, THENCE S.00°10'59'W. A DISTANCE OF 170.00 FEET, THENCE 
N.89°57'06"W. A  DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET, THENCE S.00°10'59'W. A 
DISTANCE OF 170.00 FEET, THENCE N.89°57'06'W. A  DISTANCE OF 346.00 
FEET TO A  POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD No. 
213, THENCE N.00°10'59"E. ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE 
OF 340.00  FEET  TO  THE  POINT  OF  BEGINNING;  LESS  AND  EXCEPT  THE  
NORTH  25.00  FEET  THEREOF. SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS AND 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 
 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 
  

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
 
  

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
  

3. b. 1.  
Page 3 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-06 

Hughes Brothers Annexation 
Page 3 of 3 

 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

3. b. 1.  
Page 4 of 5



Hughes Brothers 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

February 2013 Annexation

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 130 260

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - H

ug
he

s.m
xd

 - 2
/18

/20
13

 11
:49

:14
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

Legend
HUGHES ANNEXATION

Parcels

City of Wildwood

CR
 21

3

3. b. 1.  
Page 5 of 5



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The pro
approxim
annexed 
 
Annexati
Planning
 
The prop
the 466/3
propertie
consisten
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

perty owne
mate 1 acre 

is a portion 

on into the
 Area with S

perty is inten
301 Mixed 

es to be dev
nt with the Jo

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

er, Gary W
piece of pr
of Parcel D

 City is ap
Sumter Coun

nded to be u
Use District
eloped as c
oint Plannin

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-07: A
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

illiams, has
roperty loca
18=038. 

propriate be
nty, and the 

utilized for s
 of the Join
ommercial o
g Area. 

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

s submitted 
ated along C

ecause the 
applicant is 

ervice and s
nt Planning 
or residentia

e O2013-07.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of William

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

a volunta
CR 466 eas

property is
moving forw

sales of law
Area. The 4

al. As such, 

WILDWOO

ms Property

nance O20

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

ry annexati
st of CR 20

 contained 
ward with de

n mowers. T
466/301 Mix
the intended

OD 

y 

013-07 

February 25

ion applicat
09. The pro

within the 
veloping the

The property
xed Use Dis
d use of the

5, 2013 

tion for an 
perty to be 

City’s Joint 
e property. 

y lies within 
strict allows 

e property is 

3. b. 2.  
Page 1 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-07 
Williams Annexation 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.98 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF CR 466 
AND EAST OF CR 209; IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED 
TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the south side of CR 466 and east of CR 209, to 
be annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood 
pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the 
property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is 
contiguous to the municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal 
requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida 
owned by Gary Williams, Trustee is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Portion of Parcel # D18=038 
0.98 +/- Acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

From the Northwest corner of the East ½ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of 
Section 18, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, Sumter County, Florida, run S 00° 
00’03” E, along the west line of the North ½ of the East ½ of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Northwest ¼ of said Section 18, a distance of 65.08 feet, to the south right-of-way of C-
466; thence N 89° 30’42” E, along said south right-of-way, a distance of 238.72 feet, to 
the Point of Beginning of the following described parcel; from said Point of Beginning, 
continue N 89°30'42" E, along said south right-of-way, a distance of 142.89 feet, to a 
point that is 280.00 feet west of the East line of the North ½ of the East ½ of the 
Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of said Section 18; thence leaving said south right-of-

3. b. 2.  
Page 2 of 5



 

Ordinance O2013-07 
Williams Annexation 

Page 2 of 3 
 

way, run S 00°00'05" E, and parallel with said East line of the North ½ of the East ½ of 
the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼, a distance of 300.00 feet; thence S 89°30'42" W, 
a distance of 142.90 feet; thence N 00°00'03" W, a distance of 300.00 feet, to the Point 
of Beginning, and end of this description.  
Area described contains  42,866.92 square feet, 0.984 acres. 
Subject to easements, restrictions, reservations, and rights-of-way of record, if any. 
 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 
  

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
 
  

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
  

3. b. 2.  
Page 3 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-07 
Williams Annexation 

Page 3 of 3 

 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

3. b. 2.  
Page 4 of 5



WILLIAMS
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

February 2013 ANNEXATION

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - W

illia
ms

 An
ne

xa
tio

n.m
xd

 - 2
/18

/20
13

 10
:52

:59
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

Legend
Williams Annexation

City of Wildwood

Parcels

CR  466

U
S

 3
0

1

WILLIAMS

3. b. 2.  
Page 5 of 5



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The app
annexatio
222 west
 
All but th
omitted f
 
Annexati
Planning
propertie
 
Further, 
(located 
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

licant, Gary 
on applicatio
t of US 301. 

he north 100
from the orig

on into the
 Area with S

es that create

the applican
to the west o

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

Thurston o
on for the n
 

0’ feet of Pa
ginal annexa

 City is ap
Sumter Cou
e enclaves.  

nt is moving 
of Peppertre

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-08: A
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

n behalf of 
north 100’ fe

rcel D30=00
tion because

propriate be
nty. The app

forward with
ee Apartmen

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

the R. Willia
eet of Parce

03 was anne
e it would ha

ecause the 
proval of the

h a 40 acre 
nts) that inclu

e O2013-08.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of North 1

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

am Futch, T
el D30=003. 

exed into the
ave created 

property is
e Joint Plan

residential s
udes the pro

WILDWOO

100’ of Par

nance O20

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

Trustee, has
The proper

e City in 200
an enclave.

 contained 
ning Area a

subdivision o
operty subjec

OD 

rcel D30=0

013-08 

February 25

s submitted 
rty is located

05. The nort
 

within the 
llows the Ci

on the Futch
ct to the ann

03 

5, 2013 

a voluntary 
d along CR 

th 100’ was

City’s Joint 
ity to annex 

h properties 
nexation.    

3. b. 3. 
Page 1 of 4



 

 
Ordinance O2013-08 

North 100’ of Parcel D30=003 (Futch) Annexation 
Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.5 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF CR 222 
AND WEST OF US 301; IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED 
TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the south side of CR 222 and west of US 301, to 
be annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood 
pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the 
property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is 
contiguous to the municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal 
requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida 
owned by R. William Futch, Trustee, is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Portion of Parcel # D30=003 
1.5 +/- Acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

The North 100 feet of the East 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 
30, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, Sumter County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 

3. b. 3. 
Page 2 of 4



 

Ordinance O2013-08 
North 100’ of Parcel D30=003 (Futch) Annexation 

Page 2 of 2 
 

of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
  

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
 
 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

3. b. 3. 
Page 3 of 4



VILLAGE AT LEGACY PARK
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

FEBRUARY 2013 ANNEXATION

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - V

illa
ge

s a
t L

eg
ac

y P
ark

.m
xd

 - 2
/18

/20
13

 10
:37

:45
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

CR 222

U
S

 3
0

1

Legend
Village at Legacy Park

City of Wildwood

Parcels

Village at Legacy Park

3. b. 3. 
Page 4 of 4



3. e. 1.  
Page 1 of 3



3. e. 1.  
Page 2 of 3



3. e. 1.  
Page 3 of 3



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

1 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 5 Employees 3,060.09$      

2 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 19.99$           

3 The Daily Commercial Ads 79.78$           

4 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 49.49$           

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

5 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees 6,101.86$      

6 Bright House Internet Service 17.50$           

7 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 64.31$           

8 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 5.98$             

9 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 49.49$           

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

10 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees 10,206.74$    

11 Bright House Internet Service 34.95$           

12 Century Link Telephone Service 43.31$           

13 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 131.84$         

14 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 2.99$             

15 Lowes Bathroom Toilets and Repair 230.38$         

16 Progress Energy Electric Service 1,328.07$      

17 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 47.30$           

18 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 71.50$           

19 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 50.24$           

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

20 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees 8,800.65$      

21 Bright House Internet Service 35.00$           

22 Cason and Gaskins TV Inc Printer Cables 26.97$           

23 C & S Reprographics & Copy Ctr Coated Paper 84.97$           

24 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 64.31$           

25 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 38.87$           

26 Office Depot Office Supplies 415.71$         

27 The Daily Commercial Ads 660.17$         

HUMAN RESOURCES

28 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 1 Employees 2,014.84$      

29 Bright House Internet Service 8.75$             

30 Deanna Cox Personal Vehicle Use 204.06$         

31 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 64.31$           

32 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 20.93$           

33 Office Depot Office Supplies 1.85$             

34 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 30 Employees 62,497.97$    

35 BS Auto Salvage Tans Pan 50.00$           

36 Campbell's Gate Service, Inc. Slide Gate Operator 7,119.45$      

37 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 126.17$         

38 CarQuest Auto Parts Filter Kit, Tensioner, Pulley, Belts, Battery, Mounts, Etc 361.81$         

39 Central Sumter Utility LLC Electric Service 38.58$           

40 Century Link Translink Chan Term 1544 568.00$         

41 Chief Supply / Law Enforcement Ankle Holster, Name Plate 88.96$           

42 David Clarkson Boot Allowance 75.00$           

43 Coy Thomas Electric, Inc. Installed Conduit Wiring & J Box for Gate Opener 683.21$         

44 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 275.17$         

45 DSG Sands Corp Durabook w/Windows 7 Pro 1,154.00$      

46 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 239.15$         

47 Ford Press Business Cards 50.00$           

48 Glock Professional Armorer's Course 780.00$         

BILLS FOR APPROVAL

City of Wildwood, Florida

February 25, 2013

POLICE DEPARTMENT

3. f. 1.  
Page 1 of 4



February 25 2013

Page 2

49 Guardian Fueling Technologies, Inc Prokee Assy, Black 69.60$           

50 Key Scales Ford Seat Belt Assy 102.48$         

51 L3 Communications T602 Server 15,749.00$    

52 Lawmen's and Shooters Ammunition 363.55$         

53 Shayla Lawson Tuition Reimbursement 720.00$         

54 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 164.81$         

55 Maroone Dodge of Pembroke Pines Six Dodge Chargers 127,296.00$  

56 Merritt Department Store Windbreakers, 8 Point Hat, Blue Vest 450.89$         

57 Office Depot Office Supplies 53.48$           

58 Progress Energy Electric Service 223.36$         

59 Southern Custom Creations Front Fender Repair 35.00$           

60 U.S. HealthWorks PE-Basic, COC, DS-Panel - New Employee 65.00$           

61 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 29.00$           

62 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service , Bluetree 1,455.83$      

63 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 295.66$         

STREET DEPARTMENT

64 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 10 Employees 17,289.46$    

65 Bright House Internet Service 39.98$           

66 CarQuest Auto Parts Mirror, Clutch Pack, Bearing, Grind Wheel, Etc. 538.82$         

67 C.R. 466A Landfill Facility, LLC Tipping Fee 211.02$         

68 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 45.02$           

69 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 59.66$           

70 Environmental Products 4 Segt Gutter Broom 1,050.00$      

71 Guardian Fueling Technologies, Inc Prokee Assy, Black 65.84$           

72 Highland Tractor Company AT160662 Kit 359.86$         

73 KWI Straight Boom 843.00$         

74 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Cups 17.50$           

75 Office Depot Office Supplies 14.01$           

76 Progress Energy Electric Service 671.15$         

77 Salescorp of Florida Sign Stand 224.22$         

78 Southern Environmental Sciences, Inc Initial Visible Emissions Evaluation 603.70$         

79 Sparr Building and Farm Supply Barbwire, T-Post, Round Post, Gate Hardware 963.32$         

80 Sumter Electric Telephone Service 175.58$         

81 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 12.50$           

82 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 196.48$         

83 Wildwood Mower and Saw, Inc Shaft Asy, Pump Drive Belt, Carburetor, Blades, Etc 976.73$         

84 Wildwood Tire Company Tire Repairs 16.95$           

85 Williams Diesel Service Reman Driveshaft 652.41$         

FLEET SERVICES

86 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,048.33$      

87 Airgas Lease Argon, Acetylene, Oxygen Tanks 605.00$         

88 Big Truck Parts Inc Filters 76.77$           

89 Bright House Internet Service 39.97$           

90 CarQuest Auto Parts Pulley Kit 39.89$           

91 Chief Supply / Law Enforcement Strobe Bulb Replacement 83.99$           

92 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 45.02$           

93 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 8.97$             

94 Guardian Fueling Technologies, Inc Prokee Assy, Black 3.76$             

95 Heritage-Crystal Clean, LLC Com-20 196.25$         

96 Progress Energy Electric Service 37.91$           

97 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 12.50$           

98 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 53.60$           

99 Wildwood Mower and Saw, Inc Spark Plugs, Filters, Pump Primer, Pressure Tester 136.85$         

COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT

100 Bright House Internet Service 8.75$             

101 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 64.34$           

PARKS AND RECREATION

102 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,105.02$      

103 Bright House Internet Service 8.75$             

3. f. 1.  
Page 2 of 4



February 25 2013

Pasge 3

104 CarQuest Auto Parts Cable Ties, Tape, Black Trk Bed, Oil Filter, Etc. 46.43$           

105 Century Link Telephone Service 39.14$           

106 Culligan Softener Rental - Lake Deaton Wigglesworth 32.95$           

107 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 64.31$           

108 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 8.97$             

109 Guardian Fueling Technologies, Inc Prokee Assy, Black 9.41$             

110 Logan Sitework Contractors, Inc 18 Yards Ball Clay 135.00$         

111 Nature Calls Inc Port O Let Rentals 250.00$         

112 Office Depot Office Supplies 1.24$             

113 Progress Energy Electric Service 890.61$         

114 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 154.90$         

115 Richard Athletics Base Anchors 1,399.56$      

116 Sumter Electric Electric Service 269.08$         

117 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 29.00$           

118 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 57.22$           

119 Wildwood Mower and Saw, Inc Filters, Fan Kit, Bearings, Oil, Spark Plugs, Etc 247.32$         

120 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 814.90$         

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER

121 Pamella Bland Rental Refund - Wildwood Community Center 100.00$         

122 Bright House Internet Service 79.95$           

123 CarQuest Auto Parts Valves, Filters, Tees 55.41$           

124 Guardian Fueling Technologies, Inc Prokee Assy, Black 3.76$             

125 Music of the Heart Rental Refund - Wildwood Community Center 194.25$         

126 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 293.20$         

127 Sumter Electric Electric Service 1,144.87$      

128 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 54.00$           

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

129 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,126.08$      

130 Bright House Internet Service 26.25$           

131 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 109.33$         

132 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 59.80$           

133 Lowes Bathroom Toilets and Repair 230.37$         

134 Office Depot Office Supplies 13.53$           

135 Progress Energy Electric Service 1,157.47$      

136 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 43.80$           

137 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 12.50$           

138 Deniese Woods Personal Vehicle Use 14.13$           

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

139 Payroll February 10, 2013 Pay Period - 21 Employees 40,435.21$    

140 Advanced Auto Parts Brake Fluid 6.58$             

141 A.W.K. Industries, Inc Greyline Level and Flow Monitor 1,567.34$      

142 Besco Electric Supply Company Satco S4858 MH100 183.58$         

143 Brenntag Liquid Chlorine 988.56$         

144 Bright House Internet Service 154.90$         

145 Capital Office Products Office Supplies 40.54$           

146 CarQuest Auto Parts Grease Gun, Water Pump, Belts, Rotor, Wire Set, Etc 344.42$         

147 C & C Peat Co., Inc. Wastewater Treatment-Dewatered Bio-Solids 4,500.00$      

148 Century Link Telephone Service 113.30$         

149 CPM Plumbing Main Line Blockage 348.00$         

150 Culligan Bottled Water 42.48$           

151 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 135.06$         

152 Ernie Morris Enterprises Inc Office Supplies 113.90$         

153 Florida Dept of Environmental Protection Coleman Water Treatment Plant Flood Repair Permit 100.00$         

154 Jared Fort Boot Allowance 75.00$           

155 Guardian Fueling Technologies, Inc Prokee Assy, Black 35.73$           

156 HACH Stericon Plus Bioindicator 181.45$         

157 Hardy Diagnostics Grid Membrane Filter 411.28$         

158 MMD Computer Center, Inc Format Hard Disk and Reload Operating System 469.99$         

159 Office Depot Office Supplies 64.26$           

160 Bruce Phillips Personal Vehicle Use 157.07$         

3. f. 1.  
Page 3 of 4



February 25 2013

Page 4

161 Plant Technicians Environmental Testing 456.00$         

162 Postmaster Utility Billing 259.64$         

163 Progress Energy Electric Service 20,630.04$    

164 Resource One Cleaning Supplies 146.60$         

165 Sanders Company, Inc. Installation and Startup 3,000.00$      

166 Alice Scheidler Personal Vehicle Use 39.78$           

167 Sumter Electric Electric Service 4,083.54$      

168 Sunshine State One Call of Florida, Inc Locators for Month of January 2013 538.25$         

169 Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc Dble Check Backflow Preventor, Di Spool, Gaskit-Pak 722.89$         

170 TAW Orlando Motor, Seal, Shaft Sleeve 3,211.62$      

171 Terminix Monthly Pest Control 27.00$           

172 The Daily Commercial Ads 64.70$           

173 The Dumont Company, Inc ClearFlow Corrosion Inhibitor 1,506.25$      

174 USA BlueBook Grease, Stenner Duckbill Pack, Pump Tubes, Gloves 827.58$         

175 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone Service 416.62$         

176 VWR Standardizing Solution 98.86$           

177 Water Resource Technologies 32" Supply Cable, Sentry Simplex Panel, Rebuilt Pump 1,450.00$      

178 Jeff Webster DEP Reimbursement 125.00$         

179 Wildwood Mower and Saw, Inc Filters, Fan Kit, Bearings, Oil, Spark Plugs, Etc 164.88$         

180 Wildwood Tire Company Tires and Repairs 461.14$         

MISCELLANEOUS

181 General Fund Transfer to CRA 2013 Funds from Ad Valorem 68,950.00$    

182 SRF Principal and Interest Debt Service Funding 250,000.00$  

GREENWOOD CEMETERY

183 Progress Energy Electric Service 12.91$           

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS

184 Jerri A Blair Attorney 10,000.00$    

185 Potter Clement Lowry Special Magistrate 910.00$         

FUEL INVENTORY

186 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel 3,033.39$      

187 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Unleaded Gasoline 8,761.45$      

TOTAL  737,356.74$  

CITY COMMISSION

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 

                                                                                                                       

ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk

3. f. 1.  
Page 4 of 4



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date:  Feb. 25, 2013 
 

Subject: Miscellaneous Wastewater Collection System Repairs 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of Utility Technicians, 
Inc. proposal No’s. 5040 in the amount of $3,872.00 for repairs to Lift Station No. 5 and 
5042 in the amount of $5,804.00 for repairs to Lift Station No. 36 for a total aggregate 
amount of $9,676.00. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 Utility Technicians was the original contractor that installed Lift Stations No. 5 
and 36 and due to their knowledge of the City’s system have been used by the 
City for repairs in the past. 

 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 Lift Station No. 5 (Main Street North) 
 Riser pipe has broken loose from the coupling at the 90º elbow at 

the top of the station. The existing pipe is to be replaced with a 
new 6” PVC pipe and secured to the wall of the station. 

 Lift Station No. 36 (CR 209 at CR 214 
 Repair riser pipe from pump to station outlet. 
 Install drop pipe from gravity inlet and secure to wall of station. 

 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 Lift Station No. 5 
 Continued leakage from the break will cause excessive corrosion 

within the station and could damage the pumps. 
 Lift Station No. 36 

 Continued leakage from the broken riser pipe will cause excessive 
corrosion within the station and could damage the pumps. 

 Installation of the drop pipe will reduce corrosion within the 
station. 

3. f. 2.  
Page 1 of 4



 This work is considered as “confined space” work. The City does not have 
the required safety gear to perform these repairs. 

 Utility Technicians has the required safety gear to work in “confined 
space”. 

 

 LEGAL REVIEW: 

 N/A 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the request to contract with Utility 
Technicians to perform these repairs. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 Funding for these repairs will be from account no. 0401 0036 0536 0460, Repair 
and Maintenance. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 Take no action and allow the station to continue to operate in a state of disrepair. 
 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of proposal no. 5040 and proposal no. 5042. 
 

 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\February 25\Misc gravity system repairs 2-12-13.doc 
 

 

3. f. 2.  
Page 2 of 4



3. f. 2.  
Page 3 of 4

plaw
Rectangle



3. f. 2.  
Page 4 of 4

plaw
Rectangle



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Feb. 25, 2013 
 

Subject: Neptune Annual System Support 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of Sunstate Meter & 
Supply, Inc. quote No. 7735 in the amount of $3,792.00 for annual support for Sight 
Mobile Software and Handheld W/2650i Internal RF Adapter. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 The City utilize Neptune water meters as a sole source. 
 Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc. is the Neptune sales representative in the State of 

Florida. 
FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 The annual support for the software and the hand radio read equipment 
expired on January 31, 2013. 

 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The support services provide software updates and reapir services for the 
handheld radio read equipment. 

 

 LEGAL REVIEW: 

 N/A 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval of the purchase of annual support for the 
software and equipment. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 Funding for the annual support services will be from Operating Supplies, account 
no. 0401 0036 0536 0520. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 One alternative is to not purchase the support services resulting in: 

3. f. 3. 
Page 1 of 3



 Not keeping the software current or purchasing updates as they become 
available. 

 Paying for the repairs needed on the equipment as those repairs are 
needed. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc. quote no. 7735 in the amount of $3,792.00. 
 

 

 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\February 25\Neptune Annual System Support 2-11-13.doc 

3. f. 3. 
Page 2 of 3



3. f. 3. 
Page 3 of 3



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Feb. 25, 2013 
 

Subject: Emergency Electrical repairs at CR 501 (Prison) Water Plant 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of Interstate Electric 
Services of Central Florida, Inc’s. invoice no. 13-010 in the amount of $29,682.06. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

 On Tuesday, January 22, 2013the CR 501 plant experienced an electrical failure 
to the well pumps. Well pump no. 1 (closest to the ground storage tanks) showed 
it was receiving intermittent 3-phase power Staff worked and was able to restore  
3-phase power to the pump. 

 On Wednesday, January 23, 2013 the plant again experienced power failure to the 
well pump. Staff was unable to determine and repair the problem. Staff contacted 
Interstate Electric due to their familiarity of the plant’s electrical system. 

 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

 Interstate Electric responded the next morning and immediately knew the 
cause of the failure. (See attached memo dated Jan. 30, 2013 from Mr. 
Phillip M. Williams, Jr., President of Interstate Electric). 

 An electrical junction box located between the two ground storage tanks 
had been installed several years previous due to damage caused by City 
staff doing repair work on the equalization piping between the two ground 
storage tanks.  

 The current break was also aggravated by improper wire size leading to 
the two well pumps.  

 During the repair process it was discovered that the electrical conduits 
were filled with water from the October, 2010 pump house flooding. 

 It was also discovered that there were a total of 5 breaks in the conduits. 
 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

 Due to the following factors and after discussion with the City Manager, I 
instructed Interstate to make the necessary repairs to “fix the problem”. 

3. f. 4. 
Page 1 of 9



 Average water use in the City is approximately 2,300,000 
gallons/day (GPD). 

 CR 501 Plant average daily flow is approximately 1,328,000 GPD 
or approximately 58% of the entire City’s daily use. 

 The Federal Prison alone utilizes approximately 1,000,000 GPD. 
 With one well pump out of service, the other well pump in 

combination with the ground storage tanks can only supply 
approximately 58 hours of flow.  

 Due to the pending repairs and moving of the electrical control room and 
after discussions with Kimley-Horn, Interstate Electric was instructed to 
construct an above ground junction box outside of the building in a 
location suitable for the pending repair work. 

 This situation was a major safety hazard, in that one leg of the feed to 
pump no. 1 was actually broken and arcing. Should someone have reached 
into the junction box they could have received an electrical shock of great 
magnitude. 

 

 LEGAL REVIEW: 

 N/A 
 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends payment to Interstate Electric in the amount of 
$29,682.06. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 This is a non-budgeted repair to be paid from Repair & Maintenance account no. 
0401 0036 0536 0460. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 This was an emergency repair and there were no alternatives but to correct the 
problem. 

 

SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Interstate Electric memo dated January 30,2013 
 Interstate Electric invoice no. 13-010 dated Feb. 11, 2013 in the amount of 

$29,682.06. 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\February 25\501 electrical repairs 2-14-13.doc 
 

 

 

 

3. f. 4. 
Page 2 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 3 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 4 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 5 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 6 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 7 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 8 of 9



3. f. 4. 
Page 9 of 9



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1210-02 Alliance Coach Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1210-02) to construct a a Detail Center 
(2,500 sq. ft.), Office (1,200 sq. ft.), and Employee Pavilion (600 
sq.ft.) as well as an additional eight (8) acres of impervious area 
(parcels G17B008, G17=044, G17B002, G17B006, G17A012).  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 2/25/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission for the construction of a Detail 
Center (2,500 sq. ft.), Office (1,200 sq. ft.), and Employee Pavilion (600 sq.ft.) as well as an additional 
eight (8) acres of impervious area..  Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan, subject to 
approval, exemption or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Case SP 1210-02 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
February 5th, 2013.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Site Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Melanie D. Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 





Alliance Coach
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

November 2012 Location Map

G17B008, G17=044, G17B002, G17B006, G17A012
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 500 1,000

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

 - A
llia

nc
e C

oa
ch

.m
xd

 - 1
1/2

1/2
01

2 2
:57

:29
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

Legend
Alliance Coach

City of Wildwood

Alliance Coach













CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1212-03 Kangaroo Express Store 1433 Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1212-03) to construct a 3,813 sq. ft. 
convenience store/gas station, gasoline/diesel fuel storage 
tanks with twelve fueling positions (six pumps), and associated 
improvements (parcel D20=013).  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 2/25/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission for the construction of a 3,813 sq. ft. 
convenience store/gas station, gasoline/diesel fuel storage tanks with twelve fueling positions (six 
pumps), and associated improvements..  Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan, subject to 
the following: 
 

1. Recommendation of the Special Magistrate that the lighting plan be revised to mitigate 
off-site impacts; and  

2. Approval, exemption or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
Case SP 1212-03 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
February 5th, 2013.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Site Plan to the City Commission, subject to the conditions above. 
 

 
Melanie D. Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 





Kangaroo Express
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

January 2013 Location Map

D20=013
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 300 600

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

\K
an

ga
roo

 E
xp

res
s.m

xd
 - 1

/24
/20

13
 3:

22
:59

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

Legend
City of Wildwood

Kangaroo Express



P
A

N
T

R
Y

 
S

T
O

R
E

 
#
1
4
3
3

U
.
S

.
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

 
3
0
1
 
&

 
C

R
4
7
2

1
0
5
7
1
 
N

 
U

S
 
3
0
1
,
 
W

I
L

D
W

O
O

D
,
 
F

L

SF SF SF

S S

TP TP TP

FM FM FM

LEGEND

W W W

SITE DATA                                                                               

KEY NOTES                                                                GENERAL SITE NOTES

0

30 30 60 12015



48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG

1-800-432-4770



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES

 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTOR
 
Greg A. 
extensio
LLC, pe
condition
 
Pursuan
Commis
provided
approva
 
Therefor
 

Melanie 
Develop
 
 
 

CITY

CT: PD

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

RY/FACTS/

Beliveau, 
on of the Q
er his attac
ns.  

nt to subse
ssion may e
d the applic
al. 

re, staff rec

D. Peavy, 
pment Serv

Y COMMIS

 Extension

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

/ISSUES: 

AICP, with 
Quadventur
ched letter 

ection 8.6(
extend the 
cant can de

commends 

Director 
ices Depart

SSION OF

EXECUT

n for Quad
 
Extension 
(Staff reco

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

LPG Urba
re Planned

dated Jan

(D) of the 
planned de
monstrate w

that the Co

 

tment 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

venture (R

of Quadven
mmends ap

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

an & Region
 Developm
nuary 29, 

Land Dev
evelopment
why said de

ommission g

ITY OF W

MARY 

RZ 1302-04

nture PD du
pproval). 

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

nal Planner
ment on be

2013 due 

velopment 
t agreemen
evelopmen

grant the re

WILDWOO

) – Ordinan

ue to adver

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

rs, Inc. is re
ehalf of his

to adverse

Regulatio
nt for period
nt was delay

equested ex

OD 

nce O2011

rse market 

February 25

equesting a
s client, Qu
e real esta

ns (LDRs)
ds of up to 
yed under t

xtension. 

1-01 

conditions 

5, 2013 

a one year 
uadventure 
ate market 

), the City 
12 months 
the original 

3. g. 3. 
Page 1 of 3



QUADVENTURE
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

FEBRUARY 2013 PD EXTENSION

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - Q

ua
dv

en
tur

e P
D 

Ex
t.m

xd
 - 2

/18
/20

13
 11

:12
:14

 AM
 - t

on
ea

l

Legend
Quadventure

City of Wildwood

Parcels

Quadventure

Brownwood
Town Center

3. g. 3. 
Page 2 of 3



-- --------------------------- --- --- --- --- -LPG Urbana 

Reslonal Planners, Inc. 


January 29, 2013 

Mr, Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
City of Wildwood 
100 N. Main Street 
Wildwood, FL 34785 

Re: 	 Quadventure, He PUD (#1477/1) 

Request/or a PUD Extension (Ordinance No. 02011-01) 


Dear Jason: 

On behalf of our clients, Quadventure, LLC we would like to respectfully request a one 
(1) year extension of the PUD expiration date, As you are aware, market conditions due 
to the economic conditions have not been conducive for development in the last several 
years, either in sales or venture capital. Requesting only a six month extension would 
not provide the appropriate timeframe needed for market conditions to change, 

In addition, since the City has revised their Comprehensive Plan, several of the 
development conditions within the PUD no longer apply, thus there is an opportunity to 
revise the approved Conceptual Development Plan. 

We appreciate the City's consideration of the request and should you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

, ~/U~ 
Greg A. Beliveau, AICP 

c: 	 Anita Valdez 

Jerry Galbreath 

File 


P:\Projects\1477-1 Quadventure\Correspondence\Outgolng\L_McHugh.extenslon_Ol-29-13_GB,docm 

1162 Camp Ave" Mount Dora. FL 32757. Phone (352) 385-1940 Fax (352) 383-4824 

3. g. 3. 
Page 3 of 3



 

 

CITY OF WILDWOOD 

 

CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: Feb. 25, 2013 
 

Subject: Irrigation Meters  
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 

Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): 
Recommend rescind the November 13, 2006 moratorium on irrigation meters in the City of 
Wildwood’s Utility Service Area. 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

In the November 13, 2006 Commission meeting, the City Commission placed a moratorium on 
the installation of irrigation meters. The minutes read as follows: 
 
“CM Stevens explained that potable water was being pumped and used for irrigation. Mayor 
Wolf reminded that if people run water for irrigation through their household meter, then their 
sewer bill would increase and they would be upset. Commissioner Allen noted that WRPC 
(Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council) is requesting that new development put in reuse 
while under construction. Mayor Wolf – asked where is the 300,000 pumped going that is not 
being billed. CM Stevens noted that it is being reviewed and there has been some tightening up. 
CA Blair suggested that the Commission consider creating a TIE for reuse. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivens that a moratorium be 
placed on irrigation meters for new development in absence of reuse. Motion carried.” 
 

FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

 FINDINGS: 

This action by the City Commission has been interpreted in such a way that the motion 
virtually required ALL water meters to have a wastewater billing component. This 
interpretation effects not only irrigation meters but also commercial/industrial meters that 
would not have a discharge to the City’s wastewater system. 

 
Irrigation meters: 

1. The use of potable water for irrigation purposes is not banned by Southwest Florida 
Water Management District (SWFWMD) or the City’s Water Use Permit (WUP). 

2. Irrigating through the household meter does require a wastewater billing component. 

3. g. 4. 
Page 1 of 2



3. Water conservation is encouraged by the Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council 
(WRPC) as well as all of the State Water Management Districts and reuse is a good 
way to conserve when available. 

4. Reuse lines are being required in all new developments. 
 

Commercial/Industrial meters without a wastewater discharge: 

1. At least one industrial manufacturing application has recently requested a second 
water meter to supply water to its manufacturing facility. All water used in the 
manufacturing process is consumed by the process. None is discharged to the 
wastewater system. The facility has a separate meter that supplies water to its office 
and restrooms. 

2. Another issue exists where two (2) fire hydrant meters have been leased to fill and 
clean equipment, in order to not pay the wastewater component. This has tied up two 
of the City’s fire hydrant meters and virtually placed the hydrants out of service. 

 

 CONCLUSIONS: 

1. Individual wells for irrigation purposes are allowed by City code, but create a 
potential for cross-connections to the City’s potable system. 

2. Irrigation meters do not carry the wastewater charges. 
3. City has the ability to monitor irrigation meters for conservation purposes but, does 

not have the ability to monitor irrigation well usage. 
4. Irrigation meters will provide additional revenue to the City. 
5. When the City has available reuse capacity, the installation of reuse mains within the 

developed portions of the City should be explored. 
6. Applications for water exist that do not use capacity in the wastewater treatment 

plant. 
 

 LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

 

 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends the City Commission rescind the November 13, 2006 moratorium on 
irrigation meters, allowing meters to be installed for irrigation purposes and for 
commercial/industrial purposes when no flow to the City’s wastewater system will take 
place. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
 Allowing irrigation meters will increase revenues to the enterprise fund. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  
Continue with the moratorium. 

 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: None 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\February 25\Irrigation Meters 2-8-13.doc 

 

 

3. g. 4. 
Page 2 of 2


	Agenda - Page 1
	Agenda - Page 2
	Agenda - Page 3
	Important Dates
	Filed Items

	1.a. Executive Summary - PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance 02013-05 
	ORDINANCE NO. O2013-05
	REDLINE Version - ARTICLE V. SEWER USE
	CLEAN COPY - Revised Code - Article V. Sewer Use - ARTICLE V. SEWERUSE

	2.a.1. Letter - Gollahon Financial Services - Refunding Opportunities & Funding Needs
	2.a.1. Potential Refunding Savings & Funds for General Fund Projects
	2.a.1. Current vs Estimated Payments (P&I)-Enterprise Fund 
	2.a.1. Long Term Debt Obligations - Comparison of Existing to Proposed
	2.a.1. Letter of Agreement - COW & Gollahon Financial Services, Inc.
	2.a.1. Comparative Financial Advisor Service Fees
	2.a.1. Akerman Senterfitt Letter 

	2.c.1. Request to schedule a closed door meeting (calendars attached)
	2.g.1. Budget Analysis - General Fund Revenues
	2.g.1. Budget Analysis - General Fund Expenditures 
	2.g.1. Budget Analysis - Enterprise Fund Revenues
	2.g.1. Budget Analysis - Enterprise Fund Expenditures

	3.a.1. Minutes from February 11, 2013 Regular Meeting
	3.b.1. Executive Summary for O2013-06 Annexation - Hughes Brothers, LLC
	3.b.1. Ordinance No. O2013-06 
	3.b.1. Location Map

	3.b.2. Executive Summary for O2013-07 Annexation - Gary Williams 
	3.b.2. Ordinance No. O2013-07
	3.b.2. Location Map

	3.b.3. Executive Summary for O2013-08 Annexation - Villages of Legacy Park Subdivision 
	3.b.3. Ordinance No. O2013-08
	3.b.3. Location Map

	3.e.1. Partial Release of Easement - City to 301-466 LLC 
	Exhibit A

	3.f.1. Bills For Approval 
	3.f.2. Executive Summary - Request approval of Utility Technicians, Inc. to repair Lift Stations 5 & 36 
	3.f.2. Quote for CR 209 Lift Station 
	3.f.2. Quote for N. Main St. Lift Station

	3.f.3. Executive Summary - Approval for 1-yr. support from Sunstate Meter for Site Mobile Software & Handhels 
	3.f.3. Price Quote

	3.f.4. Executive Summary - Approve payment to Interstate Electric for 501 WTP Emergency Repairs 
	3.f.4. Letter from Phillip Williams - Interstate Electric
	3.f.4. Invoice from Interstate Electric
	3.f.4. Parts List
	3.f.4. Start Up Report

	3.g.1. Executive Summary - Alliance Coach Site Plan Approval
	3.g.1. Special Magistrate Recommendation
	3.g.1. Location Map
	3.g.1. Grading, Drainage & Utility Plan Southeast
	3.g.1. Grading, Drainage & Utility Plan Southwest
	3.g.1. Grading, Drainage & Utility Plan Northwest
	3.g.1. Grading, Drainage & Utility Plan Northeast
	3.g.1. Special Purpose Survey

	3.g.2. Executive Summary - Kangaroo Express Store Site Plan Approval
	3.g.2. Special Magistrate Recommendation
	3.g.2. Location Map
	3.g.2. Site Plan
	3.g.2. Survey

	3.g.3. Executive Summary - Quadventure LLC Extension Request
	3.g.3. Location Map
	3.g.3. Letter Requesting PUD Extension 

	3.g.4. Executive Summary - Request to rescind the Nov. 13, 2006 moratorium on installation of irrigation meters 

	Return to Agenda: 
	0: 
	0: 


	Ordinance O2013-05: 
	Return to Agenda Pg 1: 
	Next Agenda Item: 
	Ordinance #O2013-06: 
	Ordinance #O2013-07: 
	Ordinance #O2013-08: 


